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Action
Recommended
1.

Public Comment

1.

For information

2.

For action

3.

For information

A 15-minute opportunity will be provided to members of the public
at the beginning of the meeting to address the TMC on all agenda
items. The Chair may recognize members of the public during the
meeting at his/her discretion. Up to three minutes will be provided
per speaker or a total of 15 minutes total for all speakers.
2.

Minutes

Minutes from the January 6, 2016 TMC meeting are presented for
approval.
3.

Interim Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Scott Smith, Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO), will brief the
TMC on current issues.
CONSENT AGENDA
4A.

Fiscal Year 2015 (FY15) Comprehensive Annual Financial 4A. For action
Report (CAFR) and Single Audit Reporting Package

Staff will request that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors
acceptance of the FY15 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
and Single Audit Reporting Package.
4B.

Request for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Audit Services

4B. For action

Staff will request that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors
authorization for the Interim CEO to issue a RFP under a joint
procurement process with Valley Metro Rail, Inc. for contracted
Financial Audit Services.
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4C.

2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation Agenda

4C. For action

Staff will request that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors
approval of the 2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation
Agenda.
REGULAR AGENDA
5.

Fiscal Year 2016 (FY6) Second Quarter Reports

5.

For information

6.

For action

7.

For action

8.

For information

Quarterly Reports are provided as an informational update of
Valley Metro activities.
6.

April 2016 Transit Service Changes

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce Jorge Luna, Service
Planning Manager, who will request that the TMC forward to the
Board of Directors authorization for the Interim CEO to amend
service operator contracts and member agency Intergovernmental
Agreements (IGAs), as necessary, to accommodate the
recommended April 2016 service changes.
7.

Regional ADA Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride Service Plan –
Final Report and Recommendations

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce Carol Ketcherside, Deputy
Director, Planning and Accessible Transit, and Ron Brooks,
Accessible Transit Services Manager, who will request that the
TMC forward to the RPTA Board of Directors acceptance of the
Regional Paratransit Plan Update and approval of its
recommended regional paratransit policies.
8.

Fiscal Year 2015 (FY15) Transit Performance Report (TPR)

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce John McCormack, Chief
Financial Officer, who will provide information regarding system
ridership, operating costs, fare revenue, and performance
indicators contained in the FY15 Transit Performance Report.
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9.

Guidelines for Installation of Remote Fare Vending
Machines

9.

For information

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce John McCormack, Chief
Financial Officer, who will provide cost information and preliminary
guidelines for the installation and maintenance of remotely-located
fare vending machines.
10.

Valley Metro Accessibility Advisory Group

10. For information

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce Wulf Grote, Director,
Planning and Accessible Transit Services, who will provide
information regarding the establishment of the Valley Metro
Accessibility Advisory Group (VMAAG).
11.

Travel and Expenditures

11. For information

The monthly travel and expenditures is presented for
information.
12.

Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current
Events

12. For information
and discussion

Chair Taylor will request future agenda items from members, and
members may provide a report on current events.
13.

Next Meeting

13. For information

The next meeting of the TMC is scheduled for Wednesday,
March 2, 2016 at 11:00 a.m.

Qualified sign language interpreters are available with 72 hours notice. Materials in
alternative formats (large print, audiocassette, or computer diskette) are available upon
request. For further information, please call Valley Metro at 602-262-7433 or TTY at
602-251-2039. To attend this meeting via teleconference, contact the receptionist at
602-262-7433 for the dial-in-information. The supporting information for this agenda can
be found on our web site at www.valleymetro.org.
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 1

SUBJECT
Public Comment
PURPOSE
A 15-minute opportunity will be provided to members of the public at the beginning of
the meeting to address the TMC on all agenda items. The Chair may recognize
members of the public during the meeting at his/her discretion.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Scott Smith
Interim Chief Executive Officer
602-262-7433
ssmith@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 2
Summary Minutes
Valley Metro RPTA Transit Management Committee
Thursday, January 6, 2016
Lake Powell Conference Room
101 N. 1st Avenue, 10th Floor
Phoenix, AZ
11:00 a.m.

Members Present
Kristen Taylor, City of Avondale, Chair
Debbie Albert, City of Glendale, Vice Chair
Sean Banda, City of Buckeye
Jason Crampton for Dan Cook, City of Chandler
Jorge Gastelum, City of El Mirage
Kristin Myers, Town of Gilbert
Cato Esquivel, City of Goodyear
Mitch Wagner, Maricopa County
Jodi Sorrell, City of Mesa
Stuart Kent, City of Peoria
Maria Hyatt, City of Phoenix
Madeline Clemann, City of Scottsdale
David Kohlbeck, City of Surprise
Mike Nevarez for Steven Methvin, City of Tempe
Members Not Present
City of Tolleson
Sara Allred, ADOT
Chair Taylor called the meeting to order at 11:01 a.m.
1.

Public Comment

Mr. Crowley said I enjoy the thing about public comment as it's for things not on the
agenda. I've got the minutes from the August electeds meeting and future agenda
items request.
Councilwoman Williams. Could you do a report and get back to us on your decision not
to have the ability to sell tickets at these facilities, meaning that Mr. Banta had decided
that transit stations and transit centers shouldn't have the ticket dispensers.
Well, that was in August, September, October, November, December, it's now January.
Where in your agenda is that item. It's not there. Why?
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Now supposedly staff is supposed to do the job. Now this is six months that it's gone
that this body and the electeds have supported the feeling that we don't need to have
ticket dispensers at anything but a light rail. And from what I've gotten from RTAG,
even though I'm not allowed to see those minutes, and I have filed a complaint on that, I
was told that well, one of the things that we're considering on our policy is we don't want
to put any within a quarter mile of a vendor.
I understand you're wanting to support the free enterprise system, especially since you
discourage people from getting the ticket on the bus by charging them $2 extra. Of
course, you don't let the public know about this, you know. How many people get on
the bus and go well, I shouldn't spend six here, I should have gone to that Circle K over
there. Well, one, you need to eliminate that discouragement tax since the people you're
supposed to be taking the most effort to take and care for are those economic
challenged.
So what do you do? The people that use the bus, if you don't know, you get burnt. And
then where can you get those tickets. Where is it on the agenda? Eric, I know that it's
your new thing, but I brought this up at the electeds. It isn't getting done. I would like to
know why.
I'd also like to point out your Regional Transportation Plan, the roadways that are
supposed to be getting stuff, even Avondale is on there, but I remember having a
conversation with the elected, Ms. Rogers, and we were looking at a document that
showed, not just this fluff of the routes that we're going to be getting, but was a more
extensive and showed a lot of west side development, especially after 2010.
I would like to get a copy of that document again showing what you're supposed to be
doing. And if you would please instruct staff to get that to me. Right here is the one
from '06. This is just a fluff piece.
2.

Minutes

Minutes from the November 4, 2015 TMC meeting were presented for approval.
IT WAS MOVED BY MIKE NEVAREZ, SECONDED BY MITCH WAGNER AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 4, 2015 TMC MINUTES.
3.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Mr. Anderson provided an update that included the following:






Travel Report
Transit Performance Report
Legislative Report
Organizational Chart
College Football Playoff Events
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 Rock 'n' Roll Marathon
 Industry Training Opportunities
 Bond Ratings
Ms. Myers said just a quick comment on a minor item, on the Valley Metro travel
reimbursement report, for miscellaneous would it be possible at the bottom to just kind
of include what miscellaneous might include maybe like taxi or things like that just so
that we show that item.
Mr. Anderson said certainly.
Ms. Hyatt said the travel reimbursement is an after- the- fact report. Will you guys be
providing the Board with what's coming up so that they have an ability to look at that
prior to that travel occurring?
Mr. Anderson said Madam Chair, Ms. Hyatt, no, we don't plan to do that except we will
do that as part of the budget preparation. We'll have a much more detailed travel
budget presentation as part of the budget process that we'll be going through. It's really
difficult to get prior approval for a lot of the travel because, once again, that's an
operational issue, and given the timing of Board meetings and one thing or another, we
don't think that's really -- the Board did not request that either, so.
I think this is where we're going to start, and if the Board would like any other
information, we're certainly willing to provide that, but at this point I think this is what the
Board is asking for.
Ms. Hyatt said and my thought really wasn't that they would approve it, but more of a
here's what's coming up as a heads-up. But you'll hear from the Board if they want
something different. So thank you.
Ms. Clemann said I was just noticing the facility they're visiting is pretty generic, and if I
was a Board member, I would look at that and say well, what's this for. And so I would
just suggest that maybe just a slight more detail not a paragraph, but just a couple more
words is it vehicle replacement, vehicle purchase, is it IT components.
Mr. Anderson said we certainly can do that. Thank you.
4.

Consent Agenda

Chair Taylor said the next item on the agenda is the consent agenda. And Eric will
introduce the items.
Mr. Anderson said Item 4A is the renewal of the workman's comp insurance with
CopperPoint Mutual. The estimated annual premium of $142,145 is an estimate
pending the audit of actual experience for last year. So the $142,145, is a little bit less
than what we paid last year, as you can see, it's $168,000 last year. So again, pending
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the audit, we think that we may have some budget savings on that particular item.
Item 4B is a funding agreement that provides a mechanism for Valley Metro to provide
funding to the City of Phoenix for the regional transit communications project. This is a
$27-million-dollar project, largely funded with federal grants. The public transportation
fund will provide the match for that item. I think that's been through this committee
before.
Item 4C is a contract change order with Moses for marketing and advertising increasing
the contract by $50,000, specifically to do some targeted advertising on the vanpool
program. One of the things we've noted, one, we have some vans in inventory that we
need to get out and into service. And also, what's happening, too, we believe that with
the lower gas prices there maybe a little bit lower demand. And so a little goosing of the
advertising budget we think may stimulate some additional demand for those vans, so
we can get those out into service. So that's Item 4C.
Item 4D is authorization to issue a joint RFP for fare inspection security services. We
currently have a vendor under contract. There's two one-year options available on that
contract. The recommendation of staff is that we do reissue an RFP for these fare and
security services. We think that we can improve the performance, quite frankly, for this
particular item.
Chair Taylor said thank you, Eric. Do I have any questions or comments? Go ahead,
Madeline.
Ms. Clemann said Mr. Anderson, on Item 4C, the marketing and advertising consulting
service, I just thought it would be helpful to Board members if and to myself if some
measures of success were included in this project so that we can, number one,
compare it to past experiences and what we've done. And in terms of future, which
ones, which types of media outputs are going to actually do something for us. And I
don't see that being addressed in here.
And also, the targeted marketing campaign, what message -- it's not detailed in here
what message we're going to convey, and I think that would be very interesting to hear
what we have in store in terms of what kind of message we're going to be putting out to
the public.
Mr. Anderson said thank you.
Chair Taylor said any other questions or comments or the consent agenda?
Public Comment
Mr. Crowley said and I'm also on 4C. I find it fascinating we have a decrease of 3.5
percent and now we're going to increase the number of vans to it appears to be 85, and
I've already pointed out that we subsidize each single person that uses it a thousand
dollars.
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And at $50,000 that the 54 vans that we have we want to spend a thousand dollars per
van, or is it 1,500 per van, because it's the expanded ones that we're trying to do
outreach for, when it costs $10,000 for a bus stop and you ain't got them at every stop.
I see this as a waste of money. I find the van program to be not doing what it can and
should do, because if I go through each one of your communities that have, what, for
transit. Buckeye, Avondale, Litchfield, Goodyear, what do you have. What does El
Mirage have? What does Surprise have?
But we're going to use $1,000 or $1,500 to get more people into these vans, where I
see that we should be taking those vans using them as circulators to meet up with
actual fixed routes in your communities. That's what you need to be spending the
money on, not $50,000 to get people to jump in a van.
What you need to be doing is a service that encompasses, what, the region that you
represent that has been paying the taxes since 1985 and has what to show for it.
IT WAS MOVED BY DAN COOK, SECONDED BY KRISTEN MYERS AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA.
5.

Proposed Valley Metro Reserve Fund Policy

Mr. Anderson said Madam Chairman, I'd like to introduce Paul Hodgins, who will be
presenting this item.
Mr. Hodgins provided a presentation which included:

















Scope of Policy
Current Policy Reserves
Other Reserves
Proposed Reserves
General Fund Operating Reserve
Capital Reserve Fund
Working Capital Reserve Fund
Vanpool Reserve Fund
Emergency Reserve Fund
Debt Service Fund
Summary of Requirements
Forecasted Fund Balances
Board Oversight
Proposed Quarterly Report (2)
Summary
Recommendation

Ms. Clemann said Paul, on your table it shows the current policy requirements and the
proposed policy requirements. You make some comments about the bus refurbishment
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reserve, but it's not carried forward under the proposed policy requirements. Where is it
hidden in here?
Mr. Hodgins said Madam Chair, Ms. Clemann, that would be included as part of the
capital reserve. It kind of got folded into the capital reserve fund.
Ms. Clemann said the question I have about that is, you know, in our accounting
system, bus refurbishment would be operating. That's why I'm wondering. It wouldn't
be included in capital.
Mr. Hodgins for a major mid-year refurb -- or a mid-life refurbishment, if it extends the
useful life we would consider it a capital expense. So it would be determined on -depending on what the expense is, we would have to look at that.
Ms. Myers said thanks, Madam Chair. Thanks, Paul, for the information. And I know
you and I are having a little bit of dialogue on certain things, so I just wanted to ask a
few questions here today.
With regards to the summary of reserve fund target fund levels, I'm just curious, it may
be something that I missed in your presentation, I did understand on the vanpool
reserve why you chose the 20 -- why the 20 percent has been chosen for a year of fleet.
When we look back at the summary, it said forty-five days we keep in reserve, which is
approximately 12 percent, but when I look at the other target levels, I'm seeing 17
percent, 20 percent on certain items. Could you explain what the determination was on
those percentages for those other fund categories?
Mr. Hodgins said Madam Chair, Ms. Meyers, basically, you know, we looked at each
category differently. Anything that was supporting a regular cash flow such as the
general operating or the working capital reserve, we chose 17 percent. Looking at some
best practices and what other agencies were doing, we're seeing anywhere from two
months to three months' worth.
We didn't necessarily want to jump right to three months or 25 percent of the operating
budget, so we moved up -- moved it up to two months' worth, which is roughly 17
percent. So it's higher than what we have now, but it really targets specific areas of the
budget. So the general operating reserve targets, really the operating category, working
capital looks at those major infrastructure projects.
So we wanted to start with the 17 percent or two months' worth. The capital reserve at
20 percent of the non-federal, it's really the capital program for us is very flexible. It's
mostly bus replacements. And if there are circumstances if revenues decline, such as
we saw a few years ago, we have much greater flexibility in deferring fleet purchases,
for instance, they're heavy-duty buses, we can go from 12 to 14 years that may cause
us a little additional maintenance, but really the heavy-duty bus is designed that it can
last much longer.
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So we didn't feel like we needed a significant or a really high number for the capital
reserve just because we have that flexibility. And we do ensure that we have federal
funds and an approved grant before we place an order.
Ms. Myers said another item of note, I know that we had -- there was discussion in the
policies themselves that if the CFO should utilize any of the expenditures that he would
have the authority.
I'm just wondering if there's going to be any reporting mechanism throughout the year or
annually to, at least, allow the Board opportunity to view those expenditures when we
dropped and how, you know, when it came back online.
Mr. Hodgins said the quarterly finance report that we take through the TMC and the
Board adding some discussion of the current fund balances versus the required
reserves. And if anything unusual has happened, you know, just a little more subjective
discussion of where we stand would be part of the quarterly reporting process.
Mr. Kent said Thank you, Paul. Just two questions, and I apologize, I didn't catch it
during the RTAG meeting. It says, "The policy doesn't apply to the rail." I didn't know if
that's because it already had a policy or it's being developed because of the nature of
that business is dramatically different than bus. If you could maybe touch on that.
Just a second question, the overall amount of reserves, you know, are going up pretty
significantly, and I'm assuming as well with that, it gives us a little less flexibility, gives
us more safety in terms of having better reserves, but a little less flexibility in terms of
programming in any given year $15 or $20 million towards other efforts or activities, is
that -- it doesn't mean it couldn't -- we couldn't do it relative to Board concurrence, but
when I saw the numbers jumping up as significantly as they were, I get it. And I
understand it. And I agree with it.
But it seemed like we lose something on the other side, and I'm assuming that's some
flexibility, but I wondered if you could just touch on that.
Mr. Hodgins said Madam Chair, Mr. Kent, I would say that's correct, I mean, we do lose
a little bit of flexibility. But I think it's really a short-term issue. I mean, while the
required reserves are going up, we have had -- I mean, our cash balances have far
exceeded the required reserves in the past, so in practice we've been there already.
So we do have a little, perhaps a little less flexibility in programming those through the
next five years. We have to ensure that our fund balance stays a little bit higher. But we
do believe it's more of a prudent fiscal strategy. It may require a little more refinement
of our life cycle update, for instance and our five-year forecasting to ensure that we get
it right.
As to the question of VMR, it is a different type of agency. It does not have funding of
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its own. It really gets funding from RPTA and then from the feds and then from member
cities for particular projects. So these policies don't necessarily apply. Without having
its own funding source, there's no way to set aside reserves. We likely will look at how
to address that. We would address that with each major project that VMR would
undertake.
Mr. Cook said I have two questions, Paul. First is a question on the working capital
reserve. No problem with having reserves, that isn't the question. But I notice in the
description it's talking about the 17 percent of major infrastructure projects. Do the
infrastructure projects themselves each have a designated contingency, for lack of a
better terminology, set aside in the project budget for each project?
Or is that what this is intending to be? Or is this tending to be yet another level of
contingency that could be drawn upon if they exceed even the project contingencies?
Mr. Hodgins said Madam Chair, Mr. Cook, each project does have some contingencies
within the project budget. This reserve is really intended to support the cash flow for
those projects. So as bills come in for, let's say -- well, that project is almost done, but if
we're to use the Central Mesa Extension, as we get invoices in for the construction, you
know, we have outlays, and this is intended really to ensure we have the funds to
support those regular cash flows. It does not replace the contingencies. If the
contingencies have to be used within the project budget, then this just ensures we have
the funds to support those expenditures.
Mr. Cook said that makes sense. I get that part. I was just, you know, when I read the
17 percent of major costs, I just automatically thought you were talking about change
orders for projects or something like that.
Mr. Hodgins said those would all be dealt within the actual project budget.
Mr. Cook said so that kind of makes sense. And then my other question is, I know you
changed to the 17 and 20 percent, but just for and maybe for background information,
and this may or may not even apply, but does state law require a certain level of
operating reserve on these accounts? Because I know cities -- I don't even know if the
cities require it, but I know the cities have reserves and prudently do, the 17 and 20,
we're a smaller agency compared to the city, you know, so the city could have a smaller
number but a lot more money. But do you know offhand if this is a required amount or
what the required amount is?
Mr. Hodgins said I'm not aware of any state law that requires any kind of reserve.
Public Comment
Mr. Crowley said I look at the proposed policy requirements and I get the debt service.
That's bonds, right. What part of the bonding does the RPTA do? That's the rail. And
then I look at the amount and it comes out to $149 million dollars, I go, that is a chunk of
change. Why. You know, the RPTA what do we do bonding. The people that bond are
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the rail.
So the debt service is their bailiwick. And if not, like I said, over five years $149 million
dollars is a big chunk of change. And as a taxpayer, I don't want that to go to somebody
that loaned us money. I want that to go for infrastructure.
IT WAS MOVED BY KRISTEN MYERS, SECONDED BY STUART KENT AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO FORWARD TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE ACTING CEO TO EXECUTE THE VALLEY METRO
RESERVE FUND POLICY.
6.

Updated Investment Policy

Mr. Anderson said thank you, Madam Chairman, members of the Transit Management
Committee, I'd like to introduce John McCormack, who's going to walk you through this
item on the updated investment policy.
I think this has been through this process through this Board once, and there are just
some minor changes since last time that was requested -- changes that were requested
by the Board.
Mr. McCormack, Chief Financial Officer, provided a presentation which included the
following:









Action Summary
Change to Authorized Brokers/Dealers
Managing Investment Risks (2)
Procedure for Purchase and Sale of Investment Securities (2)
RPTA’s Members – Use of Corporates
Proposed RPTA Policy / ARS Title 35
Review Process
Today’s Action

Chair Taylor said thank you, John. Do we have any questions or comments from the
committee? All right. You don't want to make any comments? All right. With that, can
I get a motion on the updated investment policy?
IT WAS MOVED BY DAN COOK, SECONDED BY MADELINE CLEMANN AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO FORWARD TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AN
AMENDMENT TO THE RPTA INVESTMENT POLICY PER ATTACHMENT
INVESTMENT POLICY 5.6A THAT WILL OPTIMIZE INVESTMENT EARNINGS BY
ALLOWING RPTA TO HOLD INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS WHICH ARE
CONSISTENT WITH BEST INDUSTRY PRACTICES AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH
ARS TITLE 35.
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7.

RPTA Fiscal Year 2016 (FY216) Mid-Year Budget Adjustment

Mr. Anderson said thank you, Madam Chair, members of the Transit Management
Committee, John McCormack's going to walk you through this proposed mid-year
budget adjustment, and I'd be happy to answer any questions after he finishes his
presentation. Thank you.
Mr. McCormack, Chief Financial Officer, provided a presentation which included the
following:
 Changes – Operations Activities
Ms. Clemann said Madam Chair, I just want to make sure or confirm with you, John, I
think you had discussions with Matt Dudley that this is then going against the Peoria JE
and not the Glendale JE; correct?
Mr. McCormack said that's correct. And I think we actually notated that on the
PowerPoint slide here that it is Peoria.







Operating Funding Changes
Changes – Capital Fleet
Changes – Capital Activities (2)
Summary of Changes – Use of Funds
Summary of Changes – Sources of Funds
Recommendation

Mr. Anderson said Madam Chair, members of the Transit Management Committee, I
just wanted to clarify on the operating budget, in your agenda packet there is this item
RPTA fixed route service for the East Valley.
John alluded to the fact that staff is recommending that be pulled, that particular line
item be pulled from this particular item. There are a lot of issues related to this change,
and we think it's best discussed with -- directly with the Board in Executive Session,
because there's a lot of potential legal issues involved in this. So, once again, I think
that would be our recommendation this be removed from this particular agenda item
and passed to the Board as a recommendation for an Executive Session.
Public Comment
Mr. Crowley said I got a couple problems with this, of course. I look at the operations
and administration and that's $1,150,000. How much of that was the $269,000 that we
had to pay Mr. Banta. I also note in here that I don't see any Southwest Valley Dial-ARide. And I look at the projections map and see where they're supposed to be getting
actual fixed route service. And you know if you got fixed route in your city, whatcha got
to do. You gotta have a paratransit that equals it.
And I don't see, one, where my Wickenburg connector is getting back and being done.
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You know, you guys said, this is what you have to do to show that you have to show
market desire. I went up there to the little market and got 2 percent of the population
that say give me back my bus.
When I look in here and I don't see any of the west valley communities from 67th
Avenue west, where are you doing anything in here? Now I understand it's the political
will that we're gonna have to deal with, and that a lot of your conservative Republican
bosses believe that what you're doing is socialism, but that don't change the fact that we
gotta get the job done and do it right.
One, when are your communities going to get circulators within and connectors to the
other cities -- communities.
When I look at the southwest valley of Goodyear, Litchfield, and to a big extent,
Buckeye when it's explained to me well, we don't have a bus in the system because
we're so far out. It ain't fields and bunny rabbits any more. The metropolitan area goes
that whole way.
You guys are supposed to be using the Prop 400 moneys to do what your citizens
requested. What they requested was a transit system that uses the grid, operates
twenty-four hours seven days a week. And what are you guys doing. You're making up
ways to push money back and forth. You need to build the system and get it done right.
IT WAS MOVED BY DAN COOK, SECONDED BY MIKE NEVAREZ AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE MID - YEAR
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT WITH THE FOLLOWING CHANGES: THAT WE DEFER
THE RPTA FIXED ROUTE SERVICE CONTRACT ADJUSTMENT FOR THE EAST
VALLEY; AND THAT WE RECOMMEND THAT THAT DEFERRED ITEM BE
ADVANCED TO THE BOARD AT THE JANUARY MEETING FOR CONSIDERATION
IN E - SESSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM TO DISCUSS LEGAL MATTERS
PERTAINING TO THAT CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER.
8.

Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current Events

Ms. Sorrell said I would just like to make a request. And this kind of gets to kind of the
agenda item that we just passed. Because in the East Valley we have a group called
the East Valley Partners. And it over the years it used to be fixed route and it used to
be Dial-A-Ride, and over the years it's become Dial-A-Ride.
And I think by incorporating operations, budget, planning into those meetings we can
avoid some of what just happened in the last agenda item. So if in the future prior to the
RTAG meeting, we can get an update on what's going on with the First Transit contract
just like we did update so what's going on with the Total Transit contract, I think that can
alleviate a lot of some of this multiple conversations that take place.
Ms. Clemann said now, I would like to add that it would be my wish to have an East
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Valley Partner's meeting before the Board meeting so that we can get our arms
wrapped around this subject and feel comfortable with it as it goes forward to the Board,
because we all work with our elected officials on these items.
Ms. Hyatt said I don't have a request. I have an update. So Transdev who provides a
significant amount of service in the Phoenix and for many of your cities, provided a best
and final offer to the Amalgamated Transit Union yesterday. They are taking it to a vote
today and tomorrow. We should have the results by 9:00 p.m. tomorrow night.
In the event there is a work stoppage or strike, we will -- we've got information already
on the Transdev routes providing the information about the potential to our passengers.
We also have information at our park-and-rides and transit centers to make sure that
we've got the information, as well as information on the Valley Metro Website and City
of Phoenix Website. If there is a work stoppage, we will also be providing information at
key intersections throughout the system provided by that Transdev service.
We really want to make sure to our passengers, because obviously we have other
routes, both East Valley as well as our First Transit contract that intersect those routes,
and so we'd want to make sure -- we're going to do our best to make sure it's clear to
our passengers what might be happening with those routes.
But we just want to make sure that you're aware. If you guys have any questions,
please give us a phone call. There's also information on the Website. We're here to
help your passengers in any way that we possibly can. We certainly hope there's not a
strike. But we have to be prepared in the event of one. So thank you. Sorry for the bad
news. Potential bad news.
Mr. Cook said I just wanted to thank Phoenix and Maria for providing those updates.
And I know Hillary passed those on as well. I think it's very important that they get out
to the cities. We occasionally have people wondering are our routes impacted and, you
know, certainly it's important to know what is impacted, but likewise, what's not
impacted and get that out, and you were very good at that. So just wanted to pass on
our electeds appreciate that quick information, so thank you.
Chair Taylor said all right. Any others? With that the next meeting of the TMC is
scheduled for Wednesday, February 3rd at 11:00 a.m. TMC is adjourned.
With no further discussion the meeting adjourned at 12:01 a.m.
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 3

SUBJECT
Interim Chief Executive Officer’s Report
PURPOSE
Scott Smith, Interim Chief Executive Officer, will brief the TMC on current issues.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Scott Smith
Interim Chief Executive Officer
602-262-7433
ssmith@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None

VALLEY METRO • 101 N 1ST AVE • STE 1300 • PHOENIX AZ • 85003 • 602-262-7433

DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4A

SUBJECT
Fiscal Year 2015 (FY15) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and Single Audit
Reporting Package
PURPOSE
To request that the Valley Metro Board of Directors accept the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report and Single Audit Reporting Package for the period ended June 30, 2015.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., Certified Public Accountants, has completed the FY15
RPTA audits. Completion of the June 30, 2015 financial statement and Single Audit Act
audits indicates Valley Metro’s compliance with both state and federal statutory audit
requirements as well as adherence to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
financial reporting. Preparation of a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
demonstrates Valley Metro’s commitment to the highest standard of financial reporting
for a governmental entity. The accompanying report is submitted for review and
acceptance.
In planning and performing the audit of the financial statements, Heinfeld, Meech & Co.,
P.C. considered RPTA’s internal controls in order to determine auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an
opinion on internal controls.
During the course of the audit there were no findings. Valley Metro’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for FY15 received an unmodified opinion and the receipt of the
GFOA Certificate of Excellence for the FY14 CAFR demonstrates the commitment to
the highest standard of financial reporting for a government entity. Attached you will
find a copy of the Auditor’s reports and Management Discussion and Analysis section of
the CAFR.
The complete reports are available on the Valley Metro website at the following URL:
http://www.valleymetro.org/publications_reports/annual_reports
COST AND BUDGET
None
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan, FY
2016 – 2020:
 Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o
Tactic E: Maintain strong fiscal controls to support Valley Metro’s long-term
sustainability.

COMMITTEE ACTION
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
Financial Working Group: January 20, 2016 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors acceptance of the
FY15 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Single Audit Reporting Package.
CONTACT
John McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
602-262-7433
ATTACHMENTS
 Auditors Opinion – CAFR FY15 2015
 Management Discussion and Analysis – CAFR FY15
 Audit Standards Disclosure
 Auditors Opinion – Single Audit Reporting Package FY15
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10120 N. Oracle Road
Tucson, Arizona 85704
Tel (520) 742-2611
Fax (520) 742-2718

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority (the Authority), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Valley
Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and
major special revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
Change in Accounting Principle
As described in Note 1, the Authority implemented the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, for the
year ended June 30, 2015, which represents a change in accounting principle. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, as listed in the
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information such as
the Introductory Section, Other Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual Fund Financial
Statements and Schedules, and Statistical Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The Other Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the Other Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual Fund Financial
Statements and Schedules information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
The Introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 21, 2015, on our consideration of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants
December 21, 2015
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VALLEY METRO
REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As management of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority (the Authority), we offer
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015. This discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing
on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Authority’s financial activity, (3)
identify changes in the Authority’s financial position, (4) identify any material deviations from the
financial plan (adopted annual budget) and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns.
Financial Highlights
•

The Authority’s total net position decreased ($7.8) million in FY 2015, comprised of an
increase of $1.3 million in governmental activities and a decrease of ($9.1) million in businesstype activities. Total net position of the Authority is $69.6 million, of which $6.6 million is
unrestricted.

•

The primary cause of the decrease in net position was due to restatement of FY 2014 net
position in conformity with the GASB 68 requirement to recognize a proportional share of
pension liabilities which are managed under the Arizona Retirement System. The FY 2014
restatement reduced net position by ($25.9) million. FY15 activities increased net position by
$18.0 million.

•

The governmental activities revenues increased by approximately $6.1 million (4.3%) over the
previous year primarily due to increasing sales tax revenue.

•

The business-type activities revenues decreased by approximately ($18.8) million (20.7%)
from the previous year primarily due to reduction of capital expenditure funding requirements.

•

At June 30, 2015, the Authority’s governmental fund balance sheet reported a combined
ending fund balance of $63.1 million, an increase of $10.9 million (21.0%) compared to the
previous fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements are presented as follows:
•

Government-wide reporting – presents financial statements on a government-wide basis.

•

Fund financial statements – presents governmental and proprietary fund financial statements,
with the focus on major funds within each fund type.

•

Measurement focus for governmental activities – in the government-wide financial statements
all activities, including the governmental activities, are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The current financial resources focus
and modified accrual basis of accounting are followed for the governmental fund financial
statements.

•

Budgetary reporting – the display of both the original adopted budget and the revised budget
in the budgetary comparison schedules is required by GAAP. These schedules are only
required for the General Fund and major special revenue funds; these statements are
presented as part of the basic financial statements. The Authority has presented this
information for the proprietary funds in Other Supplementary Information.
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•

Required narrative analysis – the financial statements are required to be accompanied by
narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial activities in the
form of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A).

As presented below, the financial section of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the Authority consists of this discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements and
required supplementary information (other than MD&A). There are also additional non-required
supplementary schedules presented after the basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements include the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, including
the budgetary statements for the general fund and major special revenue funds, and notes to the
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (see pages 17 – 19) are designed to provide a broad
overview of the Authority’s finances in a manner similar to those used by private businesses. All
of the activities of the Authority, except those of a fiduciary nature, are included in these
statements.
The activities of the Authority are broken down into two columns on these statements –
governmental activities and business-type activities. A total column for the Authority is also
provided.
•

The governmental activities include the basic services of the Authority including general
government (administration), regional planning, transportation demand management and
regional customer services. Grants and general revenues generally support these activities.

•

The business-type activities include the private sector type activities which are transit service
operations and light rail transit. These activities are partially supported by user charges and
provide substantial benefits, both direct and indirect, to the public at large.
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The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities,
both current and noncurrent, with the difference between the two reported as net position. The
focus on net position is designed to be similar to the emphasis for businesses. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall health of the
Authority, other indicators, including non-financial indicators like the Authority’s tax base and the
condition of its capital assets, should also be considered.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Authority’s net position changed
over the most recent fiscal year. Since full accrual accounting is used for the government-wide
financial statements, all changes to net position are reported at the time that the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. This statement
also focuses on both the gross and net costs of the various functions of the Authority, based only
on direct functional revenues and expenses. This is designed to show the extent to which the
various functions depend on general taxes and revenues for support.
Fund Financial Statements
Also presented are more traditional fund financial statements for governmental funds and
proprietary funds. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or conditions. Funds are used to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements as well as for
managerial control to demonstrate fiduciary responsibility over the assets of the Authority.
Governmental funds – Governmental funds are used to account for most of the Authority’s basic
services. Unlike the governmental activities column on the government-wide financial statement,
these fund financial statements (pages 20 - 25) focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information is useful in looking at the Authority’s near-term financial
requirements. Since the governmental activities on the statements focus on near-term spendable
resources, while the governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements have a
longer term focus, a reconciliation of the differences between the two statements is provided
following the fund financial statements and is also provided in Note 3 (page 40).
Proprietary funds – Proprietary funds are used to account for business-type activities of the
Authority. Enterprise funds are used for activities that primarily serve customers outside the
governmental unit. The proprietary fund financial statements (pages 26 - 28) are prepared using
the same long-term focus as the government-wide financial statements. The enterprise funds
generally provide information similar to the business-type activities column of the governmentwide financial statements, but provide more detail and additional information (i.e., cash flows).
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes to the financial statements (pages 29 – 58)
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements and should be read with the financial statements.
Required supplementary information other than MD&A – Governments have an option of
including the budgetary comparison statements of the general fund and major special revenue
funds as either part of the fund financial statements within the basic financial statements or as
required supplementary information after the footnotes. The Authority has chosen to present
these budgetary statements as part of the basic financial statements. Beginning FY15, GASB 68
requires governments to present various disclosures related to the Pensions.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The following tables and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial
position for the Authority as a whole as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative
information for the previous year.
Net Position
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2015 compared to
the prior year:
Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of June 30
(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental
Activities
2015
Current and other assets
Noncurrent assets
Cash and investments
Due from Rail - PTF advance bond proceeds
Deferred charges
Capital assets
Total assets

$

65,178.9

Business-type
Activities
2014

$

1,904.7

Total
Primary Government

2015

2014

2015

53,150.0

$ 162,378.2

$ 109,936.6

1,970.2

154.5
61,398.7
72,341.7

101,147.0
83,972.3

$ 296,273.2

$ 295,055.9

$

Percent
Change

2014

227,557.1

$ 163,086.6

39.5%

154.5
61,398.7
74,246.4

101,147.0
85,942.5

-99.8%
0.0%
0.0%
-13.6%

$

363,356.7

$ 350,176.1

3.8%

$

67,083.6

$

55,120.2

Deferred outflows related to pensions
Total deferred outflows of resoures

$
$

1,533.2
1,533.2

$
$

-

$
$

2,686.1
2,686.1

$
$

-

$
$

4,219.3
4,219.3

$
$

-

0.0%
0.0%

Other liabilities
Long-term liabilities

$

2,575.6
9,651.9

$

1,460.7
195.4

$

57,677.7
223,559.2

$

49,591.4
221,479.1

$

60,253.3
233,211.1

$

51,052.1
221,674.5

18.0%
5.2%

$

12,227.5

$

1,656.1

$ 281,236.8

$ 271,070.5

$

293,464.3

$ 272,726.6

7.6%

Deferred inflows related to pensions
Total deferred inflows of resoures

$
$

1,651.7
1,651.7

$
$

-

$
$

$
$

$
$

4,531.0
4,531.0

$
$

-

0.0%
0.0%

Net position:
Net Investment in capital
assets,
Restricted
Unrestricted

$

1,904.7
3,120.9
49,712.1

$

1,970.2
2,790.9
48,703.1

$

43,205.6
14,100.5
(33,320.7)

$

36,455.6
26,582.0
6,543.0

$

45,175.8
16,891.4
15,382.4

-19.3%
57.4%
-57.5%

$

54,737.6

$

53,464.2

$

23,985.4

$

69,580.6

$

77,449.6

-10.2%

Total liabilities

Total net position

2,879.4
2,879.4

34,551.0 $
23,461.1
(43,169.1)
14,843.0

$

-

The Authority’s total net position decreased ($7.9) million in FY 2015, comprised of an increase of
$10.7 million in governmental activities, an increase of $7.3 million in business-type activities, and
a restatement of ($25.9) million in beginning net position in both governmental and business-type
activities. As a result of the restatement, the Authority’s total net position change is a decrease of
($7.9) million as presented in the basic financial statements. Total net position of the Authority is
$69.6 million, of which $6.6 million is unrestricted.
Of the $69.6 million total net position, $36.5 million are the Authority’s net investment in capital
assets used to acquire those assets. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services
to the region’s citizens; consequently, it is not the Authority’s intention to sell these assets, and
they are therefore not available for future spending. The capital assets are reported net of related
debt; as discussed in the Capital Assets and Debt Administration section (pages 12 - 13), the
Authority has pledged future transportation excise tax revenues to repay the outstanding debt
obligations. The capital assets themselves are not intended to be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
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Approximately $6.6 million of the Authority’s net position (9.5% of the total) represents unrestricted
resources that may be used to meet the Authority’s ongoing obligations to citizens, member
agencies, contractors and creditors within the respective governmental and business-type
activities. In fiscal year 2015 Business-type restricted assets include $19.3 million for cash
escrowed for debt service. The remaining $4.1 million reflects resources that are subject to other
external restrictions. The governmental activities reported an increase of $1.0 million (2.4%) of
unrestricted net position over the prior year largely attributed to sales tax collection increases
which were in excess of increases to expense activities of the Authority. The significant decrease
of ($9.8) million of unrestricted net position over the prior year in business-type activities is
primarily due to a $8.7 million increase to funds restricted for series 2014 debt service principal.
The net position of the Business-type activities was restated as of July 1, 2014. In accordance
with GASB 68, a proportionate share of the Arizona State Retirement System unfunded net
pension liability has been recorded. The Business-type activities portion of the liability was $16.5
million. As a result, net position as stated in the June 30, 2014 CAFR, $24.0 million, has been
restated to $7.5 million. Refer to Note 2 on page 39 for more information concerning the
accounting change.
Changes in Net Position
The following table compares the revenues and expenses of the Authority for the current and
previous fiscal year. The increase (decrease) in net position for each year represents the extent to
which revenues were over (under) expenses during the year.
Changes in Net Position
Fiscal year ended June 30
(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental
Activities
2015
REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Sales taxes
Interest earnings
Other

$

2014

173.8
13,929.4

$

Total revenues

2015

167.9
13,147.3

$

Total
Primary Government
2014

186.1
1,595.7

139.1
2,498.2

146,572.6

140,509.6

71,988.8

90,827.5

218,561.4

231,337.1

-5.5%

2,722.2
1,359.6
8,817.7
2,506.3
10,534.4

1,351.1
1,471.5
8,473.1
1,934.4
10,795.3

2,722.2
1,359.6
8,817.7
2,506.3
10,534.4

1,351.1
1,471.5
8,473.1
1,934.4
10,795.3

101.5%
-7.6%
4.1%
29.6%
-2.4%

-

-

-

55,326.4
9,867.7
22,996.1

$

-

-

$

Percent
Change

126,415.6
146.1
632.7

-

$

2014

132,029.1
161.7
278.5

-

55,994.4
11,989.8
2,222.8

2015

56,168.3
25,919.1
2,222.8
132,029.1
347.8
1,874.2

-

EXPENSES
Governmental activities:
Regional planning
Transportation demand management
Regional customer services
Administration
AZ Lottery fund disbursements
Business-type activities:
Transit service operations
Light rail transit

Business-type
Activities

55,494.3
23,015.0
22,996.1

1.2%
12.6%
-90.3%

126,415.6
285.2
3,130.9

4.4%
21.9%
-40.1%

119,341.3
55,242.5

148,884.7
108,938.3

119,341.3
55,242.5

148,884.7
108,938.3

-19.8%
-49.3%

Total expenses

25,940.2

24,025.4

174,583.8

257,823.0

200,524.0

281,848.4

-28.9%

Excess (deficit) before transfers
Transfers in (out)

120,632.4
(109,915.6)

116,484.2
(113,274.7)

(102,595.1)
109,915.6

(166,995.5)
113,274.7

18,037.3

(50,511.3)
-

-135.7%
N/A

$ (50,511.3)

-135.7%

Increase (decrease) in net position

$

10,716.8

$

3,209.5

$

7,320.5

$ (53,720.8)

$

18,037.3

The largest sources of revenue for the Authority are sales taxes (60.4%). The major funding
sources of governmental activities are sales taxes (90.1%) and federal and state grants (9.5%).
The major funding sources for business-type activities in FY 2015 are charges for services to
member cities (77.8%) and operating grants and contributions (16.7%). The Authority’s overall
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revenues decreased by ($12.8) million, or (5.5%), compared to last fiscal year. Total revenues of
governmental activities increased by $6.1 million, (4.3%) over the previous year primarily due to
increased sales tax revenues, up $5.6 million. Program revenues of business-type activities
decreased by ($18.0) million or (20.4%), compared to last fiscal year. Charges for Services
increased minimally, up $0.7 million 1.2%. Operating grants increased by $2.1 million or 21.5%
primarily due to the IRS Fuel Tax Credit, which increased by $2.3 million. Capital grants and
contributions decreased substantially by $20.8 million due to reductions in federally funded bus
fleet purchases.
Spending of the Authority’s sales tax revenues is limited to funding those activities necessary to
implement the Proposition 400 Transit Life Cycle Program (TLCP). The Public Transportation
Fund (PTF) revenues are restricted to the implementation of the transit element of the Regional
Transportation Plan (RTP). Regional Area Road Fund (RARF) revenue is limited to fund planning
and administration activities of the RTP.
Business-type activities are the largest users of resources for the Authority with $174.6 million of
expenses (87.1%) which include Transit Service operations and Light Rail Transit lead agency
disbursements. Governmental activities expended $25.9 million, with the largest being AZ Lottery
Fund Disbursements of $10.5 million and Regional Customer Services of $8.8 million.
Administration, Regional Planning, and Transportation Demand Management activities totaled
$6.6 million for the year.
Total Primary Government expenses decreased by ($81.3) million, or (28.9%) compared to last
fiscal year. The governmental expenses increased by $1.9 million, or 8.0%, over the prior year.
Regional Planning expenses were up $1.4 million due to the periodic update of the Origins and
Destinations Study. Business-type activity expenses were decreased by ($83.2) million, or
(32.3%), compared to the prior year. The decreases in business-type activity expenses were
($29.5) million for Transit Service Operations (TSO) and ($53.7) million for Light Rail Transit
(VMR).
TSO expense activities decreased by ($29.5) million. Bus service delivery costs increased by
$7.1 million and paratransit service costs increased by $0.9 million. The operating increases were
offset by reductions in non-operating and capital activities. Capital conveyances of bus fleet to
Member Cities decreased by ($20.7) million and Lead Agency disbursements decreased by
($11.0) million. With the Series 2014 bond issue, debt service interest expense increased by $3.1
million recognizing the first full twelve months of interest cost for the new bonds. All other TSO
expense activities decreased by ($1.0) million versus the prior year.
The VMR Fund expense activities decreased by ($53.7) million primarily due to changes in Lead
Agency Disbursements, down ($62.7) million for light rail construction project activities (Central
Mesa Extension (CME) and Northwest Extension (NWE) located in Phoenix). Under a new
funding agreement and related accounting policy, bond-funded disbursements are initially
recorded as a note receivable from Valley Metro Rail, Inc. and subsequently recorded to expense
upon the payment of related bond debt principal. The amount of Note Receivable advance bond
proceeds during FY15 was $69.6 million, which effectively reduced the amount of Lead Agency
disbursements recorded in FY15. The aggregate of Lead Agency Disbursements plus Note
Receivable Advance Bond Proceeds totaled $101.8 million for the year compared to $94.9 million
expended in FY14. The higher overall expenditure level was due to the increased level of
construction activity on the CME and NWE projects. See Note 6 for details of the note receivable.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY’S FUNDS
As previously mentioned, the Authority maintains fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with
budgetary and legal requirements. The following is a brief discussion of financial highlights from
the fund financial statements.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the governmental funds financial statements (pages 20 – 25) is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. The fund balance of the
governmental funds is $63.1 million, an increase of $10.9 million, or 21.0%, from the previous
year. Of the $63.1 million total fund balance, the Authority has designated $3.2 million restricted
for special purpose activities. The remainder is in unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund
(see Note 8 - page 46). Unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year. Of the $63.1 million
fund balance, $59.9 million is unrestricted.
The General Fund accounts for activities that include regional customer service, financial
management and agency administration. General Fund revenues increased $5.5 million (4.0%)
over the previous year. Public Transportation Fund (PTF) sales tax revenue increased by $5.5
million (4.6%) in FY15 to $127.3 million. Regional Area Road Funds (RARF) sales tax revenues
increased slightly by $0.1 million (1.5%) in FY15 to $4.7 million. The sales tax revenue increase
was due to the improving economy in the region. The remaining General Fund revenues
increased by $0.3 million, General Fund expenditures decreased slightly by ($0.3) million (1.3%)
from $21.9 to $21.6 million. Excess General Fund revenues over expenditures were $122.5
million for the year versus $116.8 million in the prior year, up $5.8 million or 4.9%.
The Transit Planning Fund accounts for activities related to the development of strategies to
promote social and economic well-being of the community through the provision of an efficient and
effective regional transit system. Revenues increased from $0.3 million to $1.0 million.
Expenditures increased substantially from $1.4 million to $2.7 million due to the periodic update of
the origins and destinations survey and analysis, which provides passenger information used to
optimize service delivery. Total transfers into the Transit Planning Fund from the General Fund
were $1.7 million, up $0.7 million over the prior year.
The Transportation Demand Management Fund accounts for activities related to the county-wide
ridesharing program, trip reduction program and clean air campaign. From the prior year
revenues from federal CMAQ and state and county grants decreased ($0.1) million to $1.4 million.
Expenditures also decreased ($0.1) million to $1.4 million from the prior year primarily due to
decreases in the trip reduction program costs.
Proprietary Funds
The proprietary fund financial statements (pages 26 – 28) are prepared on the same accounting
basis and measurement focus as the government-wide financial statements, but provide additional
detail since each enterprise fund is a major fund and is shown discretely on the fund statements.
The Transit Service Operations (TSO) Fund accounts for the activities related to the operations of
local and express bus, paratransit and vanpool services for the region. In addition, the TSO Fund
contains PTF bond financing activities to support the Transit Life Cycle Program (TLCP). In FY15,
in order to provide greater transparency for bond financing impacts to the light rail capital program
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(VMR Fund), all bond financing activities related to light rail are now shown in the VMR Fund.
Only bus and paratransit capital financing activities are shown in the TSO Fund.
The TSO Fund net position increased by 65.5 million versus the prior year from ($14.8) million to
$50.7 million. The beginning balance was restated to transfer light rail related debt to the VMR
Fund, adding $76.3 million. An adjustment to record pension liability in accordance with GASB 68
reduced net position by ($1.3) million. See Note 2 for details of the restatement. Activities for
FY15 consisted of the following:
•

•

•
•

•
•

TSO operating revenues of $50.4 million were decreased minimally by ($0.2) million. The
combined revenues from member charges for services and fare revenues accounted for
the majority of the change. Charges to members were favorably impacted by the IRS fuel
tax credit which provided $2.6M funding in FY15.
TSO Operating expenses of $100.4 million increased by $7.5 million (8.1%). Increases in
local and express bus service costs of $7.1 million, with $3.2 million due to cost increases
East Valley bus service (up 5.4%) and $3.2 million due to charges for fixed route bus
services purchased from the City of Phoenix. Of the Phoenix service increase, $2.0 million
was due to an accounting change whereby billings were recorded at full cost of operations
in FY15, while in FY14 billings were net of fares collected. Paratransit service costs
increased by $0.9 million or 8.6% primarily due to increased passenger trips.
Non-Operating revenues of $2.9 million were up by $1.8 million primarily due to IRS fuel
tax credits received of $2.6 million versus $0.3 million last year. Gains on disposal of
capital assets were $0.2 million lower.
Non-operating expenses of $19.1 million decreased by $37.0 million. Capital
conveyances of bus fleet to Member Cities decreased by ($20.7) million. The amounts of
capital conveyances fluctuate from year to year based on cyclical needs to replace bus
fleet. Lead Agency disbursements decreased by ($11.0) million due to reduced levels of
regional bus fleet purchases for which the Authority provides local funding match to federal
grant funds. Debt service costs allocated to the TSO Fund were down ($5.4) million,
primarily due to the allocation of light rail debt service expenses from the TSO Fund to the
VMR Fund.
Capital Contributions of $2.2 million were down ($20.8) million primarily due to reduced
federal funding to support bus fleet and facility purchases during the year.
Net Transfers into the TSO from the General Fund of $54.4 million were up by $23.0
million.

The Valley Metro Rail Fund accounts for staffing and administrative services that are contractually
provided by the Authority to Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR) and the PTF sales tax revenues and
expenses of such funds related to the Regional Transportation Plan approved light rail projects.
Valley Metro Rail, Inc. is a nonprofit corporation organized for the purpose of planning, designing,
constructing, and operating the light rail transit project in metropolitan Phoenix (see Note 1(a) on
page 29).
The VMR Fund has net position of ($35.9) million as of June 30, 2015 as compared to net position
of $38.8 million at the end of the previous year. The beginning balance was restated to transfer
light rail related debt from the TSO Fund to the VMR Fund, reducing net position by ($76.3)
million. In addition, an adjustment to record pension liability in accordance with GASB 68 reduced
net position by ($15.2) million. See Note 2 for details of the restatement. FY15 activities
increased net position by $16.8 million.
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•

•

•

The VMR Fund operating activities are primarily staffing services by RPTA employees
performing work for Valley Metro Rail, Inc. In FY15 operating revenues were $15.0 million
and expenses were $15.1 million. Revenues and expenses were up by approximately
$1.0 million due to expansion of light rail construction and operating activities. Net
operating loss in FY15 was ($0.2) million, primarily due to non-cash accruals which are
funded in future years.
Non Operating expenses include Lead Agency Disbursements to Valley Metro Rail, Inc. to
fund light rail capital project development, design and construction. Disbursements in
FY15 were $32.2 million versus $94.9 million in FY14. Bond Interest expense related to
light rail bond funded activities was $7.9 million in FY15. Interest expenses were partially
offset by Build America Bond Interest Subsidy of $1.3 million and interest income of $0.2
million. Total non-operating expense for the VMR Fund in FY 15 was $38.6 million
Net transfers into the VMR Fund of PTF from the General Fund and bond proceeds from
the TSO fund totaled $55.1 Million for the year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
The Authority revised the adopted FY15 budget down ($32.6) million during the fiscal year,
decreasing the overall budget from $324.6 million to $292.0 million. The primary changes were an
increase to the operating budget of $0.6 million from $153.5 million to $154.1 million for
anticipated demand in the Northwest Valley Dial-a-Ride service. The capital budget change was a
($33.2) million reduction with ($16.9) million decreases due to postponement of fleet purchases,
($14.1) million decrease in bus rapid transit facilities and ($2.2) million reduction for all other
capital expenditures.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
As of June 30, 2015, the Authority had $74.2 million invested in various capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, for its governmental and business-type activities. The overall net
decrease in the Authority’s capital assets for the current fiscal year was ($11.7) million, a decrease
of ($0.1) million for governmental activities and a decrease of ($11.6) million for business-type
activities for the current year. Major capital asset events in the current year attributing to the
increase included the following:
•
•
•

New capital assets added for Governmental Activities were $0.4 million, offset by
depreciation charges of ($0.5) million. Primary additions were computer system upgrades.
New capital assets added for Business Activities were $0.1 million, offset by depreciation
charges of ($11.8) million. Primary additions were site improvements and equipment.
Capital asset retirements for Business Activities were $0.6 million for transit fleet and
equipment.

The following table provides a breakdown of capital assets of the Authority at June 30, 2015 with
comparative information for the previous year. Additional information on the Authority’s capital
assets may be found in Note 9 on pages 47 – 48.
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
As of June 30
(in thousands of dollars)
Governmental
Activities
2015
Non-depreciable assets:
Land
Work-in-progress
Depreciable assets:
Transit fleet
Vehicles
Building
Site improvements
Computers & software
Ticket Vending Machines
Equipment
Furniture & fixtures
Infrastructure
Total assets

$

14.8

2014

$

34.4
167.0
1,348.0
275.9
64.6
$

1,904.7

Business-type
Activities
2015

844.1

$

5,292.0
425.3

55.0
254.5
401.4
341.0
74.2
$

1,970.2

2014

$

44,678.2
53.8
11,353.0
5,135.3
1,090.5
4,288.3
25.3
$

72,341.7
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Total
Primary Government

5,292.0
449.8

2015

$

54,896.6
77.7
11,644.1
5,635.3
1,150.2
4,799.3
27.3
$

83,972.3

5,292.0
440.0

2014

$

44,678.2
88.1
11,353.0
5,302.3
1,348.0
1,090.5
4,564.2
64.6
25.3
$

74,246.4

$

Percent
Change

5,292.0
1,293.9

0.0%
-66.0%

54,896.6
132.7
11,644.1
5,889.8
401.4
1,150.2
5,140.3
74.2
27.3

-18.6%
-33.6%
-2.5%
-10.0%
235.8%
-5.2%
-11.2%
-12.9%
-7.2%

85,942.5

-13.6%

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
Debt Administration
At June 30, 2015, the Authority had total bonded debt outstanding (including unamortized
premium) of $220.6 million related to business-type activities. The Authority has pledged future
transportation excise tax revenues to repay this outstanding debt. The Authority’s current bond
ratings on transportation excise revenue tax bonds are AA+ from Standard & Poor’s and AA from
Fitch.
Business-type
Activities
2015

(in millions of dollars)

Revenue bonds payable:
2009 Bond Series
2014 Bond Series
Plus unamortized premium:
2009 Bond Series premium payable
2014 Bond Series premium payable
Total

$

2014

81.9
115.0

$

3.3
20.4
$

220.6

87.5
115.0
3.7
20.4

$

226.6

The Authority issued its second series of revenue bonds in January 2014 to fund light rail capital
projects. The $115.0 million issue sold at a premium to generate $135.4 million in proceeds. The
bonds mature over a ten year period at a true interest cost of 2.43%.
Additional information on the Authority’s bonded debt and other long-term liabilities can be found
in Note 12 on pages 49 - 51.
ECONOMIC FACTORS and NEXT YEAR’s BUDGET
RPTA undertook a number of key initiatives during FY13, FY14, and FY15, as the agency
continues the implementation of the TLCP operating and capital projects. Funding for these
initiatives comes from a combination of regional sales tax revenues member city service payments
and federal grants.
East Valley Bus Service Unification On January 24, 2013, the Authority’s Board of Directors
unanimously approved an action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with First Transit, Inc.
for unified East Valley fixed route bus operations and maintenance. This action unifies the RPTAmanaged bus operations in Mesa with bus operations in Tempe, which were managed under a
City of Tempe contract. With the unified bus operations contract, management staffing will be
streamlined and economies of scale will be realized for purchasing, training and administrative
functions. In addition, it will equate to lower operating costs as route scheduling is optimized using
the two existing Mesa and Tempe bus operations facilities. The new service delivery contract took
effect July 1, 2013 and expenditures in fiscal year 2014 and 2015 for the program generated
favorable cost per vehicle mile of service when compared with the prior service models.
East Valley Bus Unification
Million Miles of Revenue Service Delivered
East Valley Bus Service Cost $ Millions
Cost per Revenue Mile
% Savings versus FY13

FY13

FY14
10.7
67.3
6.29

$
$

13

$
$

FY15
11.0
60.6
5.51
12%

$
$

10.9
62.5
5.73
9%

Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
East Valley Dial-a-Ride Program (EVDAR) On July 1, 2012, the Authority commenced a pilot
Paratransit service program to serve persons with disabilities and eligible seniors with a new
service delivery model. The new taxi cab delivery model incorporates greater efficiency utilizing
resources from the private sector, while allowing the custom, door-to-door service that passengers
need in their daily travels. In its first year, the program was favorably accepted by the passengers
and reduced the cost per trip from $43 under the former program to $27 per trip under the new
program. Program cost of operation was $6.8 million in FY13 versus $8.8 million in FY12, a $2.0
million savings.
East Valley Dial a Ride Service

FY12

FY13

FY14

FY15

Trips Delivered

202,812

251,830

283,484

303,080

Total Program Cost $M

$

8.80 $

6.80 $

Cost per Trip
$ 43.39 $
27.00 $
(Costs shown are net program cost after fare collection applied)

7.70 $

7.90

27.16 $

26.07

In FY15 EVDAR trips delivered were over 303,000; an increase of over 30% above over FY12
levels. Despite the significant increase in service delivered, overall program costs remain $0.9
million below FY12 levels. Net cost per trip remains well below the former program at $26.07.
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Next Year’s Budget
Funding Sources
The adopted FY16 combined operating and capital budget is $286.9 million (down approximately
12% from fiscal year 2015). Public Transportation Funds are projected to increase by 5% to
$133.9 million with continuing improvement to region’s economy. Federal grants are down by
($4.7) million, primary decrease is due to bus fleet capital funding requirements. Fare revenues
are anticipated to be level with FY15 levels. With the scheduled completion of the Central Mesa
and Northwest LRT extensions to occur in late 2015 and early 2016, construction funding
requirements will drop significantly. Series 2014 bond issue proceeds which were carried forward
will be expended at lower levels in FY16, $38.0 million versus $80.0 million.
RPTA Operating and Capital Budgets Fiscal Years 2016 and 2015
Sources of Funds
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Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Concluded)
Next Year’s Budget
Funding Uses
Decreases to Uses of Funds in fiscal year 2016 versus 2015 total ($38.0) million. Lead Agency
Disbursements are down ($7.5) million primarily due to reduced PTF sales tax transfers to VMR.
Transit service contracts and fuel costs are up $4.9 million due to the scheduled contract rate
increases for East Valley bus services and anticipated increased customer demand for paratransit
service trips. Capital purchases are planned to decrease in FY 2016 by ($4.6) million with
reductions in planned bus fleet deliveries and bus facilities expenditures. Lead Agency Bond
Disbursements are reduced by ($31.0) million due to ramping down of construction activities for
light rail in Phoenix and Mesa.
RPTA Operating and Capital Budgets Fiscal Years 2016 and 2015
Uses of Funds

The decreases in capital expenses correspond to projects programmed in the Transit Life Cycle
Program (TLCP) for fiscal year 2016. The budget is balanced and cash reserves are in place to
cover the continuing light rail expansion activities. Net position in the Government Funds is
anticipated to remain stable. Net position in the Transit Services Funds will decline as
depreciation charges will outpace new capital acquisition.
FINANCIAL CONTACT
The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to
demonstrate accountability for the use of public funds. Questions about any of the information
provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Authority’s Chief Financial Officer, Valley Metro RPTA, 101 N. 1st Avenue, Suite 1300, Phoenix,
AZ 85003.
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REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
AUDIT STANDARDS DISCLOSURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

10120 N. Oracle Road
Tucson, Arizona 85704
Tel (520) 742-2611
Fax (520) 742-2718

January 7, 2016
To the Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority (the Authority) for the
year ended June 30, 2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of
our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter provided to you during
the planning phase of the audit. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the
following matters related to our audit.
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority are
described in Note 1 to the financial statements. Management is responsible for the selection and use
of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies used by Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No
matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you
about the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.
As described in Note 1 of the financial statements, the Authority implemented the provisions of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, for the year ended June 30, 2015. GASB
Statement No. 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize the longterm obligation for pension benefits as a liability, and to more comprehensively and comparably
measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The Statement also enhances accountability and
transparency through revised note disclosures and new required supplementary information.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from management’s current judgments.

Page 1

TUCSON • PHOENIX • FLAGSTAFF
www.heinfeldmeech.com

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements are:




Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on the length
of time management estimates those assets will provide some economic benefit in the future.
Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivable balances is based on
past experience and future expectation for collection of various account balances.
The assumptions used in the actuarial valuations of the pension and other postemployment
benefits plans are based on historical trends and industry standards.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that
they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the
applicable opinion units.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
Audit Adjustments
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. During the course of the audit we did not identify any misstatements which require
communication.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain written representations from management which are included in the
management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of the audit.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation
Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. Management informed us that, and
to our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and
accounting matters.
Discussions with Management
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management throughout the course of the year. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention as the Authority’s auditors.
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Compliance with Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence
The engagement team, others in our firm, and as appropriate, our firm, have complied with all
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. continually
assesses client relationships to comply with relevant ethical requirements, including independence,
integrity, and objectivity, and policies and procedures related to the acceptance and continuance of
client relationships and specific engagements. Our firm follows the “Independence Rule” of the
AICPA Code of Professional Conduct and the rules of state boards of accountancy and applicable
regulatory agencies. It is the policy of the firm that all employees be familiar with and adhere to the
independence, integrity, and objectivity rules, regulations, interpretations, and rulings of the AICPA,
U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO), and applicable state boards of accountancy.
Responsibility for Fraud
It is important for both management and the members of the governing body to recognize their role
in preventing, deterring, and detecting fraud. One common misconception is that the auditors are
responsible for detecting fraud. Auditors are required to plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements do not include material misstatements caused by
fraud. Unfortunately most frauds which occur in an organization do not meet this threshold.
The attached document prepared by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE) is
provided as a courtesy to test the effectiveness of the fraud prevention measures of your organization.
Some of these steps may already be in place, others may not. Not even the most well-designed
internal controls or procedures can prevent and detect all forms of fraud. However, an awareness of
fraud related factors, as well as the active involvement by management and the members of the
governing body in setting the proper “tone at the top”, increases the likelihood that fraud will be
prevented, deterred and detected.
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of the members of the Board of Directors and
management of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority and is not intended to be,
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.
Very truly yours,

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants
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Fraud Prevention Checklist
The most cost-effective way to limit fraud losses is to prevent fraud from occurring. This checklist is
designed to help organizations test the effectiveness of their fraud prevention measures.
1. Is ongoing anti-fraud training provided to all employees of the organization?


Do employees understand what constitutes fraud?



Have the costs of fraud to the company and everyone in it — including lost profits, adverse
publicity, job loss and decreased morale and productivity — been made clear to employees?



Do employees know where to seek advice when faced with uncertain ethical decisions, and
do they believe that they can speak freely?



Has a policy of zero-tolerance for fraud been communicated to employees through words and
actions?

2. Is an effective fraud reporting mechanism in place?


Have employees been taught how to communicate concerns about known or potential
wrongdoing?



Is there an anonymous reporting channel available to employees, such as a third-party
hotline?



Do employees trust that they can report suspicious activity anonymously and/or
confidentially and without fear of reprisal?



Has it been made clear to employees that reports of suspicious activity will be promptly and
thoroughly evaluated?



Do reporting policies and mechanisms extend to vendors, customers and other outside
parties?

3. To increase employees’ perception of detection, are the following proactive measures taken
and publicized to employees?


Is possible fraudulent conduct aggressively sought out, rather than dealt with passively?



Does the organization send the message that it actively seeks out fraudulent conduct through
fraud assessment questioning by auditors?



Are surprise fraud audits performed in addition to regularly scheduled audits?



Is continuous auditing software used to detect fraud and, if so, has the use of such software
been made known throughout the organization?

4. Is the management climate/tone at the top one of honesty and integrity?


Are employees surveyed to determine the extent to which they believe management acts with
honesty and integrity?



Are performance goals realistic?



Have fraud prevention goals been incorporated into the performance measures against which
managers are evaluated and which are used to determine performance-related compensation?



Has the organization established, implemented and tested a process for oversight of fraud
risks by the board of directors or others charged with governance (e.g., the audit committee)?

5. Are fraud risk assessments performed to proactively identify and mitigate the company’s
vulnerabilities to internal and external fraud?
6. Are strong anti-fraud controls in place and operating effectively, including the following?


Proper separation of duties



Use of authorizations



Physical safeguards



Job rotations



Mandatory vacations

7. Does the internal audit department, if one exists, have adequate resources and authority to
operate effectively and without undue influence from senior management?
8. Does the hiring policy include the following (where permitted by law)?


Past employment verification



Criminal and civil background checks



Credit checks



Drug screening



Education verification



References check

9. Are employee support programs in place to assist employees struggling with addictions,
mental/ emotional health, family or financial problems?
10. Is an open-door policy in place that allows employees to speak freely about pressures,
providing management the opportunity to alleviate such pressures before they become
acute?
11. Are anonymous surveys conducted to assess employee morale?

VALLEY METRO
REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

VALLEY METRO REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONTENTS

Page

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

1

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on
Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

3

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

6

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

7

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

8

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

11

10120 N. Oracle Road
Tucson, Arizona 85704
Tel (520) 742-2611
Fax (520) 742-2718

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund of Valley
Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Valley Metro Regional
Public Transportation Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 21, 2015. Our report included an emphasis of matter paragraph as to
comparability because of the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 68, as amended by Statement No. 71.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Valley Metro
Regional Public Transportation Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Valley Metro Regional Public
Transportation Authority’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. An other matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item FS
2015-001.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants

December 21, 2015
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Required by OMB Circular A-133
Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. Valley Metro Regional Public
Transportation Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Valley Metro Regional
Public Transportation Authority’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Valley
Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
and each major fund of Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority’s basic financial statements.
We issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2015, which contained unmodified opinions
on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements.
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The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants

December 21, 2015
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VALLEY METRO REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title

CFDA
Number

Pass-Through
Grantor

Pass-Through
Identifying Number

Amount
provided to
Subrecipients

Total Expenditures
and Transfers

U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Administration
Metropolitan Transportation Planning and State and
Non-Metropolitan Planning and Research
Federal Transit - Formula Grants
Federal Transit - Formula Grants
Federal Transit - Formula Grants
Federal Transit - Formula Grants
Federal Transit - Formula Grants
Subtotal CFDA No. 20.507

20.505 ADOT

AZ-14-0004

20.507
20.507
20.507
20.507
20.507

AZ-90-X103
AZ-90-X109
AZ-90-X114
AZ-90-X124
AZ-90-X128

City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix

$

21,766
1,107,504
999,994
1,572,025
5,444,019
1,359,283
10,482,825

Public Transportation Research, Technical Assistance and Training

20.514 Operation Lifesaver

Transit Services Programs Cluster
Enhanced Mobility For Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Enhanced Mobility For Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Subtotal CFDA No. 20.513

20.513 City of Phoenix
20.513 City of Phoenix

AZ-16-002
AZ-16-003

463,000
414,177
877,177

Job Access and Reverse Commute Program
Job Access and Reverse Commute Program
Job Access and Reverse Commute Program
Subtotal CFDA No. 20.516

20.516 City of Phoenix
20.516 City of Phoenix
20.516 City of Phoenix

AZ-37-X011
AZ-37-X017
AZ-37-X018

50,000
168,774
74,000
292,774

New Freedom Program
New Freedom Program
New Freedom Program
Subtotal CFDA No. 20.521

20.521 City of Phoenix
20.521 City of Phoenix
20.521 City of Phoenix

AZ-57-X012
AZ-57-X016
AZ-57-X016

133,134
81,327
100,000
314,461

N/A

7,500

Total Transit Services Programs Cluster
Formula Grants for Rural Areas
Formula Grants for Rural Areas
Formula Grants for Rural Areas
Subtotal CFDA No. 20.509

$

100,000

1,484,412
20.509 ADOT
20.509 ADOT
20.509 ADOT

AZ-18-0054
AZ-18-0060
AZ-18-0066

23,682
11,973
274,468
310,122

Total Federal Transit Administration

12,306,625

100,000

Federal Highway Administration
Highway Research and Development Program

20.200 ADOT

Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Subtotal CFDA No. 20.205

20.205 MAG
20.205 Maricopa County
20.205 Maricopa County

JPA 11-0051

135,306

413
C-85-10-021-3-01
C85-11-004-6-00

578,704
336,151
260,008
1,174,863

Total Federal Highway Administration
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
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1,310,169
$

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

13,616,794

$

100,000

VALLEY METRO REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1.

General
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
award programs of the Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority (the
“Authority”) for the year ended June 30, 2015. All federal awards received are passed
through the City of Phoenix, Arizona Department of Transportation, Maricopa County
and Maricopa Association of Governments. Federal financial award activities are
reported in the general, special revenue and enterprise funds in the Authority’s fund
financial statements. The information in the schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Office of Management & Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the Authority.

2.

Basis of Accounting and Reporting Entity
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using a
basis of accounting that is consistent with the basic financial statements, as is described
in Note 1 of the Authority’s basic financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized
following the cost principles contained in the applicable OMB Cost Principles Circular,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.
The Authority, for purposes of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, includes
all funds of the primary government as defined by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.

3.

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Numbers
The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2015 Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance.

4.

Pass-Through Grantors Reference
The Authority receives all federal awards as pass-through from other governmental and
nonprofit agencies. Abbreviations are as follows:
ADOT
MAG

Arizona Department of Transportation
Maricopa Association of Governments

5.

Period of Award
There is no specified time period in which the grant award must be spent.

6.

Federal Assistance not included
Expenditures related to assistance not considered federal awards in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 have not been presented in this schedule as follows:
Build America Bond Subsidies
Federal Grant Interest Subsidy

Page 7

$ 522,386
1,062,442

VALLEY METRO REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
 Material weakness(es) identified?
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

yes
yes

X
X

no
none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

yes

X

no

yes
yes

X
X

no
none reported

X

no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
 Material weakness(es) identified?
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

yes

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers
20.507

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Federal Transit – Formula Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type
B programs:

$408,503

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

X
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yes

no

VALLEY METRO REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Reference Number: FS 2015-001
Type of Finding: Other Matter
Description: Excessive and/or Unallowable Travel Costs and Reimbursements

CRITERIA
Government Auditing Standards paragraph 4.07 requires that instances of abuse be reported.
Abuse as defined by Government Auditing Standards involves behavior that is deficient or
improper when compared with behavior that a prudent person would consider reasonable and
necessary business practice given the facts and circumstances. Abuse does not necessarily
involve fraud, or noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant
agreements.
CONDITION/CONTEXT
There are claims of excessive and/or unallowable travel costs and reimbursements of the former
Chief Executive Officer. Expenses for travel to conferences and relocation costs were incurred
since the date of hire in 2010. The Chief Executive Officer’s resignation was accepted in
December 2015.
CAUSE
The review and approval process for travel expenses and reimbursements was not properly
designed.
EFFECT/POTENTIAL EFFECT
There may have been an abuse or misuse of public funds beyond what was prudent and
necessary for the circumstances. There has been no formal determination on the matter and it is
under investigation as of report issuance.
RECOMMENDATION
The Authority should review the matter and revise policies and procedures accordingly.
VIEWS OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS AND PLANNED CORRECTIVE ACTIONS
Claims of excessive and/or unallowable travel are being investigated by an independent auditor,
City of Phoenix Internal Auditor. The travel and employee expense review commenced
December 9, 2015 and is anticipated to be completed in February 2016. The RPTA Board of
Directors has taken action to establish a new reporting structure whereby the General Counsel
and Chief Financial Officer will have a dual reporting relationship to the Chief Executive Officer
and to the Board. Travel expenses will be reported in detail to the Board on a regular basis.
The travel expenses of the Chief Executive Officer are 100% funded with local sources and no
federal programs were charged with Chief Executive Officer travel.
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VALLEY METRO REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARDS
None reported.
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VALLEY METRO REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Status of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
The Valley Metro Regional Public Transportation Authority had no findings or questioned costs
related to federal awards noted in prior audits that require a status.
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4B

SUBJECT
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Audit Services
PURPOSE
To request Board authorization for the Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to issue a
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Audit Services. The RFP will be conducted
as a joint procurement process with Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR).
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
The Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) and (VMR), collectively (the
AGENCIES), are jointly seeking permission to solicit proposals from qualified firms of
certified public accountants to audit the AGENCIES financial statements for the fiscal
years ending June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018 with the option of auditing the AGENCIES
financial statements for the two subsequent fiscal years.
These audits are to be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the General Accounting Office’s
(GAO) Government Accounting Standards, the provisions of the federal Single Audit of
1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Scope of the audits include:
 Express opinion on Financial Statements in conformance with GAAP
o Document and test account balances and internal controls to confirm
statements are free from material error.
o Review the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) required
elements including Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and
Required Supplemental Information (RSI)


Tests internal controls for federal programs (Single Audit Act)
o Internal controls related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer
of opinion) on compliance with laws, regulations, contracts which could
have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance
with the Single Act Audit Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133



NTD-review of data submitted to the National Transit Database



Supplemental internal control review procedures
o Internal control testing to include review of compliance with policy and
procedures in the following areas:
 Travel Expense
 Credit Card expenditures

VALLEY METRO • 101 N 1ST AVE • STE 1300 • PHOENIX AZ • 85003 • 602-262-7433

 Contracts and procurement
o Auditor will provide report of findings in conformance with best
practices
The award to a certified public accounting firm will consist of one (1) joint contract with
RPTA and VMR. VMR will fund and manage its portion of the contract of the services.
COST AND BUDGET
A three-year cost estimate for Regional Public Transportation Authority’s portion of the
service is $150,000. The award estimate is based on historical level of effort with a
three percent growth factor for auditor rates. RPTA’s portion is funded through a
variety of funding sources through RPTA’s overhead allocation.
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:
 Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o
Tactic E: Maintain strong fiscal controls to support Valley Metro’s long-term
sustainability.
COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors authorization for the
Interim CEO to issue a RFP under a joint procurement process with Valley Metro Rail,
Inc. for contracted Financial Audit Services.
CONTACT
John McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-495-5054
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4C

SUBJECT
2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation Agenda
PURPOSE
To request approval of the 2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation Agenda.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Each year, Valley Metro works with member city intergovernmental staff to develop a
federal public transportation legislative agenda. The agenda provides information to
member cities to bring attention to the importance of federal involvement in public
transportation in the Phoenix metropolitan region.
In December 2015, Congress enacted long-term, fully funded transportation legislation
for the first time in a decade. The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act
authorizes surface transportation programs and is fully funded through September
2020. The total authorized funding for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) programs is
increased by $61.1 billion over the life of the bill – a 17.7 percent increase over current
annual funding levels.
Congress also reached an historic agreement that puts an end to the annual debate
whether to restore parity to transit commuter tax benefits at the end of 2015. There is
now permanent parity between parking and transit tax benefits. Congress also included
a two-year extension of tax credits for the use of alternative fuels for 2015 and 2016.
This is a significant benefit for Valley Metro with its large fleet of alternatively fueled
vehicles.
Staff has developed the attached federal agenda for 2016 with goals to:






Express our appreciation to Congress and the Administration for the enactment
of the FAST Act and permanent extension of the parity between parking and
transit tax benefits;
Encourage Congress to support budget and appropriations bills that fully fund
authorized amounts for public transportation in the FAST Act;
Monitor FAST Act provisions being implemented by the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA);
Pursue grant opportunities through discretionary programs authorized as part of
the FAST Act; and
Support a permanent extension of the alternative fuels tax credit.
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COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE ACTION
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors approval of the 2016
Federal Public Transportation Agenda.
CONTACT
John Farry
Government Relations Officer
602-744-5550
jfarry@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation Agenda

2

SPRING 2016

VALLEY METRO

DRAFT

Federal Public Transportation
AGENDA

The Valley Metro Boards of Directors would like to express our appreciation to Congress and the Administration for the
enactment of the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act of 2015. The federal government is a critical partner
supporting local and regional public transportation systems in metropolitan Phoenix. The FAST Act will provide this region
with a five-year commitment of authorized funding that will help maintain and expand the regional transit system that
serves nearly four million residents and over 16 million visitors annually.
AS A REGION, OUR STRATEGIES IN 2016 ARE TO:

TRANSIT-RELATED TAX LAW CHANGES:

•• Support budget and appropriations bills that fully fund
authorized amounts in the FAST Act. Investing in
transportation infrastructure results in higher
economic growth.

•• A historic agreement that puts an end to the
annual debate to restore parity to transit commuter
tax benefits.

>
		
		
		
		
>
		

Monitor FAST Act provisions being implemented 		
by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 		
especially the Capital Investment Grant Program, 		
to promote fair evaluation of our light rail and 		
streetcar projects that are eligible for federal funding.
Encourage the development of guidance by 		
the FTA for the Program of Inter-Related Projects.

•• Pursue grant opportunities
>
		
		
		
		

The region will seek opportunities related to the Bus
and Bus Facilities program, the TIGER program and
other grants as they become available. The FAST Act
provides a significant increase to the Bus and Bus
Facilities program (89 percent over the life of the bill).

>
		
>
		

At the end of 2015, Congress passed the package 		
of tax extenders.
There is now permanent parity between parking 		
and transit tax benefits.

•• Alternative fuels tax credit
> The package of tax extenders also included a
		 two-year extension of tax credits for the use of
		 alternative fuels for 2015 and 2016.
> Pursue the permanent extension of the 			
		 alternative fuels tax credit.
> More than 70% of the Valley Metro bus fleet is 		
		 powered with alternative fuel that is domestically 		
		produced.
Thank you for enacting a long-term, fully funded
transportation authorization bill. The FAST Act will allow
us to plan and program on a multi-year basis to improve
and maintain the public transportation system and
infrastructure in the Phoenix metropolitan region.

MKQ2409

•• Monitor and provide input on the implementation
of the FAST Act.

John Farry
Government Relations Officer
602.744.5550 | jfarry@valleymetro.org

DATE
Revised February 2, 2106

AGENDA ITEM 5

SUBJECT
Fiscal Year 2016 (FY16) Second Quarter Reports
PURPOSE
To provide an informational update of activities at Valley Metro.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Quarterly Reports are provided as an informational update of Valley Metro activities.







Operations
Safety and Security
Planning

Communication & Marketing
Finance

COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for information
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for information
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Ray Abraham
Operations and Maintenance Director
602-262-7433
rabraham@valleymetro.org
Adrian Ruiz
Director Safety and Security
602-262-7433
aruiz@valleymetro.org

Hillary Foose
Director, Communication & Marketing
602-262-7433
hfoose@valleymetro.org
John P. McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-262-7433
jmccormack@valleymetro.org

Wulf Grote, P.E.
Director of Planning & Development
602-322-4420
wgrote@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
Quarterly Reports
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1/27/2016

Operations & Maintenance
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Regional Ridership
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
Bus
Light Rail

July
4,102,136
1,012,071

Aug
4,727,400
1,169,454

Sept
4,877,391
1,373,224

Oct
4,977,536
1,438,683

Nov
4,414,888
1,291,298

Dec
4,405,458
1,198,892

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

Bus

13,706,927

14,773,527

13,797,882

Light Rail

3,554,749

3,640,861

3,928,873

Total

17,261,676

18,414,388

17,726,755
2
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1/27/2016

Fixed Route Bus – East Valley
Performance Indicator

Target

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

≥ 93%

93%

92%

91%

Complaints Per 100,000
Boardings

≤ 41

38

42

42

Mechanical Failures Per
100,000 Revenue Miles

≤ 19

9

7

12

≥ 80%

100%

100%

100%

--

4,084,545

4,357,948

4,118,744

On-Time Performance

Preventative Maintenance
Inspections - % On-Time
Ridership

3

Fixed Route Bus – West Valley
Performance Indicator

Target

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

≥ 93%

94%

91%

92%

Complaints Per 100,000
Boardings

≤ 41

10

7

16

Mechanical Failures Per
100,000 Revenue Miles

≤ 19

12

10

6

≥ 80%

100%

100%

100%

--

137,315

145,837

130,141

On-Time Performance

Preventative Maintenance
Inspections - % On-Time
Ridership

4
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1/27/2016

Customer Service – Call Center
Performance Indicator

Target

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

Calls Received

--

367,338

395,371

353,352

Complaints Processed

--

8,201

7,198

7,092

NextRide Inquiries Handled by
Interactive Voice Response
(IVR)

--

351,588

368,434

356,929

NextRide Inquiries Handled by
Text Messaging

--

609,180

708,239

563,969

Average Talk Time

--

2:24

2:17

2:17

≤ 1.00

0:45

0:51

0:40

Average Speed of Answer

5
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Safety & Security
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Bus Accidents
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10
0

Total

83

*NTD

59

57

No NTD
Reportable
Incidents

1

0

3

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

*NTD: National Transit Database‐fatality/injury with transport for 1 or more persons/25K damage

3 minor injuries with
transport

2

1
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Dial-a-Ride Accidents
14

Total
*NTD

12
10
8
6

8
6

5
No NTD
Reportable
Incidents

4
2

1

0

0

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

0
FY16 Q1

No NTD
Reportable
Incidents

*NTD: National Transit Database‐fatality/injury with transport for 1 or more persons/25K damage

3

Police Incidents-Bus
14
12

Total
*NTD

12

10
8
6
4

4

2

5

0

0
FY16 Q1

No incidents reported for FY 16 Q2
elevating to personal injury or
system security events.
No damage < $500

FY16 Q2

*NTD: National Transit Database‐Incidents affecting system security or personal security‐injury‐damage exceeding 25K

4
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Planning and Accessible Transit
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Transit Planning Projects
Name

Type

Project
Complete

Transit Standards /
Performance Measures

Agency
Standards

Summer
2016

Study

Spring
2016

Buckeye Transit Plan

Avondale Transit Plan

Study

Late
2015

Status
•

Continued Phase III work (fleet
allocation and long range planning
framework)

•
•

Identified recommended circulator
alternative
Finalized long term service options

•
•

Presented to Avondale Council
Project complete

2
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Transit Planning Projects
Type

Project
Complete

Peoria Transit Plan

Study

Late
2015

•
•

Presented to Peoria Council
Project complete

Surprise Transit Plan

Study

Late
2015

•

Tabled pending completion of other
studies and member direction

•
•
•

KC1
Draft Final Report received
Public meeting scheduled
Board presentation scheduled: February
2016

Name

Regional Paratransit Study

Study

ASU Transit Needs Study

Study

Early
2016

Status

Late 2015 •

Project on hold
3

Transit Planning Projects
Type

Project
Complete

Peoria Transit Facility
Study

Study

Spring
2016

Southeast Valley Transit
System Study

Study

Late
2015

Survey

Early
2016

Name

2015 Origin and
Destination Study

Status

•

Study was put on hold until a service
implementation plan was developed

•

Project complete

•
•

Final draft report received
Board presentation scheduled: March
2016

4
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Grand Avenue Transit
Feasibility Study
Project Complete

Current Phase

Summer 2016

Feasibility Study

Status

• Finalizing Working Paper #4, Transit Service Concepts
• Beginning evaluation of scenarios for short, mid, and
long term transit service along the corridor.

5

Accessible Transit Services
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016
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Dial-a-Ride – East Valley
Performance Indicator
One-Way Trips
On-Time Performance
Complaints Per 1,000 Trips
Cost Per Trip

Target

FY16Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

--

78,791

76,702

79,840

≥ 95%

97%

98%

97%

≤ 1.5

2.9

1.8

2.1

--

$25.57

$25.1

$25.58

7

7

8

8

Dial-a-Ride – West Valley
Performance Indicator

Target

FY16Q1

FY 15 Q2

FY16 Q2

--

24,957

22,041

25,533

On-Time Performance

≥ 95%

97%

98%

98%

Complaints Per 1,000 Trips

≤ 1.5

0.4

0.3

0.6

--

$24.47

$23.30

$24.93

One-Way Trips

Cost Per Trip

4
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Other Accessibility Services
FY16Q1

FY 15 Q2

FY16 Q2

RideChoice Trips

12,452

13,364

12,064

Cost Per Trip

$11.06

$14.03

$11.19

Platinum Pass Trips

22,447

28,341

25,093

Cost Per Trip

$0.71

$0.77

$0.75

976

993

1,037

Unconditional

66%

62%

66%

Conditional

21%

24%

21%

Temporary

10%

12%

11%

Denials

3%

2%

2%

Performance Indicator

ADA Applicants

9

9

Accessible Transit Services Highlights
• Continued developing the next paratransit contractor
RFP.
– Developed draft scope work
– A Request for Expressions of Interest will be issues next
quarter

10
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Communication & Marketing
FY16 Q2 Report

February 2016

Communications Update
• Prep for College Football
Playoffs
–
–
–
–

66 volunteer ambassadors
127,000 rail riders
6k+ visitors to /azchampgame
Coordination w/ Operations,
Safety, Phoenix & Glendale

• Social media growth
– 7,934 on FB (+8.4%)
– 8,949 on Twitter (+7%)
2
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1/27/2016

Community Relations Update
• Continuation of CME activities:
– Safety outreach with winter
visitors
– ADA travel training

• NWE station & vehicle
test milestones
– Announced 3/19 opening

• Cool Transit STUFF contest
– 3rd grade artists featured in ‘16
calendar
3

Commute Solutions Update
• CAC Awards Luncheon
• Rideshare Month
– 1,600+ pledges, 24% new to
ShareTheRide.com (STR)
– 231 tons of pollution saved

• 38,800 active users of STR
– 385 custom, employer
subsites

• Alt. mode campaign
underway
4
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1/27/2016

Marketing Update
• Service change notification
– Distribution of Oct. ‘15 book
& related signage
– Communication of April ‘16
proposed changes

• Discretionary Rider
campaign
– Prep for Jan. ‘16 launch
– Gas toppers, billboards,
print & online
5
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Finance Division
FY16 Q2 Report

February 2016

Valley Metro RPTA
Operating Results – Q2
RPTA Budget vs. Actual Report

$ Millions

For the quarter ending December 31, 2015
2nd Quarter
Operations Expenditures
Fixed Route Bus
Paratransit
Vanpool
Regional Services
Planning
Administration
METRO Rail (Salary, Fringe, OH)
Total Operations Expenditures

Budget
21.0
7.9
0.3
2.8
0.6
0.6
4.3
37.5

Year to Date
Actual
20.3
7.2
0.2
2.5
0.4
0.4
4.0
35.0

Variance
(Unfav.)
0.7
0.7
0.1
0.3
0.2
0.2
0.3
2.5

Budget
41.9
15.7
0.5
5.6
1.2
1.2
8.7
74.8

Actual
40.9
14.8
0.5
4.7
0.9
1.0
7.7
70.5

Variance
(Unfav.)
1.0
0.9
0.0
0.9
0.2
0.2
1.0
4.2

Agency FTE's Budget vs. Actual
For the quarter ending December 31, 2015
2nd Quarter
Valley Metro Integrated
Staff (Full Time Equivalents)

Budget
312

Actual
280

Variance
(Unfav.)
32

2
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Open Positions Status
Valley Metro Integrated Agency
FY 2016 Adopted Positions ‐ Status Update
Division

FY16 ‐ Q1
Sep Open

FY16 ‐ Q2
Dec Open

25

20

Operations and Maintenance
Human Resources

2

2

Planning & Accessible Transit

0

1

Safety & Security

0

0

Information Technology

4

4

Communication & Marketing

1

0

Design & Construction
Finance
Executive
Legal

1
2
0
2

0
2
1
2

Total Open Positions

37
12%

32
10%

Total Authorized Positions

312

312

3

Valley Metro RPTA
Capital Results – Q2
RPTA Budget vs. Actual Report

$ Millions

For the quarter ending December 31, 2015
2nd Quarter

Year to Date

Budget

Actual

Variance
(Unfav.)

Bus Purchases
Valley Metro
Lead Agency

2.2
3.9

0.0
0.0

2.2
3.9

4.4
7.8

0.0
0.0

4.4
7.8

Paratransit Vehicles
Lead Agency

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.0

0.2

Vanpool Vehicles
Other Capital
METRO Rail
Total Capital Expenditures

1.1
2.2
16.0
25.5

2.1
0.4
14.4
16.9

(1.0)
1.8
1.6
8.6

2.1
4.4
32.0
50.9

2.1
0.4
39.4
41.9

0.0
4.0
(7.4)
9.0

Capital Expenditures

Budget

Actual

Variance
(Unfav.)

4
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DATE
Revised February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 6

SUBJECT
April 2016 Valley Metro Transit Service Changes
PURPOSE
To request Board authorization for the Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to amend
service operator contracts and member agency Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs)
as necessary to accommodate recommended April 2016 service changes.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Effective April 25, 2016, a few Valley Metro transit service changes are proposed
throughout the region. The service changes were proposed and reviewed in
coordination with the Valley Metro Service Planning Working Group (SPWG),
comprising of representatives from Valley Metro member agencies.
SPWG meetings were held to coordinate the proposed changes. In addition, Valley
Metro worked with each affected member agency regarding the proposed changes and
funding impacts. Public outreach was conducted. The proposed changes include
service enhancements and modifications. This summary includes bus service changes
for Valley Metro-operated routes and routes funded through the regional Public
Transportation Fund (PTF). Changes that would specifically affect other locally funded
service from different operating agencies (e.g. Phoenix) are not addressed herein.
Recommended Route and Schedule Changes:
 Mesa Downtown BUZZ: Revert to April 2015 routing generally along University
Dr., Alma School Rd. and Cherry St.


Route 72 – Scottsdale/Rural: In Scottsdale and Tempe, improve frequency to
10 minutes from Camelback Rd. to Tempe Transportation Center.



Route 81 –Hayden/McClintock: Modify the routing to service the intersection of
Pima Road and Indian Bend Road.

Appendix A depicts recommended changes to the existing routes. Changes resulting
only in schedule adjustments are not included. Valley Metro has prepared a Title VI
Evaluation Report, which is available upon request.
Public Outreach
Valley Metro conducted community outreach from November 1 to December 2 to notify
the public and solicit input on the recommended service changes. Transit users have
submitted feedback through a variety of methods provided by the Agency.
VALLEY METRO • 101 N 1ST AVE • STE 1300 • PHOENIX AZ • 602-262-7433



Input Opportunities:
 Public hearing was conducted on December 1, 2015
 Webinar conducted on November 18, 2015
 Online comment card
 Via email at input@valleymetro.org
 Social media



Communication Channels:
 Six advertisements were placed in the Arizona Republic (2), East Valley
Tribune, La Prensa Hispana, La Voz and Arizona Informant. They included
information regarding the proposed route changes, public comment period
and public hearing.
 Transit vehicle announcements (Route Scout)
 A-frame signage at key transit locations
 Email notices to riders and Trip Reduction Program employers
 Press release resulting in news coverage
 Social media posts
 Website (valleymetro.org/servicechanges)
 Internal communication to staff and contractors

Total comments received: 57.
Comments received regarding recommended service changes: 15.
 In favor of recommended changes
9
 Not in favor
1
 Not sure
5
Valley Metro, in coordination with affected agencies, reviewed the public comments.
COST AND BUDGET
The following table provides a summary of the estimated annual costs of the
recommended service changes and adjustments necessary to Valley Metro’s operating
contracts and member agency IGAs. The category of “Other Costs” includes primarily
fuel and insurance. Costs for changes that do not impact Valley Metro-operated routes
and routes not funded through PTF are also excluded from this table.

2

Estimated FY17 Annual Costs of Service Changes
(dollars in thousands)
Contractor
Funding Agency
Other Gross
(base cost)
Route
Credits* (estimated net)
Costs Costs
First Transit (VM)
Mesa
RPTA
BUZZ
-$49
-$8
-$57
-$6
-$51
$0
72
$670
$156
$826
-$202
$0
$624
81
$33
$8
$41
-$10
$0
$31
Total
$654
$156
$810
-$219
-$51
$654
*Includes federal preventive maintenance credits and a 15% fare recovery ratio where applicable.

Contract adjustments for minor bus service changes that do not require an amendment
to the IGAs will be made through the year-end reconciliation process.
COMMITTEE ACTION
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RELEVANCE TO STRATEGIC PLAN
This item addresses three goals in the Board-adopted FY16-20 Strategic Plan:
 Goal 1: Increase customer focus
o Tactic A: Improve customer satisfaction
 Goal 2: Advance performance based operations
o Tactic A: Operate an effective, reliable, high-performing transit system
 Goal 3: Grow transit ridership
o Tactic A: Expand and improve transit services to reach new markets
o Tactic B: Improve connectivity of transit services for greater effectiveness
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors authorization for the
Interim CEO to amend service operator contracts and member agency
Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs), as necessary, to accommodate the
recommended April 2016 service changes.
CONTACT
Wulf Grote, P.E.
Director, Planning and Accessible Transit Services
602-322-4420
wgrote@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A – Figures depicting recommended bus route changes

3

Appendix A
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DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 7

SUBJECT
Regional ADA Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride Service Plan – Final Report and
Recommendations
PURPOSE
To request Board acceptance of the Regional ADA Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride Service
Plan and approval of its recommended regional paratransit policies which are outlined in
the full Regional ADA Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride Service Plan final report and in the
Executive Summary.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
The previous Regional Paratransit Plan was completed and accepted by the Valley
Metro Board of Directors in April 2008. In November 2015, the Board of Directors was
provided with an update on the work of the Regional ADA Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride
Service Plan. The work is now complete and the recommendations are ready for the
Board’s consideration.
Although service enhancements made as a result of the 2008 study have significantly
improved the ability of seniors and people with disabilities to use DAR and the region’s
other transit services, there remains a significant amount of inconsistency and areas for
improvement among the service policies and procedures of the region’s four DAR
systems.
Valley Metro issued a Task Order under the Planning Support Services Contract for the
purpose of updating the 2008 Regional Paratransit Plan. Valley Metro and its
consultants have worked closely with a Technical Working Group (TWG) comprising
Valley Metro and member agency staff. The TWG has met eight times and a number of
individual briefings have been held with member agencies.
The Plan is focused on ADA required paratransit services and addresses two primary
objectives:
1. Increase the consistency of policies and procedures of all DAR services in the
region, recognizing that some jurisdictions will continue with locally decided
practices.
2. Improve policies and procedures for inter-region travel.
The Plan Final Report Includes:
 Updated descriptions of existing DAR systems in the Valley
 Assessment of the 2008 Regional Paratransit Plan recommendations
implemented
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The results of an on-line and a telephone survey
Comparison of the policies and procedures of the region’s DAR systems with
those of the paratransit systems operated by a number of peer agencies
Identification of the inconsistencies in current policies, procedures and practices
of the valley’s DAR providers
Development of a policy to comply with new ADA requirements requiring
“Reasonable Modifications” to transit and paratransit policies, procedures and
practices which are necessary to ensure accessibility for people with disabilities
(Presented to the Valley Metro Board in June and implemented on July 1, 2015)
Recommended modifications to individual DAR provider policies and procedures
to increase the consistency of ADA service across the region (outlined in the
attached Executive Summary)
Development of a comprehensive policy for providing regional ADA trips (trips
which cross jurisdictional boundaries) in a standardized manner and eliminating
the need for DAR transfers

In addition to ongoing involvement from member agencies through the TWG, the plan
has included ongoing involvement from the disability community, including:
 An on-line and telephone survey of DAR customers from across the region, with
over 450 responses received
 A Stakeholders’ Group, comprising DAR customers, paratransit providers, and
representatives of agencies and organizations serving the disability community
which met several time for an exchange of ideas
 A public comment period and a public meeting (January 27, 2016) to obtain
public comment on the proposed recommendations
If approved by the Valley Metro Board of Directors, each DAR service provider in the
region will also be asked to approve the regional policies identified in the Regional ADA
Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride Service Plan. In cooperation with member agencies, staff
will develop a detailed implementation plan which will include public outreach and
education. The goal is that all approved regional policies, including the implementation
of seamless regional paratransit for cross-jurisdictional ADA trips will be implemented
on July 1, 2016.
COST AND BUDGET
The regional policies recommended are in many cases already being practiced, or they
represent minor changes in the way some paratransit providers operate, such that more
consistency will be brought to the region as a whole. Cost for these policy changes are
negligible.
The projected gross cost for Valley Metro to provide cross-jurisdictional ADA paratransit
trips without transfers is approximately $1.3 million. It is proposed that each member
agency pay the cost for ADA eligible trips which its ADA certified residents take. Each
agency will determine how to fund its share of the budget for regional service, but in
2

general, the cost of these trips will be covered with a mix of Public Transit Funds (PTF),
Arizona Lottery Funds (ALF), other member agency funds, and passenger fares.
The projected number of regional trips developed by our Regional Paratransit Plan
consultant is based on the elimination of Dial-a-Ride transfers currently taking place. In
addition to these trips, Valley Metro currently exempts customers from making transfers
when:




The customer’s disability or health condition prevents him/her from transferring
safely.
The customer is traveling to or from an agency which has a transfer exemption
on file for clients traveling to and from agency-based services.
The customer is traveling to or from an area within one mile of the East Valley or
Northwest Valley Dial-a-Ride service area.

Because these trips (which are currently provided as one-seat trips without transfer) will
fall under a new regional Dial-a-Ride service, they will be subject to all regional Dial-aRide policies and procedures, and they will be funded in the same manner as all other
regional Dial-a-Ride trips.
A detailed budget for new regional services in addition to current services will be
included within the Valley Metro proposed FY17 Operating and Capital Budget. Contract
Obligations beyond FY17 will be incorporated into the Valley Metro RPTA Five-Year
Operating Forecast and Capital Program (FY2017 through FY2021).
A portion of these expenses represent the cost of service which is currently being
provided by other Dial-a-Ride providers, including Phoenix, Glendale and Peoria. These
programs may experience cost reductions and/or increased service capacity as a result
of regional trips being provided by Valley Metro.
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020.
 Goal 1: Increase customer focus
o Tactic A: Improve customer satisfaction
o Tactic B: Evaluate and enhance passenger safety and security
o Tactic E: Enhance services and facilities for seniors and people with
disabilities.
 Goal 2: Advance performance-based operations
o Tactic A: Operate an effective, reliable, high-performing transit system
 Goal 3: Grow Transit Ridership
o Tactic B: Improve connectivity of transit services for greater effectiveness
COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: October 20, 2015 for information
TMC: November 4, 2015 for information
3

Board of Directors: November 19, 2015 for information
RPTA Financial Working Group: December 28, 2015 for information
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the TMC forward to the Board of Directors acceptance of the
Regional ADA Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride Service Plan and approval of its
recommended regional paratransit policies which are outlined in the full Regional ADA
Paratransit and Dial-A-Ride Service Plan final report and in the Executive Summary.
CONTACT
Wulf Grote, P.E.
Director, Planning and Accessible Transit
602-322-4420
wgrote@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
Regional Paratransit Plan Update Executive Summary
Full report available upon request.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Valley Metro, together with its member communities and Maricopa County, administers
and operates seven Dial-A-Ride (DAR) services throughout the region. These services
provide “Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) paratransit” to persons with disabilities
who, because of their disabilities, cannot use the fixed route bus and rail system.
Several DARs also provide “Non-ADA” service to seniors.
Current DAR Services in the Valley Metro Area
DAR Service
East Valley DAR
Northwest Valley DAR

Phoenix DAR
Paradise Valley DAR
Southwest Valley DAR
Glendale DAR
Peoria DAR

Cities Served
Chandler, Gilbert, Mesa,
Scottsdale, Tempe
El Mirage, Surprise, Youngtown,
and unincorporated areas of
Maricopa County (including Sun
City and Sun City West)
Phoenix
Paradise Valley
Avondale, Goodyear, Litchfield
Park, and Tolleson
Glendale
Peoria

Administering Organization
Valley Metro
Valley Metro

City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Glendale
City of Peoria

Operating policies and procedures often vary between the seven DAR services. This
includes, for example, policies and procedures that define the days and hours of
service, the way that service areas are defined, when trip reservations can be made, the
window of time when riders need to be waiting for vehicles to arrive, and the level of
assistance provided by drivers. Differences in service policies make it more difficult for
riders to understand and use services throughout the region.
With several DARs each operating in specific areas, regional travel is also more difficult
for riders as well as providers. Riders traveling between areas must transfer at
designated transfer locations and providers must coordinate scheduling and dispatch to
have vehicles meet at these locations. A process has been developed over time to
allow riders to call the DAR service where their trip begins and to then have this
provider arrange connecting legs of the trip with other providers, but this process is time
consuming and subject to error.
As part of ongoing planning efforts, an 18 month review of DAR services was conducted
in 2014 and 2015 and a plan was developed to strengthen and improve current
programs. The planning effort was undertaking with a Technical Working Group (TWG)
comprised of staff members from each member agency, and a Stakeholders Group,
comprised of DAR users and other members of the senior and disability advocacy
community.

Executive Summary
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The primary goals of the planning effort were:
1. To increase the regional consistency of the policies and procedures used by each of
the seven DAR services; and
2. To develop an approach for providing regional DAR service that reduces or
eliminates the requirement for customers to transfer when traveling between one or
more local DAR service areas.
FINDINGS
FY 2014 information was collected from all seven DAR services in the fall of 2014.
Collectively in FY 2014, the region’s DAR services:
 Operated a fleet of 1,179 minibuses, vans and sedans
 Provided 848,625 unduplicated passenger trips
 Operated 7,347,760 revenue-miles of service
 Operated 404,737 revenue-hours of service
Total operating and administrative costs for the seven DAR services in FY 2014 was
$28,709,833.
The review confirmed and documented many differences in operating policies and
procedures between the seven DARs. This included differences in:
 Service area definitions
 Days and hours of service
 Trip reservation hours
 Trip booking procedures
 Advance reservation policies
 Subscription trip policies
 On-time pickup (“be ready”) windows
 Maximum vehicle wait times at pickup
 Rider assistance policies
 Package and package assistance policies
 Policies for serving unaccompanied children
 Rider late cancellation and no-show policies
 Policies for service visitors to the area
The review also documented issues with inter-regional travel and transfers between
DAR areas. A telephone survey of 403 randomly-selected riders and an online survey
completed by 56 riders found that:
 Twenty-six percent (26%) of those surveyed by phone and 55% of those who
responded online said they were dissatisfied or very dissatisfied with their
transfer trips.
 Thirty-seven percent (37%) of those interviewed by phone and 76% of online
respondents expressed concerns about transferring between DAR areas,
including:
Executive Summary
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o Long transfer wait times (42% of respondents)
o Operational problems arranging trip, such as no one showed up for
second leg of trip or taken to wrong location (37% of respondents)
o Overall trip takes too long (21% of respondents)
o Worried will be stranded (8% of respondents)
Twenty-five percent (25%) of riders interviewed by phone and 40% of online
respondents said concerns about transfers prevented them from using the
service.
Because of concerns about transfers, many DAR riders do not travel outside their
own DAR area. Only 18% of those surveyed by phone indicated that they had
made a DAR trip outside their own area in the past 3 months.

To get a better understanding of transfers, trip data was collected and analyzed for two
sample weeks of service—one week in September 2014 and one week in February
2015. The analysis showed:
 A relatively small number of inter-regional DAR trips. It is estimated that less
than 500 inter-regional DAR trips are made per week, or about 4% of total DAR
ridership. By comparison, past studies have indicated that about 20% of general
public fixed-route riders use public transit in the Valley to travel regionally.
 Average wait times at DAR transfer locations are over 30 minutes and about 20%
of wait times are more than an hour.
 Total travel time for trips that require a transfer range from 28 minutes to two
hours and 54 minutes, and about 20% of transfer trips take more than two hours.
To determine if the total travel times for inter-regional DAR trips are reasonable, a
comparison was done to similar trips made on the fixed route system. An analysis of 30
randomly-selected DAR transfer trips indicated that 53% of DAR trips were 30 minutes
longer than similar trips on fixed route; 26% are more than 45 minutes longer; and 13%
are more than an hour longer. This suggests a significant difference in travel times for
inter-regional trips that are made by DAR versus inter-regional trips taken on the fixed
route system. ADA regulations require that ADA paratransit services have travel times
that are comparable to fixed route travel times.
Information was also collected from 13 peer transit systems to inform the discussion.
Seven of the 13 peer agencies surveyed operate with a single call center and provide
ADA paratransit service throughout the region with consistent policies and procedures.
Six have sub-regions with different service providers in each sub-area, but in these
cases all providers contract with the public transit agency and operated under the same
service policies and procedures.
Peers transit agencies also reported that transfers are rarely used because they are
costly and difficult to perform. Six peers provide region-wide service without transfers.
The remaining peers require transfers only in rare cases where travel is to outlying
counties.
The cost of providing regional trips with transfers was also compared to the cost or
providing service direct. Because transfers require that two DAR vehicles be involved,
Executive Summary
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often with downtime as one vehicle waits for the other, the cost of service with transfers
is much higher. Based on an analysis of data from the most recent sample week in
February 2015, the average cost of a current regional trip with transfers is $98.71, while
the average cost of direct, no transfer service is $53.97.
While the cost per trip is less for direct service, more riders will travel regionally if direct
service is provided. Based on rider survey responses, demand will likely increase
between 25% and 40% during the first year that direct service is provided. Detailed
demand and cost analysis suggest, though. That the significantly lower cost of providing
direct service more than offsets increases in demand in both the short and long-term.
Between FY 2017 and FY 2026, it is estimated that providing regional DAR service with
transfers (current design) will cost about $27 million, while providing direct service
without transfers would cost between $19 million (low demand estimate) and $22 million
(high demand estimate).
ESTIMATED ANNUAL OPERATING COSTS FOR INTER-REGIONAL TRIPS, FY2016
THROUGH FY2026: CURRENT SERVICE DESIGN VERSUS DIRECT (OPTION 3)
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RECOMMENDATIONS
Several meetings of DAR service representatives were facilitated to discuss differences
in operating policies and procedures and current inter-regional travel and transfers.
Fourteen recommendations are included in the plan to improve and strengthen current
DAR services.
Recommendation #1 – Eliminate DAR Transfers
The plan recommends that all ADA regional DAR trips be provided as “one seat” rides
and that all DAR transfers be eliminated based on the following policies:
 Regional service will be for ADA certified riders making ADA eligible trips at times
when a comparable trip can be made using fixed-route bus and/or light rail
service.
 Regional trips will be provided by Valley Metro’s regional DAR contractor.
 Regional service will be provided as shared-ride service, meaning that vehicles
may pick up and drop off other passengers while on route between a customer’s
pick-up and drop-off.
 The one-way fare for each regional Dial-a-Ride trip will be $4.
Recommendation #2 – Implement consistent, region-wide approach to serving
ADA eligible visitors
To more consistently serve riders from outside the area who are ADA paratransit
eligible, the following visitor eligibility policies and service procedures are
recommended:
 All individuals who request service as visitors will be referred to the regional
Mobility Center to be registered for service. The Mobility Center will gather
appropriate documentation and will enter approved visitors into the regional ADA
rider database. Visitors’ ID numbers will include a unique character to identify
them as such.
 Documentation of ADA paratransit eligibility issued by other transit agencies will
be accepted.
 Visitors who have not been granted ADA paratransit eligibility by another transit
agency and who indicate disabilities that are not “apparent” (e.g., psychiatric
disability, seizure condition, non-apparent health condition) will be asked to
provide some readily available documentation of their disabilities.
 Visitors who do not have documentation of ADA paratransit eligibility from
another transit agency and indicate an “apparent” disability (e.g., use a mobility
device, use of a long white cane or dog guide) will not have to provide
documentation of disability.
 Visitors will be provided up to 30 days of service within any 365-day period. For
additional service, visitors will be asked to go through the regional ADA
paratransit eligibility determination process.
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The Mobility Center will include visitors in the regular, ongoing updates of rider
eligibility that are sent to each Dial-a-Ride operation.

Recommendation #3 – Define DAR service areas
It is recommended that the ADA DAR service area be defined as any area within three
quarters (3/4) of a mile of a transit route or light rail station. The ADA DAR service area
will also include any relatively small areas, which are more than three quarters (3/4) of a
mile from the nearest transit route or light rail station but are surrounded by areas within
three quarters (3/4) of a mile of the nearest transit routes and/or light rail stations.
Non-ADA Dial-a-Ride service areas will be defined by each community that provides
non-ADA Dial-a-Ride service.
Recommendation #4 – Establish DAR days and hours of service
It is recommended that ADA paratransit days and hours of operation be based on fixed
route days and hours in each area. ADA DAR service will be provided during all hours
that fixed route bus or light rail service available. The following hours of operation will
be advertised to indicate general service availability:
 Phoenix and the Southwest Valley – Daily from 5 a.m. - 10 p.m.
 East Valley – Daily from 4 - 1 a.m.
 Glendale – daily when and where Valley Metro operates local bus service
 Peoria – Weekdays from 4:30 a.m. - 9 p.m.
 Northwest Valley Dial-a-Ride – Weekdays from 7 a.m. - 5 p.m.
ADA DAR service wiIl also be provided before or after these general hours if local bus
or light rail service is available in the area where the ADA eligible rider will be traveling.
Non-ADA days and hours of service are established by each community that provides
non-ADA Dial-a-Ride service.
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Recommendation #5 – Establish DAR trip reservations hours
It is recommended that trip reservations for ADA paratransit service be accepted during
the follow hours:
East Valley, Northwest Valley, and
unincorporated Maricopa County
Phoenix
Glendale and Peoria

Daily from 6 a.m. to 7:30 p.m.
Daily from 8 a.m. to 9 p.m.
Daily from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Trip reservation hours for non-ADA DAR service will be set by each community that
provides non-ADA service.
Recommendation #6 – Establish advanced reservations policies for DAR
It is recommended that ADA DAR trips be accepted from one to fourteen days prior to
travel.
Advanced reservation requirements for non-ADA Dial-a-Ride trips will be established by
each community that operates non-ADA Dial-a-Ride service.
Recommendation #7 – Establish policy and procedures for DAR subscription
trips
The following policies and procedures are recommended for ADA DAR subscription
service:
 A subscription trip is defined as a trip from the same place, to the same place, at
the same time, on the same day or days of the week for at least a month. Once a
subscription trip is established, the trip will be provided automatically, unless
notification is made by the rider to change or cancel it.
 A subscription trip may be requested as long as the trip occurs at least once per
week.
Subscription trip policies for non-ADA DAR trips will be established by each community
that operates non-ADA Dial-a-Ride service.
Recommendation #8 – Clarify DAR trip booking procedures
For ADA DAR, it is recommended that riders be allowed to book trips based on a
desired pick-up time or a desired appointment time, but not both. In accordance with
ADA requirements, the provider may offer a pick-up time that is up to one hour before or
after the requested pick-up time, and the provider may factor in travel time to permit for
shared rides. The rider’s total travel time should not exceed the time required to make
the same trip on fixed-route transit.

Executive Summary
Regional Paratransit Plan

7

Draft January 2016

It is recommended that procedures for non-ADA DAR trips be the same, with the
exception that providers may offer an available pick-up time that is more than one hour
before or after the requested pick-up time.
Recommendation #9 – Clarify the DAR Pickup and Drop-off Window Policy
For both ADA and non-ADA DAR, it is recommended that providers communicate a
thirty minute pick-up window to the rider. The pickup will be on-time as long as it arrives
to transport the rider within this pick-up window.
It is also recommended that a 30 minute drop-off window be established for trips that
have appointment times. Drop-offs will be considered on-time if made no later than the
appointment time and no more than 30 minutes early.
Recommendation #10 – Clarify the DAR Boarding Window Policy
It is recommended that for all communities except Glendale, DAR vehicles will wait a
minimum of five minutes for the rider to board the vehicle. If the vehicle arrives to
transport a rider before the start of the 30 minute pickup window communicated to the
rider, the vehicle will be expected to wait a full five minutes after the start of the window.
In Glendale, vehicles will wait at least two minutes within the pickup window.
Recommendation #11 – Clarify Dial-a-Ride Rider Assistance Policies
The following rider assistance policies are recommended for both ADA and non-ADA
DAR trips:
 Service in all communities except Peoria and Glendale will be door-to-door,
meaning that the driver will be expected to meet the rider at the outermost door
of the pick-up address and then to accompany the rider to the outermost door of
the destination.
 Service in Peoria and Glendale will be curb-to-curb with door-to-door service
provided upon request. Notwithstanding, the driver will not be allowed to lose
sight of his/her vehicle when it is occupied by any other rider.
 All DAR providers will explore strategies for providing “call outs” to riders who are
unable to see the vehicle when it arrives and/or to others who may have difficulty
knowing when the vehicle has arrived.
Recommendation #12 – Establish the following DAR Package Policy
The following policy is recommended for both ADA and non-ADA DAR trips:
 Packages can take up no more than two cubic feet of space (e.g., three brown
paper grocery bags or six plastic grocery bags).
 The total weight of all packages cannot exceed 50 pounds.
 In addition, one piece of luggage and one carry-on bag will be accommodated.
 Driver assistance getting packages on and off the vehicle and to or from the door
will be provided on request.
Executive Summary
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Drivers will assist carrying an unoccupied child seat, but will not carry a child in a
car seat.
Examples of articles that cannot be brought on-board will be provided in a
detailed package policy.

Recommendation #13 – Clarify the policy for unaccompanied children
For ADA DAR, children who are seven years of age or less must be accompanied by a
responsible adult. The age thresholds for when children may travel unaccompanied on
non-ADA DAR will be set by each community that provides non-ADA service.
Recommendation #14 – Establish the following No-Show and Late Cancellation
Policy and Procedures
The following policy and procedures are recommended for both ADA and non-ADA
DAR services.
 A No-Show is defined as an instance when the rider fails to board the vehicle
when it has arrived on-time (within the pick-up window) and when it has waited
the required five minutes and/or when the rider has informed the driver that s/he
will not be taking a scheduled trip.
 A late cancellation is defined as an instance when a rider cancels his/her trip less
than two hours before the start of the 30 minute pick-up window.
 No-shows and late cancels that are beyond the rider’s control will be excused.
 If a rider accumulates three or more unexcused No-Shows and/or Late
Cancellations during a calendar month, a review of the rider’s travel will be
conducted to determine the frequency of No-Shows and Late Cancellations.
 If a rider’s unexcused No Shows/Late Cancellations percentage exceeds ten
percent of all trips scheduled within a thirty day period, the rider will be subject to
the following sanctions:
o First occurrence within a calendar year – Written Warning
o Second Occurrence within a calendar year – Seven-day suspension
o Third Occurrence within a calendar year – 14-day suspension
o Fourth Occurrence within a calendar year – 30-day suspension
 Riders will be advised of planned suspensions in writing and riders’ suspension
letters will be mailed not later than 14 days before a planned suspension will be
scheduled to begin. This notice will include information regarding the rider’s right
to file an appeal.
 If a rider files an appeal, the suspension will be delayed while the appeal is
pending.
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DATE
Revised February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 8

SUBJECT
Fiscal Year 2015 (FY15) Transit Performance Report (TPR)
PURPOSE
To provide information regarding system ridership, operating costs, fare revenue, and
performance indicators contained in the FY15 Transit Performance Report.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
The Transit Performance Report (TPR) is updated annually using data provided by our
member agencies and the Valley Metro Regional Ridership Report. The report includes
information by each mode within the region:
 Fixed Route Bus
 Light Rail
 Paratransit
 Vanpool
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
Financial Working Group: December 28, 2015 for information
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for information
Budget and Finance Subcommittee: February 11, 2016 for information
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for information
RECOMMENDATION
This item is being presented for information only.
CONTACT
John P. McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-495-8239
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
FY15 TPR Report

VALLEY METRO • 101 N 1ST AVE • STE 1300 • PHOENIX AZ • 85003 • 602-262-7433
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System Summary FY 2015
% Change
from FY14

Performance
Indicator

Bus

Light Rail

Paratransit

Vanpool

Total Boardings

56,482,963

14,276,884

1,059,300

1,081,464

72,900,611

-1.8%

Percent of Total
Boardings

77.5%

19.6%

1.4%

1.5%

---

---

Vehicle Revenue
Miles

29,089,942

2,482,556

7,816,147

5,817,546

45,206,191

1.0%

Operating Cost
Per Revenue Mile

$7.90

$12.60

$4.58

$0.58

$6.64

1.3%

Boardings Per
Revenue Mile

1.94

5.75

0.14

0.19

1.61

-2.8%

Average Fare

$0.83

$0.90

$2.62

$3.44

$0.91

0.3%

Farebox Recovery

20.5%

41.0%

7.7%

109.8%

22.1%

-3.8%

Operating Cost
Per Boarding

$4.07

$2.19

$33.78

$3.13

$4.12

4.3%

Subsidy Per
Boarding

$3.24

$1.29

$31.17

($0.31)

$3.21

5.4%

System Total
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FY 2015 Transit Performance Report (TPR)
The annual Transit Performance Report (TPR) provides information to the Boards of Directors and member cities concerning ridership, operating
costs, fare revenue and performance indicators for region-wide transit services, including the following transportation modes:
• Fixed Route Bus
• Light Rail
• Paratransit (Demand Response)
• Vanpool

Dashboard Indicators:
Red		

Indicates the trend is negative (Greater than 5% decline from prior year)

Yellow		

Indicates the trend is negative (Between 3-5% decline from prior year)

White		

Indicates the trend is neutral (Within ±2.99% of prior year)

Blue		

Indicates the trend is positive (Between 3-5% improvement from prior year)

Green		

Indicates the trend is positive (Greater than 5% improvement from prior year)
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Bus
FIXED ROUTE (SYSTEM-WIDE)
Service Expansion
• Local Route – 138
Service Reductions
• Local Routes – 13, 48, 77, 106, 108
Service Modifications
• Local Routes – 1, 3, 10, 15, 96
•		Express Routes – 563, 573, 575
Service Increases
•		Local Routes – 10, 17, 29, 35, 41, 60, 70,
80, 81
•		Express Route – 562
• Rural Route – 685

Farebox Recovery Ratio
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Operating Subsidy Per Boarding
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•		Rapid Route – 452
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Bus
FIXED ROUTE (SYSTEM-WIDE)
Includes:
• Local
• Circulator
• Express
• RAPID
• LINK
• Rural Connector

Average Fare

Annual Increase / Decrease in Total Boardings
15%

$1.00
$0.90

12%

$0.86
$0.84
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$0.80

$0.83
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0%
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$0.30
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Annual Increase / Decrease in Weekday
Average Boardings

Annual Increase / Decrease in Saturday
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3%
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-2.46%
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2015
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Bus
FIXED ROUTE (SYSTEM-WIDE)
Includes:
• Local
• Circulator
• Express
• RAPID
• LINK
• Rural Connector

Annual Increase / Decrease in Sunday Average Boardings
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This data includes Local, Express and RAPID service.
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Light Rail

Farebox Recovery Ratio

Operating Cost Per Boarding
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Light Rail

Total Boardings (in millions)

Boardings Per Revenue Mile
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P ROP OSI T I ON 4 0 0

Paratransit
This data represents Proposition 400 funding used
to fund service for ADA-certified passengers only.
Each operating system may include more than one
jurisdiction. The values in the “Proposition 400”
column represents the amount reimbursed or
credited to each jurisdiction in FY 2015 and may not
correlate to the amount of Proposition 400 funding
a jurisdiction spent that year. System Operating Cost
is the total operating cost for each operating system.
Information

• Phoenix Dial-a-Ride includes the cities of Phoenix,
Avondale, Goodyear, Tolleson and
Paradise Valley
• East Valley Dial-a-Ride (EVDAR) includes the cities
of Chandler, Gilbert, Mesa, Scottsdale and Tempe
• Northwest Valley Dial-a-Ride (NWDAR) serves the
communities of El Mirage, Surprise and Youngtown
as well as unincorporated areas of Maricopa County
including Sun City and Sun City West. Northwest
Valley Dial-a-Ride also provides overflow service
for the Glendale and Peoria Dial-a-Ride services as
well as trips which applicants for ADA paratransit
take to and from Valley Metro’s Mobility Center,
located in Phoenix.

Paratransit
Operating System

Proposition 400

System Operating Cost

Prop 400 as %
of Total Ops Cost

Glendale DAR

$691,111

$2,344,055

29.48%

Peoria DAR

$216,300

$777,579

27.82%

Phoenix DAR

$14,776,048

$16,947,935

87.18%

Phoenix Taxi

$0

$665,592

0.00%

$230,567

$472,515

48.80%

$6,758,848

$10,802,255

62.57%

$172,733

$2,671,905

6.46%

$0

$1,104,528

0.00%

$22,845,607

$35,786,364

63.84%

Scottsdale Taxi
Valley Metro EVDAR
Valley Metro NWDAR
Valley Metro
RideChoice
Total
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Farebox Recovery Ratio

Paratransit
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
of 1990 is federal law which prohibits
discrimination against persons with
disabilities in public accommodations,
including public transportation. On-time
performance measures how many ADA
boardings occurred within 30 minutes of the
pick-up time given to the passenger at the
time of their reservation.

Operating Cost Per Boarding
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Vanpool
Farebox Recovery Ratio
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Glossary
Average Fare
Average fare is the average price a person pays for a transit trip. It is equal to total fare
revenue collected divided by total boardings.

Local Bus Route
Local bus routes may operate on either arterial or local collector streets. These are
designed to serve localized trip patterns with one or more cities.

Boarding
A boarding is known as an unlinked passenger trip. Every time a person boards a
vehicle it is counted as a boarding. For example, if a person makes a trip involving one
transfer, this trip is counted as two boardings.

National Transit Database (NTD)
National Transit Database was established by Congress as a primary source for
information and statistics on the transit system in the United States. Any recipients of
Federal Transit Administration funding are required to submit data to the NTD.

Circulators
Circulator routes typically serve small specific areas with short routes that are designed
to provide connections between transportation systems and other area attractions, like
employment centers or schools. Many circulator routes charge no fare.

Net Vanpool Starts
Calculated by subtracting number of deleted vanpools from the number of new
vanpools started.

Express/RAPID
Express/RAPID routes provide higher speed service by operating with limited stops and
other enhancements. Many Express/RAPID routes operate on regional freeways.
Farebox Recovery Ratio
This is the percentage of total operating cost that is covered by fares collected. It is
equal to total fare revenue collected divided by total operating costs.
Fixed Route
Fixed route bus service typically operates along a designated or “fixed” route with no
deviations. Characteristics of this service type include controlled vehicle frequencies
and scheduled passenger stops. In this report, fixed route service comprises Local,
Express, RAPID, LINK, Circulator and Rural Connector routes.

On-Time Performance
ADA
Percent of all ADA trips that are picked up within the 30 minute ready window.
Bus
Percent of all trips that operate no more than 0 minutes early and 5 minutes late,
compared to scheduled arrival/departure times at published time points.
Rail
Percent of all trips that arrive at the opposite terminal within 0 minutes early and
5 minutes late of scheduled arrival times.
Operating Cost
Total costs associated with the operation of revenue vehicles which includes
maintenance and administrative costs. These are gross costs (fare revenue has
not been subtracted).

LINK Service
LINK is a type of bus service operating on arterial streets that functions as an
extension of Valley Metro Rail and features limited stops, signal priority and near level
boarding.
Transit Performance Report (TPR) | FY 2014 (July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014)
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Glossary
Paratransit Service
This service is a shared-ride origin to destination service where an individual can request
transportation from one specific location to another specific location at a certain time.
This service complements fixed route service. Some systems restrict service to those
who are ADA certified, while other systems offer service to the general public.
Revenue Hour
A revenue hour is an hour that one vehicle in revenue service is available to pick up
fare-paying passengers. If ten vehicles are in revenue service for two hours each, they
collectively perform twenty revenue hours of service.
Revenue Mile
A revenue mile is a mile traveled by one vehicle in revenue service that is available to
pick up revenue passengers. If ten vehicles are in service for two miles each, they
collectively perform twenty revenue miles of service.

Rural Routes
Rural routes typically provide connections between rural and urban communities.
Subsidy per Boarding
Also known as net operating cost per boarding, this is the operating cost per boarding
minus the fare revenue per boarding. This number indicates the amount of public funding
that is used to make up the difference between the cost of providing transportation
service and the revenue generated by this service on a per boarding basis.
Weekday / Saturday / Sunday Average Daily Boardings
This measures boardings on a typical weekday, Saturday or Sunday. This is calculated by
dividing total boardings on a weekday, Saturday or Sunday by the number of weekdays,
Saturdays or Sundays in the fiscal year.

Revenue Service
Revenue service occurs when a vehicle is available to the general public and there is
an expectation of carrying passengers who pay the required fare. Vehicles operated
in fare-free service are also considered in revenue service. Revenue service includes
layover/ recovery time, but does not include deadhead (i.e. travel from garage to the
start point of a route) or vehicle maintenance testing.

RPT2802

Transit Performance Report (TPR) | FY 2014 (July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014)
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DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 9

SUBJECT
Guidelines for Installation of Remote Fare Vending Machines
PURPOSE
To provide cost information and preliminary guidelines for the installation and
maintenance of remotely-located fare vending machines.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Fare vending machines (TVMs) are deployed to provide off-board fare payment and
validation at high-volume transit locations. For Valley Metro Rail, they are available at
each station entryway and many light rail park-and-rides and are the rail passenger’s
only means of buying and validating fares on-site. In 2011, TVMs were first installed
beyond the light rail alignment to serve LINK (Arizona Avenue and Main Street) bus
passengers. LINK was a service created to connect and be an extension of light rail. It
was designed to provide rail-like amenities, including off-board fare payment. The 20
machines along the LINK routes are the only remote TVMs available on the current
transit system. These machines are being evaluated for their usage levels to determine
future need.
The LINK TVMs are connected via city fiber to the existing Valley Metro Rail
TVM/SCADA network and fare collection back-end system. The units also have closed
circuit TV (CCTV) surveillance and are connected to the network alarm system for
security detection and response. Valley Metro Rail technical staff maintains all TVM
equipment and an armored car service retrieves and replenishes cash. This
combination of secure connections, CCTV monitoring and preventive maintenance
activities has proven successful and would be the model staff would recommend
continuing with for any future TVM needs. In addition, the fiber and CCTV connection to
the existing network provides the utmost in data security and maintains the agency’s
payment card industry (PCI) compliance.
Requests have come forward from member agencies for Valley Metro Rail to install and
maintain remote TVMs at other locations. The following outlines the proposed guidelines
for Valley Metro Rail to undertake the installation and maintenance of remote TVMs:






Member agency submits application, identifying location and benefit to customer
Full capital and operating costs are paid for by requesting agency
o Federal/regional/local sources identified and secured
Location is determined to have secure fiber and CCTV connection to existing Valley
Metro Rail network
Location provides CCTV surveillance of the TVMs 24/7
Location is determined to have high daily sales potential
o Baseline target monthly ridership = 6,000
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o 2,000 monthly fare purchases / $12,000 monthly sales
o Nearest retail fare outlet is greater than ¼ mile
Minimum of two TVMs installed for redundancy purposes
Member agency and VMR execute Design and Construction Agreement and
Operations and Maintenance Agreements

Capital costs for two TVMs can range from $150,000 - $200,000. Operations costs can
range from $25,000 - $61,000 per year. Costs are based on 8 hour response time in normal
weather conditions. Actual costs may vary depending on location conditions and data
security environment.
Lastly, as part of the Fare Policy Working Group, there are and will continue to be
discussions on the region’s fare policy structure, which, today, delineates an on-board bus
fare premium ($4 vs. $6 for an All-Day pass). The on-board premium compels the need to
have off-board fare purchase solutions, including TVMs, retail fare outlets, online, etc. This
element will be strongly evaluated in the next 6 – 12 months as part of the fare increase
discussion. Also being evaluated in a similar timeframe is any fare media technology
upgrades, which could alter the purpose and usage of TVMs.
COST/BUDGET
Funding for remote TVMs will be paid for by the agency requesting the service. There
are currently no remote TVM units planned for installation in the FY16 adopted annual
operating budget. Upon completing the application and funding process, the annual
budget and five-year plans will be amended pending Board approval.
COMMITTEE PROCESS
Fare Policy Working Group for information
Financial Working Group for information
RTAG: December 15, 2015 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for information
Board: February 18, 2016 for information
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:
 Goal 1: Increase Customer Focus
o Tactic 1: Implement Customer amenities and make use of newer
technologies.


Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o Tactic E: Maintain strong fiscal controls to support Valley Metro’s longterm sustainability.

RECOMMENDATION
For Information only.
2

CONTACT
John P. McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-495-8239
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 10

SUBJECT
Valley Metro Accessibility Advisory Group
PURPOSE
To provide information regarding the establishment of the Valley Metro Accessibility
Advisory Group (VMAAG).
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Valley Metro is committed to the planning, design, operation and management of
programs and services that are accessible to all customers, including seniors and
people with disabilities. All bus, light rail, paratransit and other transportation services
meet or exceed the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and
Valley Metro staff collaborates with members of the senior and disability communities
when contemplating new or enhanced facilities or services.
Staff has determined that an ongoing working group comprised of seniors, people with
disabilities and other stakeholders will further enhance the accessibility of our programs
and services. With this in mind, the VMAAG will be established as outlined below:
Purpose
The VMAAG will be responsible for advising staff on matters pertaining to the
accessibility of Valley Metro programs, services and facilities for seniors and
people with disabilities. Although not part of the formal process for implementing
or changing policies, procedures or services, staff will consult with and seek input
from VMAAG on any item of significance to the needs of seniors and people with
disabilities.
Examples of items where VMAAG will be asked to provide input:
 Quality and accessibility of service provided by rail, bus and Dial-a-Ride
contractors
 Accessibility and customer elements of specifications for new and
replacement paratransit, transit and light rail vehicles
 Development of new transit corridors and facilities and the environs around
them
 Passenger facility design standards and guidelines
 Development and modification of transit and Dial-a-Ride policies and
procedures
 Accessibility-related content and usability of Valley Metro public information,
including websites, mobile apps, social media, and printed materials
 Other input that will support the agency’s goal of increasing access and
accessibility for all customers, including seniors and people with disabilities
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Membership
 Up to 15 individuals with disabilities, seniors, representatives of agencies
serving seniors and people with disabilities and other appropriate individuals.
 Membership will represent a broad cross-section of the senior and disability
communities served by Valley Metro, based on geography, gender, ethnicity,
age and types of disabilities. Member agencies will be requested to
encourage potential candidates to submit applications.
 Initial term will be for two years and will be limited to three consecutive terms
(total of 6 years).
 Terms will be staggered to avoid having all members terminate in the same
year.
 Individuals will complete an application for membership, which will be
reviewed by staff with recommendations forwarded to the CEO for
appointment.
Meetings
 Monthly or bimonthly, as necessary
 At a minimum, meetings will occur six times per fiscal year
 Meetings will be open to the public
COST AND BUDGET
VMAAG costs are limited to the cost of meeting materials and for transit passes and/or
paratransit tickets for VMAAG members. These expenses are projected to be
approximately $1,800 per year, and are included within the FY16 Operating Budget and
will be included within the Five-Year Operating and Capital Plan.
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020.




Goal 1: Increase customer focus
o Tactic A: Improve customer satisfaction.
o Tactic E: Enhance services and facilities for seniors and people with
disabilities.
Goal 2: Advance performance-based operation
o Tactic A: Operate an effective, reliable, high-performing transit system.

COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: December 15, 2015 for information
TMC: February 3, 2016 for information
Board: February 18, 2016 for information
RECOMMENDATION
This item is for information only.

2

CONTACT
Wulf Grote
Director, Planning and Accessible Transit Division
602-716-2107
wgrote@valleymetro.org
Ron Brooks
Manager, Accessible Transit Services
602-716-2107
rbrooks@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 11

SUBJECT
Travel and Expenditures
PURPOSE
The monthly travel and expenditures are presented for information.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
John McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-262-7433
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
Valley Metro Travel Reimbursement Report
Valley Metro RPTA Monthly Accounts Payable over $25,000
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Valley Metro
Travel Reimbursement Report
For Travel Completion Dates
December 26, 2016 through January 25, 2016

Job Title
Network
Administrator
Chief
Maintenance
Engineer

Purpose of Travel

Location

Dates Traveled

Total Travel
Cost

Airfare

Other
Lodging
Transport

Meals

Misc.*

ICS Cyber Emergency
Training

Idaho Falls, ID

1/10-1/15, 2016

$1,480.09

$635.20

$0.00

$564.39

$280.50

$0.00

Transformer Testing

Chicago, IL

1/20-1/22, 2016

$997.49

$291.96

$241.65

$286.38

$177.50

$0.00

* Parking, inflight internet/wifi fees, luggage fees

RPTA
Monthly AP Payments over $25,000
December 21, 2015 thru January 20, 2016
Document Number

Name

Transaction Description

20151231W005
20160115W
20151221W Wire
20160108W001
20151224W Wire001
20151221W Wire
20160108W003
20160108W001
20151224W Wire001
20160108W002
20151224W Wire002
34790
34790
34783
20151231-SW003
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
20151222W Wire
34802
20151231W004
34784
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34802
34823
34831

FirstGroup America, Inc.
City Phoenix (Transit Dept)
City Phoenix (Transit Dept)
ADP
ADP
City Phoenix (Transit Dept)
United Healthcare
ADP
ADP
ASRS
ASRS
Valutrans, Inc
Valutrans, Inc
City of Scottsdale - Remittance Processing
City of Mesa
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Second Generation, Inc. dba Ajo Transportation
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
CopperPoint Mutual Insurance Company
vRide, Inc.
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
Creative Bus Sales dba Arizona Bus Sales
C.A.R.E Evaluators, Inc.
Don Sanderson Ford, Inc.

Nov. 2015 Express, Circulator, Local Link & Flash Routes
Jan 2016 Fixed Route Svc, ADA DAR Svc, Monthly Regional Svc
Dec. 2015 FR Bus Svc, DAR, FR Svc Op Svc
PPE 1/3/2016 ADP Wages Payable
PPE 12/20/2015 ADP Wages Payable
RPTA PTF Reimb. Req. #9 thru 9/30/15
Jan 2016 Employee Dental, Medical, & Vision Coverage
PPE 1/3/2016 ADP Payroll Taxes, Garnishment
PPE 12/20/2015 ADP Payroll Taxes, Garnishment
PPE 1/3/2016 ASRS
PPE 12/20/2015 ASRS
Nov 2015 Zoom Avondale Bus Run
Nov 2015 Vee Quiva Bus Run
FY15-16 New Freedom Grant Reimbursement Svc. July 15
Dec 2015 Surepay Expense
45848 2015 Ford Transit 12 Passenger Van Silver
45849 2015 Ford Transit 12 Passenger Van Silver
45850 2015 Ford Transit 12 Passenger Van Silver
45851 2015 Ford Transit 12 Passenger Van Silver
45852 2015 Ford Transit 12 Passenger Van Silver
Nov. 2015 Rural Connector route (Route 685) and Maintenance
45826 2015 Ford Transit 12 Passenger Van Silver
Jan 2016 Customer Service Center and Mobility Center Rent/Operating Costs
Sep 2015 Vanpool Services
45835 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45836 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45837 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45839 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45840 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45814 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45816 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45817 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45818 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45820 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45821 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45822 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45823 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45825 2015 Ford Transit 9 Passenger Van Silver
45808 2015 Ford Transit 8 Passenger Van Silver
45809 2015 Ford Transit 8 Passenger Van Silver
45810 2015 Ford Transit 8 Passenger Van Silver
45811 2015 Ford Transit 8 Passenger Van Silver
45812 2015 Ford Transit 8 Passenger Van Silver
Nov 2015 Paratransit In-Person Assessment Services
50741 2016 Ford Explorer White

*A/P payments for January 21 through February 20, 2016 will be included in the next reporting period.
Cutoff is to enable prompt reporting to the TMC in the first week of each calendar month.

Effective DateTransaction Amount
12/31/2015
1/15/2016
12/21/2015
1/8/2016
12/24/2015
12/21/2015
1/8/2016
1/8/2016
12/24/2015
1/8/2016
12/24/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/31/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/22/2015
12/30/2015
12/31/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015
1/7/2016
1/7/2016

4,093,872.39
2,290,440.38
2,281,665.13
444,262.92
434,258.73
398,799.86
265,806.08
203,040.10
175,417.11
161,033.77
154,547.01
107,883.12
72,895.05
60,000.00
59,309.20
48,053.00
48,053.00
48,053.00
48,053.00
48,053.00
47,476.72
47,108.00
46,692.75
39,868.62
39,320.00
39,320.00
39,320.00
39,320.00
39,320.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,759.00
38,018.00
38,018.00
38,018.00
38,018.00
38,018.00
30,441.44
29,938.58

12,420,542.96

DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 12

SUBJECT
Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current Events
PURPOSE
Chair Taylor will request future agenda items from members, and members may provide
a report on current events.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Scott Smith
Interim Chief Executive Officer
602-262-7433
ssmith@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
Pending Items Request
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Pending Items Request
Item Requested

Date Requested

Planned Follow-up Date

2

REVISED February 1, 2016
Rail Management Committee
Wednesday, February 3, 2016
Lake Powell Conference Room
101 N. 1st Avenue, 10th Floor
12:00 p.m.
Action Recommended
1.

Public Comment

1. For information

A 15-minute opportunity will be provided to members of the public
at the beginning of the meeting to address the RMC on all agenda
items. The Chair may recognize members of the public during the
meeting at his/her discretion. Up to three minutes will be provided
per speaker or a total of 15 minutes total for all speakers.
2.

Minutes

2.

For action

3.

For information

Minutes from the January 6, 2016 RMC meeting are presented for
approval.
3.

Interim Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Scott Smith, Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO), will brief the
RMC on current issues.
CONSENT AGENDA
4A.

4A. For action
Fiscal Year 2015 Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and Single Audit Reporting
Package

Staff will request that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors
acceptance of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and
Single Audit Reporting Package for the period ended June 30,
2015.
4B.

Contract Change Order with DMS Facility Services, Inc. for
Facility Maintenance Services

4B. For action

Staff will request that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors
authorization for the Interim CEO to execute a contract change
order to the Valley Metro contract with DMS Facility Services, Inc.
in the amount of $242,302 to cover the costs of additional facility
maintenance services for the Central Mesa and Northwest
Extensions.
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4C.

Increased Funding for Project Controls Aconex System
Software

4C. For action

Staff will request that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors
authorization for the Interim CEO:
1) to increase the funding for this contract by $110,000.00,
allowing unlimited user licenses for all corridor planning; the
Gilbert Road LRT Extension Project; the 50th Street Station
Project; and the Tempe Streetcar Project; and
2) to increase the total authorized amount for this contract to
$460,000.
4D.

2016 Federal Public Transportation Agenda

4D. For action

Staff will request that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors
approval of the 2016 Federal Public Transportation Agenda.
4E.

Request for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Audit Services

4E. For action

Staff will request that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors
authorization for the Interim CEO to issue a RFP under a joint
procurement process with RPTA for contracted Financial Audit
services.
4F.

Contract Award for SCADA Design Services Consultant

4F. For action

Staff will request that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors
authorization for the Interim CEO to execute a not to exceed
(NTE) lump sum contract with Parsons for SCADA Design
Services in the amount of $490,000 and to establish a 10%
contract change contingency of $49,000 that is included in the
overall budget established for the project.

2

REGULAR AGENDA
5.

Fiscal Year 2016 (FY6) Second Quarter Reports

5.

For information

6.

For information

7.

For information

8.

For information

9.

For information

Quarterly Reports are provided as an informational update of
Valley Metro activities.
6.

Northwest Extension Opening Celebration Update

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce, Hillary Foose, Director,
Communication and Marketing, who will provide an informational
update to the on the Northwest Extension Opening Celebration on
March 19, 2016.
7.

Fiscal Year 2015 (FY15) Transit Performance Report (TPR)

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce John McCormack, Chief
Financial Officer, who will provide information regarding system
ridership, operating costs, fare revenue, and performance
indicators contained in the FY15 Transit Performance Report.
8.

Valley Metro Accessibility Advisory Group

Scott Smith, Interim CEO, will introduce Wulf Grote, Director,
Planning and Accessible Transit Services, who will provide
information regarding the establishment of a working group called
the Valley Metro Accessibility Advisory Group (VMAAG).
9.

Travel and Expenditures

The monthly travel and expenditures is presented for
information.
10.

Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current

10. For information

Chair Zuercher will request future RMC agenda items from
members and members may provide a report on current events.
11.

Next Meeting

11. For information

The next meeting of the RMC is scheduled for Wednesday,
March 2, 2016 at 12:00 p.m.

3

Qualified sign language interpreters are available with 72 hours notice. Materials in alternative
formats (large print, audiocassette, or computer diskette) are available upon request. For further
information, please call Valley Metro at 602-262-7433 or TTY at 602-251-2039. To attend this
meeting via teleconference, contact the receptionist at 602-262-7433 for the dial-in-information.
The supporting information for this agenda can be found on our web site at
www.valleymetro.org
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 1

SUBJECT
Public Comment
PURPOSE
A 15-minute opportunity will be provided to members of the public at the beginning of
the meeting to address the RMC on all agenda items. The Chair may recognize
members of the public during the meeting at his/her discretion.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Scott Smith
Interim Chief Executive Officer
602-262-7433
ssmith@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 2
Minutes from the
Rail Management Committee
Wednesday, January 6, 2016
Lake Powell Conference Room
101 N. 1st Avenue, Suite 1000
Phoenix, AZ
12:00 p.m.

Members Present
Mario Paniagua, City of Phoenix, Chair
Mike Nevarez for Steven Methvin, City of Tempe, Vice Chair
Jodi Sorrell, City of Mesa
Dan Cook, City of Chandler
Debbie Albert, City of Glendale
Chair Paniagua called the meeting to order at 12:15 p.m.
1.

Public Comment

Mr. Crowley said good afternoon. I look at the rail and I look at the different parts you're
putting in here, but the first thing that I had to do anything with the rail, Wulf, you
remember, was Central Avenue bridge. And why is that rail. Well, they had to make
sure that it had enough concrete and it was strong enough to support the rail and that
was a part of what they were doing. But at the same time they also made a transit
center in the middle of Deck Park. Now y'all have used it how many times. We haven't.
Now that was a $28-million project and it had to be done with a bus, because the rail
didn't exist, but why is it that every time we do something for rail and it costs mega
amounts of money, I'll point out the 50th Street and Washington light rail stop, is right
next to the airport where in Terminal 4 what do we have. A bus and rail terminal and we
use it how much. We don't.
So when I see what you're trying to do, I go, well, you got 50th Street in here and you've
got the south extensions, but where's that 16th Street stop that you were going to be
putting in. And where's the study that shows that while you're building, you're making it
so that you can put more stops in. But those were brought up in the past and they were
supposed to be addressed and resolved, but you've never done it.
So I ask again, with the terminal inside of the Deck Park, when is that going to be
facilitated so we can be multimodal to the Sweet Acacia Rail Station. Now when we
were building the Sweet Acacia Rail Station, Mr. Grote, I asked, where is this intermodal
with that transit center. We have a transit center in the middle of the Deck Park. You're
putting a rail stop. And you said Sweet Acacia, or you were going to do it in front of
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Dial.
Either way, where was the connectivity. Is there a reason that rail believes multimodal
is evil or what, because every time you have a chance to be multimodal, whether it be at
the airport, at the central station, or at the Northwest extension, where instead of going
to the bus transit center that we spent $27 million on, you're going to do what. You're
going to go to the south side of the access road on I-17 at Peoria.
Please, build it correctly. Finish what you've started and get the parts that you asked for
done and a part of the system, e-i, [sic] the transit terminal in the middle of the Deck
Park, and the transit terminal underneath Terminal 4 at the airport.
And last, when are you going to get yourself together enough, Phoenix and the Rail
Committee, to just know that going across I-17 you need to go to the Metrocenter transit
center, not a half a mile away. How is it multimodal when you don't match them
together?
2.

Minutes

Minutes from the November 4, 2015 RMC meeting were presented for approval.
IT WAS MOVED BY JODI SORRELL, SECONDED BY MIKE NEVAREZ AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 4, 2016 RMC MINUTES.
3.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Mr. Anderson provided an update that included the following:








4.

Travel Report
Transit Performance Report
Legislative Report
Organizational Chart
College Football Playoff Events
Rock 'n' Roll Marathon
Industry Training Opportunities
Bond Ratings

Valley Metro Rail Fiscal Year 2016 (FY16) Mid-Year Budget Adjustment

Mr. Anderson said Mr. Chairman, John McCormack's going to walk you through the
proposed mid-year budget adjustments for Valley Metro Rail.
John McCormack, Chief Financial Officer provided a presentation which included:
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Changes – Operations Projects
LRV Maintenance Activity Changes
Funding Changes – Rail Operations
Funding Changes – Project Development
Changes – Capital Projects (2)
Systemwide Improvement Reductions
Changes – Uses of Funds
Changes – Sources of Funds
Recommendation

Ms. Sorrell said can you, because I can't seem to get the same answer twice, on the
CNPAs for the central Mesa capital project, the e-mail that you sent me in December
said our budget adjustment would be about $240,000.
And then when Ed went to the financial working group, it was the $320,000 number, and
it was said it also included changes for the BIF, but that's not reflected in your
description. So if it does include the BIF, can we include that in there as well?
Mr. McCormack said it does. I apologize for that. You know, the element that's
specifically funded by the city is, I believe, around $280,000 on that, so the balance is
funded for the BIF project. And we can articulate that.
Mr. Nevarez said John, to same, probably to the same question, So that's where the
PTF went into?
Mr. McCormack said yes.
Mr. Nevarez said because I was -- if these were CNPAs, you know, that's unrelated.
Mr. McCormack said correct.
Mr. Nevarez said but it goes in PTF for, you know, I couldn't do that, but I knew there
was an answer someone had told me, but I forgot it was bus interface facility.
Mr. McCormack said yes. Because those activities were outside the base project, we
move them into the CNPA project, although the piece that is funded by PTF, which has
the bus interface, is a separate item.
Mr. Nevarez said right. So clarification of that would answer that question as well.
Mr. McCormack said we can do that. Happy to do it.
Chair Paniagua said are there any other questions by members of the committee?
Just one quick question for you, John, on items where the maintenance was planned
last year and happened this year instead, is that -- did we also see the fund balance
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carry over from last year to the current year because of that is what -- I mean, I'm
assuming that's the case.
Mr. McCormack said well, with respect to the fund balances themselves, yes, certainly
they do. You know, they are adjusted as the expenses are made. Our current budget
process is that all budget authority is concluded at the end of the fiscal year, so
basically any changes we don't carry forward budget changes from year to year.
So the new budget establishes a clean slate for all expenses, and that's one of the
reasons why we have to come really before you to make those changes to the budget.
But certainly the unspent funds from last year are in -- are available to be used this
year.
Chair Paniagua said we do have public comment on this item. Blue Crowley.
Public Comment
Mr. Crowley said now what was it four months ago at the RPTA they said, well, that
Tempe streetcar were going to fund it out of the bus. And I said, wait a minute. It's a
rail. Why aren't you funding it out of rail?
So then when I see here that we -- it's a decrease in rail funding because of federal
funds pending, I go, wait a minute. You're funding it through the bus.
So are you funding it through the bus, as you brought up four months ago at an RPTA
thing, where I pointed out that a streetcar is a rail and that it should be coming out of the
rail, or is it a part of rail, because this document says it's a decrease in rail funds, so
what pot are you taking from, because in here it's rail. Four months ago it was bus.
Which is it? And if it is bus, then what is the decrease in rail funding, or is the decrease
in rail funding because we're doing it through the bus that it's covered. Get your figures
straight.
IT WAS MOVED BY JODI SORRELL, SECONDED BY DEBBIE ALBERT AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO FORWARD TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FORWARD TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZATION FOR THE MID-YEAR
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT UPDATE TO THE VALLEY METRO RAIL OPERATING AND
CAPITAL BUDGET FOR FY16.
5.

50th Street/Washington Light Rail Transit (LRT) Station Recommendation and
Project Agreements

Mr. Anderson said Mr. Chairman, Wulf Grote is going to do this presentation.
Mr. Grote, Director, Planning and Accessible Transit provided a presentation which
included:
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Valley Metro Rail System
Station Addition Policy Evaluation Criteria
48th Street LRT Station Options
16th Street LRT Station Options
Study Recommendations
Option B (50th Street)
50th Street Station Project Implementation
50th Street Station Project Schedule
16th Street LRT Station
Recommendations

Mr. Cook said Wulf, a couple of questions. One, I know -- I don't remember the details
of the station policy, I probably wasn't really involved in it too much, but I seem to
remember, though, there was a criteria for impact on travel time. Can you address what
this station will have as an impact on travel time as it relates to that policy?
Mr. Grote said well, we didn't have a specific criterion identified. I can't remember
exactly how we had it written up in there, but travel time, obviously, is a factor in terms
of how does it impact existing operations. It's not just the travel time, it's how does it
affect fleet, because every time you take more time, you add potential fleet needs.
For this particular station addition, it doesn't add any additional fleet needs. It keeps our
fleet needs the same, but it will add thirty to forty-seconds, maybe about forty-five
seconds, if you include deceleration in that, every time that we stop at the station. So
there will be an increase travel time coming from the East Valley into downtown
Phoenix.
Mr. Cook said I think, what I was thinking about in the back of my mind is I think there's
maybe a goal, future goal, to probably get to ten-minute service. I think it's currently
twelve, if I remember right.
Mr. Grote said correct.
Mr. Cook said so this will have no impact on either of the 10- or 12-minute service
possibilities?
Mr. Grote said no, it does not.
Mr. Cook said okay. And then the other question I had, you know, given -- and I was
just thinking about this as you were talking -- given that you're really so close to the two
facilities there, the disability empowerment center, you know, probably that station's
going to have a lot of ADA qualified folks using it as would seem reasonable. I know the
ADA law applies, and I know you guys are very good about applying ADA law, but those
are minimum requirements.
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And I don't know what the plan is for the station, so I'm not -- hopefully I'm speaking out
of turn, but I would hope that there would be ADA enhancements in there that take into
account probably the high volume of folks that would be using it in terms of, you know,
whether it slopes or just general accessibility just getting on and off but also getting to
the sidewalk so that they can actually get to the empowerment center and such.
So just, I think, a little more advanced look at it, enhanced look at it, maybe, I think
would be appreciated simply because of the concentration it will be in.
Mr. Grote said Mr. Chairman, Mr. Cook, in fact, to that point, we have already had
people from a disability community looking at our station design and looking at -- not
only the station design, just the access along Washington Street from the station to that
facility.
And we intend to have a continued group that's going to work with us to make sure that
we are going -- that we're meeting their needs, so we're not just meeting a letter of the
law, but that we're meeting their needs as well.
Mr. Cook said and I think, you know, we see, at least in our community, you know,
going a little bit above and beyond, I think just makes it better for everybody really, not
just the folks who are ADA qualified, but everybody really benefits from those things.
So thank you. Appreciate that.
Ms. Sorrell said Wulf, can you -- because I just missed it. When are you going to start
construction on this?
Mr. Grote said spring of 2017.
Ms. Sorrell said Okay. So, and you can get back to me on this, you know, but I'm
guessing during those two years of construction the travel time from the East Valley into
Phoenix is going to be a lot more than an additional thirty- to forty-seconds travel time
that you would stop at a station because you're going through the construction, so in my
head it's adding at least another five minutes on to travel time during that two-year
construction period.
Mr. Grote said I don't have the answer to that question at the moment.
Ms. Sorrell said so can you find out and get back to me on that? Thanks.
Mr. Grote said but we can certainly give you a better -- yeah, during construction, you
know, we do intend on keeping the operation going. You know, that's the one thing
about this station is we're not looking at a center platform, which means that we would
have to move the tracks, which means we would have to close down the light rail line for
extended period.
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What we're looking at is adding station platforms on either side of the existing tracks so
that we can minimize the impact to the existing operation.
Ms. Sorrell said no, and I get that, and I'm not taking issue with any of this, I just know
my management and my electeds are going to ask me that.
Chair Paniagua said I think it would be helpful to know what the impact could be.
Although it sounds like, as you go into this, that's a really strong consideration and really
going to impact the way that this is constructed. It's not going to be the typical model
that you use, nor is it typical cost. It's actually quite a bit more costly. Because we are
trying to construct it this way.
Mr. Grote said Mr. Chairman, that's a very good point. Actually, we have cost in here
because we anticipate that we're going to have to do more nighttime work then we
would normally do so that we don't get in as much impact on the day-to-day operation.
Chair Paniagua said all right. Obviously, very important project and thank you for the
excellent presentation. Appreciate the point that Dan brought up about the unique
design needs going into this station and definitely need to account for all of that now.
Public Comment
Mr. Crowley said One, two years to build a station. It's not the Taj Mahal. And when it
comes to 16th Street -- in fact, it's three years because it will be January of '19. It's not
two years that it takes to get things done. And then when you say 16th Street well,
we're going to wait for development. I don't want to say I told you so, but I told you so
when you were building this thing make it so you can put stations in. Did you do that?
Why are you wasting my time and my money? 16th Street was addressed because its
central Phoenix downtown to 24th Street before you added rail stop other than the one
at 12th. It was so that we would have a multimodal connectivity.
Mr. Grote, when you were showing that did you show any of the bus routes that connect
to that rail stop. Yes, you did because there aren't any.
How are you doing this multimodal? You're not. As I said, I pointed out a long time ago
about 16th Street when you're building the rail make it so you can put new stops in.
And now you're saying well, we're going to have to look at 16th Street. So in 2021 we
might have a stop there. It doesn't take two years to build these things -- three years to
get it actuated. When are you going to have 16th Street? And don't kick it back to the
City of Phoenix or point at each other and saying what.
Get the system done right. A stop should have been planned there to begin with. It
was. I was at some of the meetings and said you need one there. After you built it,
people then said you still need one there. And now you're saying we'll look at in a while
and then we may put one there. Get the job done right.
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IT WAS MOVED BY DEBBIE ALBERT, SECONDED BY MIKE NEVAREZ AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO FORWARD TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS, PENDING APPROPRIATE PHOENIX
CITY COUNCIL APPROVALS:
A. APPROVE THE ADDITION OF AN LRT STATION NEAR 50TH STREET AND
WASHINGTON STREET
B. AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE TWO
AGREEMENTS WITH THE CITY OF PHOENIX FOR THE 50TH STREET
STATION AS FOLLOWS:
o FUNDING, DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION
o OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
6.

South Central Light Rail Extension Project Funding Agreement

Chair Paniagua said that takes us to Item 6. South Central Light Rail Extension Project
Funding Agreement.
Mr. Anderson said Mr. Chairman, Mr. Grote is going to handle this item also. This has
to do with the south central light rail extension and a project funding agreement with the
City of Phoenix to continue the pre-construction development activities.
Mr. Grote said Mr. Chairman, members of the Rail Management Committee, I don't
have a presentation on this one. It's a fairly straightforward one.
We do have an existing agreement with the City of Phoenix for the south central light
rail project to do preliminary engineering and the environmental studies that are partially
funded through the TIGER grant program. And that agreement was executed back in
December of 2014.
And so what we're asking for now is to amend that agreement to add some additional
funds from the City of Phoenix to be able to do some of the additional work that we
need to do over the next -- over the next couple of years.
The one thing, I should mention, is just recently back in November this project was
approved by the Federal Transit Administration into what they call their project
development phase under their New Starts program. And once that entry into that
phase is done, we have essentially two years to complete all of our environmental work
and all of our readiness items to move into the next phase which is the engineering
phase under New Starts.
So given that and given the desire potentially to move this project forward and schedule,
there's a lot of activity that we need to do relative to project readiness. We have to
demonstrate to the FTA that the technical capabilities of the organization, as well as
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making sure that we have all of our agreements in place and it's a number of things that
we have to do for them.
So the intent here is to add another -- add $1.5 million dollars to the scope so that we
can prepare all of those readiness items and reports that we have to do and additional
cost estimating that we'd have to do, as well as some additional preliminary engineering
really to be ready for this next phase in accordance with the FTA process and the rules
that they have.
So with that, Mr. Chair, that's my short summary of that. The recommendation is to add
$1.5 million into this agreement.
Chair Paniagua said Thank you, Wulf. We do have a public comment on this one. Not
for this one, okay. All right. Any comments or questions by members of the committee?
Seeing none, do I have a motion?
IT WAS MOVED BY DEBBIE ALBERT, SECONDED BY MIKE NEVAREZ AND
UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED TO FORWARD TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVAL TO AMEND THE EXISTING FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY
OF PHOENIX FOR THE SOUTH CENTRAL LIGHT RAIL EXTENSION FOR PHOENIX
TO FUND $4.7 MILLION FOR VALLEY METRO TO COMPLETE ADDITIONAL WORK
REQUIRED DURING THE CURRENT PROJECT DEVELOPMENT PHASE, AS
DEFINED BY THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION. THIS ACTION IS
CONTINGENT UPON PHOENIX CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL TO ACCELERATE THE
PROJECT AND AMEND THE FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH VALLEY METRO.
7.

Transportation Services Contract Model

Mr. Anderson said Mr. Chairman, members of the Rail Management Committee, I'm
going to introduce Ray Abraham, chief operations here at RPTA to discuss the rail
services contract model. And we're looking for information, discussion on this item. It
doesn't require a formal action.
Mr. Abraham, Chief Operations Officer, provided a presentation that included:








Background
Contract Billings
Current Contract Model
Complaints/100,000 Boardings
Ridership
Vehicle Revenue Miles
Conclusion

Ms. Sorrell said I have a couple questions. Ray, what is DBOM?
Mr. Abraham said that is the design, build, operate, and maintain. So they start it from
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the ground up, yes. It's sort of what they did up in Denver that thirty year package deal
up there.
Ms. Sorrell said and then why did we pick this model? If nobody else in the country
does this model, why did we go out on a risk to do that?
Mr. Abraham said nobody else in the country that I know of contracts out light rail
service at all except for New Jersey Transit.
Ms. Sorrell said so everybody else is operated in-house staff.
Mr. Abraham said now when I say light rail, Jodi, that's just light rail. That's not
streetcar. Most of your streetcar projects are private and a lot of your commuter rail is
private. But now Seattle they say they contract out -- Seattle contracts out, but it's
Sound Transit contracting to another public entity. King County operates their system.
Another unique thing is being we do our own maintenance, you know, it does present a
problem like a fixed price contract, for example, if it's a fixed price per hour, fixed price
per mile, I don't know how we would do it.
But when there's delays and breakdowns, you know, now you're in that situation where
you're arguing between who caused it, why should we be penalized for it. I should have
said with this contract we have today, after the first year we took out all incentives, all
liquidated damages, because I seen early on in operations the contractors truly were
focusing on incentives, and we were seeing a lack of customer service, we were seeing
trains dwell with stations and fifteen seconds close the doors, don't care who's there
because their management's saying we got to get you to the terminal on time.
So we stopped that all. And we manage them, as I said, they're part of my staff is the
way I see it. They come to our staff meetings. We direct them with this week coming
up, they're getting direction from me and my staff every step of the way.
Ms. Sorrell said again, because I'm not an operations person. How is this model more
flexible than another? You talked a lot about it being more flexible, how is it?
Mr. Abraham said if this were a fixed-price contract they're going to give us a price per
mile and when we want additional services we're going to have to ask. They're going to
bill us for it so that we have a lot of change orders, but I don't know that they're going to
react like we do today. I don't know that they're going to be staffed adequately. And a
lot of times a fixed price contractor feels here's what I bid, you don't have a right to tell
me to add two more operators or three more operators or send your managers out
tonight.
You know, when we we're doing testing out CME, our contractor's management team
was out there overseeing it. You know that. Well, you were out there with us.
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Ms. Sorrell said when I was turning white at the motorcycles on Main. They were all out
there.
Mr. Abraham said it's the closest thing to us managing it ourselves is the best way I
could put it.
Ms. Sorrell said well, I guess where I'm struggling and I kind of need some help here is
when we did the -- what's the word I'm looking for? -- the option year, when we did the
two option years at one time, it was brought up at that point by a couple cities to look at
an alternative pricing method.
Mr. Abraham said yes.
Ms. Sorrell said and I'm seeing why this one you like it, but I'm not -- I'm having a hard
time seeing a comparison between the advantages or disadvantages of an alternative
pricing method
Mr. Abraham said I don't know -- I have no idea where the fixed price would come in. It
would be a shot in the dark to me. I don't know how they would quote it, how they
would come up with -- we would have to give them some idea of our special events.
But again, our special events are ever changing. We don't schedule trains for special
events until we know the expected attendance, so it's not like I could tell them for the
next three years there's going to be 28 ball games every summer and there's going to
be 20 basketball games, that we know, but we don't know how many people are
attending.
Ms. Sorrell said so, okay, and again, I'm just trying to educate, so I hear that, but then
on the bus side we have the fixed price, but we can't tell them when a light rail vehicle
breaks down and they need to do a bus bridging, you know, they can't predict that. So
how does that differ?
Mr. Abraham said well, glad you brought that up. We just had a discussion about bus
bridging. It's very, very hard to establish a bus bridge, because, yes, that's what we
have to do, we have to call our contractor and say can you help us. And they will if they
have staff, but a lot of times by the time we get the bus bridge we're thirty minutes, forty
minutes into an event.
It's just for me it's -- well, we're managing the East Valley. That's a fixed price contract.
And to be perfectly frank, I'm struggling, and I'll probably be looking to meet with the
East Valley cities in the next week or two to discuss it. I'm just really struggling because
we are faced with, I believe, we're faced with profit versus service quality.
Mr. Cook said I had a couple of questions. If you could go back a couple of slides, you
know -- On the complaints per 100,000 boardings, I mean, it's good to see it go down,
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but what is the industry average for complaints? I mean, clearly, you know, '13 was
higher than the other years, but where about is that -Mr. Abraham said I should know this, Dan, if I recall when I was given my reports to the
Board and the RMC, we're way below industry standards.
Mr. Cook said I would only question then if you're going to do this at the Board maybe
you could add that to the slide. And then if you would go ahead a couple of slides.
There. What was the -- why did Fiscal Year '10 have so many higher revenue miles as
opposed to the other years?
Mr. Abraham said that's when we had our service reduction. It was Fiscal Year '11, but
it was at the end of 2010
Mr. Cook said all right. That makes sense. And then the last question I had is -- sorry
about this one, but on your memo at the bottom of the first page and the top of the
second page, you start talking about the calendar year efforts to garner savings, but on
number two there where you're talking about calendar year '13, you say you reduce the
overhead rate for overtime wages from 100 percent to 15 percent.
Mr. Abraham said yes. That's correct.
Mr. Cook said and then that was an effective rate of 90.5.
Mr. Abraham said when you combine the two, yes.
Mr. Cook said but in '15, '16, you did the same -- you did a reduction from a 100 percent
to 93.7.
Mr. Abraham said the regular overhead we went from 100 percent to 93.7. Still
maintaining 15 percent.
Mr. Cook said oh, regular versus overtime. I see. Okay. All right. Good deal. I got it
now. Thanks.
Chair Paniagua said I'm just gonna jump in where Jodi left off a little bit. In listening to
you, I'm not sure that I'm convinced that a focus on cost means that we completely lose
the focus on customer service and flexibility.
Mr. Abraham said I'm not saying a focus on cost. We focus on cost. We focus on cost.
We scrutinize our cost pretty closely, but it we would not miss a trip, as an example, to
not pay overtime at this point.
Chair Paniagua said so what I'm saying is I'm not sure that a different model of contract
that has a different cost model is not just a straight up management style that we've
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been doing necessarily means that we lose that customer service and flexibility that's
there. I think it seems like there's clearly some lessons learned that you can take from
some of the fixed price contracts and maybe tweak those and do them a little bit
differently, but not necessarily go to the full fixed price model and still have some
customer service standards in place.
I guess my question is, is there a way that we can design the RFP and subsequently the
contract so that we do include some options for cost per hour, for example, within the
analysis of the RFP and setting up of the contract.
Mr. Abraham said I believe we can put an RFP out requesting them to give us two
different prices. I think it's going to be, again, my opinion, it's going to be hard when we
sit down and evaluate them because we're going to get a fixed price contract. We're
going to give them the best information we can. We know we're going to get some
changes throughout the year, at least I feel certain that's going to happen. So that fixed
price is going to change.
The other side, the cost plus fixed fee or management style contract how do we
compare the prices because they're -- to me their pricing parts of their contract are their
management costs, their fee, and their overhead. We already know what the
employees are getting paid, so them giving me a ballpark annual price of 8.7 million is a
guess on a fixed price. It might come in at 9.5 -- I mean, on a management style, I'm
sorry.
It may come in at eight -- but, I mean, we've been trending a little under what our
contractor tells us it's gonna cost us for each year. That would be my only problem in
doing that. I don't have a problem with doing it. I just don't know how we're going to
evaluate them.
So contractor A says I will do fixed price so much per mile it's going to cost you $9.8
million. And that same contractor says here's my overhead fee. If I do a cost plus,
here's my management cost, and here's my fee. How do I -- how do we determine
who's giving me the best price.
Chair Paniagua said yes, I understand the challenges there.
Mr. Abraham said that's what this management committee wants us to do, we'll go out
with a dual contract and go from there.
Chair Paniagua said it looks like the current contract expires in a year, no more
extensions.
Mr. Abraham said no more extensions, right.
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Chair Paniagua said does that year give you enough time to make some revisions to the
way the RFP is set up?
Mr. Abraham said yes, I'd like to get this RFP out in February. We've been working on
it, so we have a lot of the work done, because this was -- I actually wanted to put the
RFP out this month, but then we decided that we should come to the Board and the
committee and talk about it.
So I think if we get it out in February and worst-case scenario, assuming the incumbent
doesn't win it, as long as I think we could give an NTP by July, I think we're in good
shape, if we have to bring in a new company.
Chair Paniagua said do the types of changes that we're talking about right now, does
that impact your ability to do that by February?
Mr. Abraham said it would change a little bit of the scope of work, right, Joe? But I don't
think that impacts our ability to get it out by February.
Mr. Ramirez said we would have to focus on the scope, like you said, Ray, we would
have to set up the methodology on how to receive the alternate price offers, how we
allocate evaluation points.
And like Ray pointed out, we have to upfront know how we're going to compare the cost
reimbursement type management fee contract as compared to a fixed price car mile car
hour offer. And we will need a little time to decide that. But that doesn't preclude us
from issuing it out while we decide how we want to evaluate pricing, how we're going to
give weight to one versus the other.
We have experience with a success of a contract that has been in place in that model
with the tweaks that we make, but we don't know what the market will bring us, but I
don't foresee any significant delay in getting it out with some modifications. It would
take a little bit more resources, probably combination of discussions with internally here
and maybe some external partners, but I think we can get that done.
Mr. Cook said I have a question on them. Does this procurement have to follow FTA
federal regulations, because the reason I ask is, at least under US-DOT FHWA, you're
not allowed to procure alternatives, you know, you're supposed to do one model or the
other. You can't go out for two different types of contracts for the same thing, because
you're -- I'm not the expert on it, but they don't let you do, for example, a fixed price
versus this model. It's almost like you have to pick one and go bid it. And then either
reject it and go out for another one.
I think it probably ends up extenuating your time, but I think that's probably something
more that would be a discussion, I think, with the grant recipient and probably FTA as to
whether or not you can even do a multiple choice like that.
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Mr. Abraham said if we use federal dollars to pay for the service.
Mr. Cook said well, sometimes you've got to follow all the regulations. And I don't know
how that relates to FTA, though, that's where I lose my knowledge, but sometimes when
you use any federal money everything's got to be done to federal standards, but I don't
know.
Mr. Ramirez said we follow FTA third party C4221E guidelines. We also follow one
other set of best practices. I've been doing this for about twenty-five plus years. I have
not found anything in those two regulations that prohibit us to ask for an alternative
pricing. In other words, you have a scope and then you have a proposer give you two
different types of cost models or an evaluation. That's just normal practice. But I
certainly will chat with you if you have some other references.
Mr. Cook said well, my reference is really more on the highway side, you know, as
opposed to the FTA, so I'm not trying to say it. I only have that frame of reference. And
it sounds like you've already looked into it, so I think that answers the question.
Mr. Nevarez said Ray, I know we've talked about this, you know, more than once
before. But, you know, and I think the members were just concerned or wanted some
feeling that, again, it is a competitive process. I think how it's managed, you know, is
philosophical, but I'm just wondering how under a fixed cost plus management fee, what
part is evaluated. You said you know what the fixed cost is. Do you know what the
service is scheduled to provide in terms of hours or miles so you know what your labor
costs are and what have you.
Mr. Abraham said to a point, Mike. We don't know exactly.
Mr. Nevarez said you don't know your special events.
Mr. Abraham said correct. Right.
Mr. Nevarez said what's in the Transit Book excuse me, you know what it's going to
cost.
Mr. Abraham said correct. Yes.
Mr. Nevarez said so they could -- or you could build an estimate based on that.
Mr. Abraham said yes.
Mr. Nevarez said which I presume you're going to do or have done.
Mr. Abraham said yes, we will send out our schedule.
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Mr. Nevarez said what is your estimate for this cost. And since you don't know what the
special events are, you can't plan that, but you have to build a budget, and you're
supposed to be building it, I believe, a zero-based budget knowing, you know, what you
have to do and fill in all the current costs to do that. And then so if the only thing that's
really going to be negotiable then is going to be their overhead rates plus their profit.
Mr. Abraham said their fee and their overhead, yes, that's correct. And their proposed
management staffing. I mean, I'm going to look at their proposed staffing as a technical
criteria, and that's important to me to make sure that they really know what kind of
business we do here and how we do business.
We have cut management on this contract since its inception, because we didn't see the
need, so, again, I think I'm going to get five to six proposals. And if someone comes in
with ten or twelve management people, as far as I'm concerned they don't know the
business and they're not in the ball game anymore.
So, yes, it's going to be on management numbers, positions in cost of the managers,
because everything else is set. The operator's wages are set by the CBA -Mr. Nevarez said so are you only going to evaluate those portions?
Mr. Abraham said if it's a management contract -- yes.
Mr. Nevarez said then how do you provide some overhead, you know, on the wages.
You know, they're organized, they have to go through a process.
Mr. Abraham said absolutely.
Mr. Nevarez said what incentive are they going to have to try to keep that (unintelligible)
to a reasonable amount and not give away the farm since it is a cost reimbursement.
Mr. Abraham said first of all, we already know the contract. Now we have a five-year
contract. So we already know what their wage structure is. The overhead -- in our style
contract today, the overhead comes out of -- the health care benefits come out of the
overhead. And this question was asked of me a couple of times. Their incentive to
negotiate a reasonable contract is twofold. We don't pay them if they don't get our
approval. And they -- I hate to sound like this, but they won't be working here if they
don't negotiate a reasonable contract.
So, again, they have a five-year contract today. I don't believe if we ended up with a
new provider, I don't believe they have to honor it. I believe they have a right to
renegotiate.
But, again, that's where I think Valley Metro comes in. We don't want a labor dispute.
We don't want problems. We're going to try to ensure that the new contractor -- just as
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we tried to do out in the East Valley, we tried to make sure this contractor came in and
kept the employees whole. That's what I'm struggling with in trying to compare the two
contracts.
Mr. Nevarez said I know what we wanted to do, we had mentioned before, is relative to
what we're paying at least for operations. Are there other peer cities -- you know, what
are their operation rates. Since we do our own maintenance, you know, try as way of -try to come to those.
Mr. Abraham said I am trying to look at other properties. We looked at NTD information.
I just sat down an hour today looking. People report NTD differently. I'll give you an
example. Salt Lake City reports to the NTD their overhead service is $1200 a year,
ours is three million. And they're three times the size of us, so it's so hard to compare to
these peer properties.
But what I did do is I just took our transportation cost and our vehicle maintenance cost
just to give us a ballpark to compare it and we're at less than $6 a mile. That's not
system maintenance, so don't misunderstand me. That's just vehicle maintenance.
So if we wanted to compare it to a bus contract where you maintain the equipment and
you provide the service, maintaining our LRVs and providing transportation service, in
Fiscal '15 our cost was under $6 a mile -- revenue mile. And that is inclusive of, again,
CME start up for they're not revenue miles, so they're not reported as revenue miles.
Mr. Nevarez said right. So, again, the assumption is you already know what the
operating cost is, so you're not going to necessarily evaluate that, but you know what
the cost is. So they're not going to submit any costs for operating, just their
management fee.
Mr. Abraham said I don't see any sense in it. The last time we put this contract out I
was involved in the original contract and they did. They did bid it. They showed an
operator wage, a supervisor wage, they took a guess at staff, and that's how they bid
the contract.
But this was 10 years ago. And that's why we executed that one change order,
because once we let the contract out, we changed our schedule, we decided to run
peak service throughout the whole day so that added staff. And then they were coming
in hoping to pay -- I don't know. Don't quote me -- $15 to $16 an hour. Well, a CBA
was at $18 almost $19 an hour, so that changed for them. And so that's why in '12 we
compensated them for the years that occurred.
Mr. Anderson said but Mr. Chair, if it's the wish of everybody that we put out a dual
procurement, we will certainly do it. And then we'll just discuss how we evaluate it.
Ms. Sorrell said Joe, can you come back up for a minute? Can you help me reconcile,
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because I'm just listening and I'm trying to like get something, so if I have to go explain
this to my vice mayor, I can at least sound semi like I know what I'm talking about. So
when we're talking about the evaluation criteria, isn't this -- who makes up the
evaluation criteria? Does -- Ray, do you, or do you guys do it together.
Mr. Ramirez said collaboratively. Okay. So you guys could potentially develop some
evaluation criteria collaboratively that would allow -- that you would feel comfortable with
in evaluating an RFP that did the dual proposals so that if we went down this path and
we went down the dual path option that if we got -- when we got to the point of awarding
a contract, it was all neat, tidy, and everything was okay.
Mr. Abraham said I think we can, Jodi.
Mr. Ramirez said somewhat of a normal practice in other types of procurements where
you have multiple options and you have to carefully lay out either your specs or your
scope. Your evaluation criteria, what your assumptions are. You have to give some
people some assumptions.
For them to propose back. And that's why we will work together because we had known
assumptions and costs on one model, the other one may be new, so that's kind of the
dialogue that we want to make sure we have a correct balance on those assumptions
so we get information back that can be evaluated individually and then comparatively.
Ms. Sorrell said and then, because I'm kind of guessing, when it comes to something
like a special event, after eight years, nine years of service, we have a pretty good idea
what those consistent special events are, with the exception of the minor ones like this
weekend, not so minor, but like the random ones like this weekend that would be
coming in. So we could get a pretty good baseline when it comes to that option.
Mr. Ramirez said without really confirming with Ray and my team, I would just say this,
that you could put in your scope here's a certain amount of assumptions. And here's
another set of assumptions for special events with some tolerances, and then propose
on that, then we'll refine that and evaluate it collectively one against the other. Using the
same assumptions, because the proposers would expect that, you expect that, we
expect that. That's how we evaluate and award contracts.
Mr. Abraham said I think that method could work or we could -- as Mike said earlier, we
could give them our base schedule. This is what we put out every day every week, and
then give us a price per mile per hour for special events. But then we, in the
background, we're evaluating, would have to look at what we believe our special events
entail and calculate what that upcharge would be on fixed price contract.
Mr. Anderson said Mr. Chairman, members of the Rail Management Committee, just to
jump in here a little bit, I think the key thing here is making sure that the RFP has
sufficient detail on performance standards and operating characteristics for the rail line
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so you can give the proposers good information, and you want to make sure that each
proposer is using the same assumptions. And I think Joe mentioned that, too, is very
key, so you can actually compare across different companies.
I think the tricky thing is, and quite frankly, the special events, I agree, that we have
eight years or so of special events, we kind of know what the operational characteristics
are base, as well as special events, and so I think that can be captured in an RFP. I
hope I'm not speaking out of school to these guys.
But anyway, I think we can craft something that provides an apples and apples
comparison. I think it's really what you have to do so you can't have a company
proposing perhaps a cost that includes X, Y, and Z, but doesn't include A, B, and C, so
you want to make sure that all the proposers include the same assumptions, so you can
make that comparison.
The bottom line is that, you know, I think this process can work whether you're looking
at either of the cost models. It does significantly increase both the size of the RFP, the
time it's going to take proposers to respond to it.
But this is also a big contract, so you know, once again, that's why I think making sure
the performance standards, our expectations are clearly articulated in our RFP is really
key to this. And, once again, given that we have a lot more operating experience now
than when this contract was first let, then, I think, you know, we can give the proposers
a lot more solid information about what they can expect.
Mr. Nevarez said you know, but my real concern about all of this is that we come back
and we've had this experience, well, gee, this is a great deal, it's going to save us a lot
of money.
Mr. Abraham said that won't happen.
Mr. Nevarez said let's do it. And we've paid the price before. You know, cost is a
consideration, but it's not the main determining factor.
Mr. Abraham said I agree with you, Mike. We need to be careful. If we get a fixed price
comes in very low, we need to, before we even jump, make sure that the staffing and
the understanding of what we do every day is adequate and that these folks know what
we do every day and how we do it. And, again, how important service is to us.
Chair Paniagua said I appreciate your help in kind of getting to a point a good place
where we can all feel comfortable with moving forward. One request I would have is
that the cities be involved as the RFP language is developed and the criteria for
evaluation are developed, if we can be involved in that, we really would appreciate that.
Mr. Abraham said we can do that.
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Chair Paniagua said moving forward so that we know what's coming in as this goes
forward.
Mr. Abraham said not a problem.
8.

Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current Events

None.
With no further discussion the meeting adjourned at 1:38 p.m.
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 3

SUBJECT
Interim Chief Executive Officer’s Report
PURPOSE
Scott Smith, Interim Chief Executive Officer, will brief the RMC on current issues.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Scott Smith
Interim Chief Executive Officer
602-262-7433
ssmith@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None

VALLEY METRO • 101 N 1ST AVE • STE 1300 • PHOENIX AZ • 85003 • 602-262-7433

DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4A

SUBJECT
Fiscal Year 2015 Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) and Single Audit Reporting Package
PURPOSE
To request that the Valley Metro Rail, Inc. Board of Directors accept the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and Single Audit Reporting Package (SARP) for the
period ended June 30, 2015.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
In October 2002, the cities of Glendale, Mesa, Phoenix, and Tempe formed Valley
Metro Rail, Inc. (METRO), an Arizona public nonprofit corporation. METRO is
responsible for the planning, designing, construction, and operation of the Light Rail
Transit (LRT) System in the region. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 is the twelfth
full year of operation as a separate entity.
The By-Laws of the Corporation require an annual audit to be performed of the financial
records by a certified public accountant. In addition, all recipients of federal grant funds
are required to have an audit performed in compliance with the Single Audit Act
provisions. The reports contained in the attached Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report meet these requirements for the period ended June 30, 2015. All reports are
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
METRO is required to have an independent audit of expenditures of federal awards
received (Single Audit Act) directly from federal agencies or passed through by other
governmental entities during the period. The standards governing Single Audit Act
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation
of the financial statements, but also on the internal control over compliance and other
matters having a direct and material impact on major programs, with special emphasis
on internal controls and compliance requirements involving the administration of major
federal awards.
Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. has completed the METRO audits for the period ended
June 30, 2015. Completion of the June 30, 2015 financial statement and Single Audit
Act audits produced no findings.
METRO’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2015 received an
unmodified opinion. Attached you will find a copy of the Independent Auditor’s Report,
Management Discussion and Analysis section of the CAFR, Audit Standards Disclosure
and Single Audit Reporting Package Reports.
VALLEY METRO • 101 N 1ST AVE • STE 1300 • PHOENIX AZ • 85003 • 602-262-7433

The complete CAFR and SARP reports are available on our website at the following
URL: http://www.valleymetro.org/publications_reports/annual_reports
COST AND BUDGET
None
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:
 Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o
Tactic E: Maintain strong fiscal controls to support Valley Metro’s long-term
sustainability.
COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
Financial Working Group: January 20, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors acceptance of the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Single Audit Reporting Package for the
period ended June 30, 2015.
CONTACT
John P. McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-262-7433
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENTS
Auditors Opinion – CAFR Fiscal Year 2015
Management Discussion and Analysis – CAFR Fiscal Year 2015
Audit Standards Disclosure
Auditors Opinion – Single Audit Reporting Package Fiscal Year 2015
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10120 N. Oracle Road
Tucson, Arizona 85704
Tel (520) 742-2611
Fax (520) 742-2718

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Valley Metro Rail, Inc., as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of Valley Metro Rail, Inc., as of June 30, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s financial statements. The Introductory Section,
Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual, listed as Other Supplementary Information in the table
of contents, and Statistical Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements.
The Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the Schedule of Operations – Budget and Actual is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.
The Introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 10, 2015, on our consideration of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants
November 10, 2015
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VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As management of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR), we offer this narrative overview and analysis of
the financial activities of VMR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages iii – ix of this report. This
discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial
issues, (2) provide an overview of VMR’s financial activity, (3) identify changes in VMR’s financial
position, (4) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (adopted annual budget), and (5)
identify other issues or concerns.

Financial Highlights
•

VMR’s total net position increased $21.4 million in FY 2015. The increase was caused by new
capital investments which exceeded scheduled depreciation charges. Total net position for
VMR was $1.216 billion at June 30, 2015.

•

VMR’s operating revenues for FY 2015 were $35.1 million compared to $33.4 million for the
prior period, an increase of $1.7 million, or 5.1%. Advertising revenues, fare revenues and
regional revenues for the regional capital rebuild program were up over last year. Operating
expenses were $80.3 million compared to $79.0 million, an increase of $1.3 million, or 1.6%
With the system now over five years old, the capital asset rebuild program has commenced
expending $0.9 million to maintain the light rail vehicle fleet in a state of good repair.

•

Capital contributions totaled $73.8 million primarily consisting of Public Transportation Funds of
$29.9 million and Federal Transit Administration Capital Grants totaling $43.8 million.
Construction in progress additions for capital projects include $60.9 million for the Central Mesa
LRT extension and $65.1 million for the Northwest LRT extension. In addition, the capital funds
provided for conveyance of $3.9 million in real estate to member cities.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VMR’s financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). GAAP requires that the financial statements be
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the government’s financial
activities in the form of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” (MD&A). The financial section of
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for VMR consists of this discussion and
analysis and the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
schedules presented after the basic financial statements. VMR’s basic financial statements include
a statement of net position; a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; a
statement of cash flows; and the notes to the financial statements. VMR’s financial statements are
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB).
Fund Financial Statements – VMR is presented as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used
for activities that primarily serve customers outside the governmental unit. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or conditions. Funds are used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements as well as for managerial control to demonstrate fiduciary
responsibility over the assets of VMR.
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
The statement of net position presents information on all of VMR’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of VMR is improving or
deteriorating.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position presents information
showing how the agency’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in
net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected grant
revenues).
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes to the financial statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements
and should be read with the financial statements. The notes can be found beginning on page 13.
Enterprise Operations – VMR was formed in October 2002 by the cities of Glendale, Mesa,
Phoenix and Tempe as a public nonprofit corporation to manage design, construction and operation
of the Light Rail Transit (LRT) System within the Metropolitan Area. The city of Chandler became
the fifth contributing member in April of 2007. The member cities pay for their share of VMR’s
operating expenses based on expense allocation methods approved in the by-laws of VMR. See
Note 1 for a summary of VMR’s significant accounting policies.

Light Rail Ridership Comparison 2011 / 2012 / 2013 / 2014 / 2015
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF VMR
The following tables and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial position
for VMR as a whole as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, with comparative information for
the previous period.
Net Position – Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of VMR’s financial position.
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2015,
compared to the prior period.
VMR's Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014

Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total assets

$

Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total liabilities
Net Investment in Capital
Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

Change
(10,563,997)
91,580,325
81,016,328

Percent
Change
-14.8%
7.4%
6.2%

57,604,636
60,893,586
118,498,222

(1,953,869)
61,525,484
59,571,615

-3.4%
101.0%
50.3%

1,203,645,659
12,101,637

1,181,649,049
12,653,534

21,996,610
(551,897)

1.9%
-4.4%

1,215,747,296

$ 1,194,302,583

2015
60,587,759
1,333,229,374
1,393,817,133

2014
$
71,151,756
1,241,649,049
1,312,800,805

55,650,767
122,419,070
178,069,837

$

$

21,444,713

1.8%

Total net position represents the sum of VMR’s unrestricted net position plus net investment in
capital assets. The largest portions of the investment are capital assets for the Central
Phoenix/East Valley Light Rail Transit Project (CP/EV LRT). In December 2008, VMR placed these
capital assets into service for operation of the light rail transit system and in day-to-day operations
of VMR. It is not VMR’s intention to sell these assets and they are therefore not available for future
spending. Net position increased $21.4 million largely due to the addition of the construction in
progress for the Central Mesa Extension and the Northwest Extension capital projects. Funding
sources for the new investments include Federal grants and Public Transportation Funds.
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Total operating revenues, which consist of Contributions from Member Cities, Passenger Fares,
FTA grants, Regional Capital Rebuild Revenue and Other Revenues (advertising and MAG
planning funds), increased by $1.7 million. Member City contributions decreased ($0.2) million;
favorably impacted by increased fare revenues $0.3 million and increased advertising revenues of
$1.2 million, offsetting a ($0.3) million reduction in federal operating grants.
Operating expenses increased by $1.3 million to $80.3 million: Administrative expenditures
increased from $8.8 to $9.1 million (3.3%). Passenger Operations Service expenses were near
level, up from $31.260 to $31.289 million (0.1%) Negotiated reductions in contracted transportation
costs and insurance cost reductions offset maintenance cost increases. The regional capital rebuild
program commenced in FY15 expending $0.9 million for Light Rail Vehicle brake systems.
Depreciation expense was $39.0 million, slightly up from $38.9 million in the prior year.
Non-Operating expenses: This year's non-operating revenue and expense activities report a net
($7.1) million decrease in net position. The decrease includes private utility relocation expense
($5.1) million capital conveyance of real estate to member cities ($3.9) million, and interest on
capital funding obligations ($0.5) million. In addition, Public Transportation Fund interest expense
($8.1) million was recorded for bond proceeds advanced from the Regional Public Transportation
Authority; see Note 10 for details.
The expenses were offset by Regional Public
Transportation Funds revenue of $10.5 million.
The following table compares the revenues and expenses of VMR for the current fiscal year and
the previous period.
VMR's Changes in Net Position
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
2015
Operating revenues:
Contributions from Member Cities
Passenger Fares
FTA Operating Grants
Regional Capital Rebuild Revenue
Other Revenues
Operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Administrative
Passenger Operations Service
Regional Capital Rebuild Program
Depreciation
Operating expenses

$

2014

16,590,974
12,832,286
2,135,431
305,245
3,272,014
35,135,950

$

16,803,600
12,505,116
2,400,132
1,730,566
33,439,414

9,128,597
31,288,715
881,021
39,014,089
80,312,422

8,840,445
31,260,365
38,911,674
79,012,484

Operating income (loss)

(45,176,472)

Non-operating revenues (expense)
Deficiency before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position, July 1
Net Position, June 30

$

Change
$

(212,626)
327,170
(264,701)
305,245
1,541,447
1,696,535

Percent
Change
-1.3%
2.6%
-11.0%
0.0%
89.1%
5.1%

288,152
28,350
881,021
102,415
1,299,938

3.3%
0.1%
0.0%
0.3%
1.6%

(45,573,070)

396,597

-0.9%

(7,148,361)
(52,324,833)

(19,372,892)
(64,945,961)

12,224,531
12,621,128

-63.1%
-19.4%

73,769,546
21,444,713

113,824,977
48,879,016

(40,055,431)
(27,434,303)

-35.2%
-56.1%

1,194,302,583

1,145,423,567

1,215,747,296

$ 1,194,302,583
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$

48,879,016

4.3%

21,444,713

1.8%

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
Capital contributions totaling $73.8 million consist of FTA capital grants $43.8 million and Public
Transportation Funds $29.9 million. Capital projects funded include the Central Mesa and
Northwest Extension construction projects. The ($40.1) million decrease versus prior year capital
contributions were primarily related to a ($56.3) million decrease in PTF contributions for capital
projects offset by a 16.3 million increase in federal capital grants. While PTF Capital revenue
contributions were reduced, PTF bond advances of $69.6 million from the Regional Public
Transportation Authority (RPTA) provided funds to support the Northwest Extension and Central
Mesa Extension capital construction projects.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG TERM DEBT
Capital Assets:
The following table provides a breakdown of capital assets of VMR at June 30, 2015, with
comparative information for the previous period. Additional information on VMR’s capital assets
may be found in Note 5.
VMR's Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014

Buildings
Guideway
Bridges
Operation Control Center
Passenger Stations and Facilities
Park and Ride Facilities
Electric Power Substations
Signal and Communication System
Computers and Software
Revenue Vehicles
Non-Revenue Vehicles
Site Improvements
Equipment
Construction in Progress
Net Capital Assets

Percent
Change
-3.0%
-2.2%
-4.1%
-4.0%
-4.1%
-10.3%
-5.1%
-6.9%
-99.7%
-5.2%
-12.8%
27905.6%
-14.9%

2014
84,794,636
503,336,746
50,238,383
10,903,077
83,259,135
25,906,761
69,210,351
35,164,511
130,578
170,655,251
823,683
11,329
5,969,319

Change
$ (2,563,303)
(11,310,564)
(2,050,546)
(436,781)
(3,398,332)
(2,667,729)
(3,549,517)
(2,425,723)
(130,230)
(8,792,128)
(105,132)
3,161,431
(889,690)

327,983,858

201,245,289

126,738,569

63.0%

$ 1,333,229,374

$ 1,241,649,049

$ 91,580,325

7.4%

$

2015
82,231,333
492,026,182
48,187,837
10,466,296
79,860,803
23,239,032
65,660,834
32,738,788
348
161,863,123
718,551
3,172,760
5,079,629

$

As of June 30, 2015, VMR had $1,333.2 million in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.
There was a net increase in capital assets, of $91.6 million from June 30, 2014; primarily resulting
from an increase to construction in progress of $126.7 million primarily for the Central Mesa $60.9
million and Northwest Extension $65.1 million LRT projects. Site Improvements increased by $3.2
million primarily due to the OMC Solar Panel project which will reduce future costs of electricity.
New construction increases were offset by the annual depreciation charge of $39.0 million for the
Light Rail system infrastructure. Refer to Note 5 on page 19 for more information regarding the
capital assets.
Long Term Debt:
VMR signed the Project Funding Agreement (Northwest Light Rail Extension) with the City of
Phoenix on December 20, 2012. The agreement provided $60 million during fiscal years 2013 and
2014 to fund the expenses of the Northwest Light Rail Extension capital project. These funds will
be repaid to City of Phoenix with Regional Public Transportation Funds (PTF) on June 30, 2017.
Refer to Note 8 on page 20 for more information regarding the funding agreement.
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
In April 2015, the VMR and RPTA Boards amended the interagency LRT Program Agreement
whereby RPTA holds an interagency receivable for PTF bond proceeds advanced to VMR to fund
LRT capital projects. In FY15, the PTF Advance Bond Proceeds due from VMR to RPTA totaled
$69.6 million. See Note 10 for details.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
VMR’s adopted fiscal year 2016 total operating and capital budget is $162.8 million, down ($69.4)
million from fiscal year 2015’s amended budget. The primary cause for the decrease is within the
capital budget; with decreases to the construction activities for the Northwest Extension ($31.2M)
and Central Mesa ($39.1M) LRT projects and related utility relocations and Concurrent Non Project
Activities (CNPAs) down by ($10.9M) and ($6.1M) respectively. Offsetting the decreases are
increases to budgets for the Gilbert Road Capital Project $3.9M, South Tempe Streetcar $1.4M and
Phoenix West Extension $5.6M. Background on the capital projects may be found in the
Statistical Section commencing on page 30.
On the operating side, VMR’s FY16 budget is $49.3 million, up $7.8 million versus fiscal year 2015
primarily due to the addition of 3.1 miles revenue operations with the start-up of the Central Mesa
Extension. Revenue operations costs are up $5.5M to $37.7M in FY16. Additions in planning
project work scope for Tempe Streetcar and the South Central Phoenix LRT Extension increase the
Future Project Development budget by $2.3M to $10.7M in FY16.

Comparison of Annual Expenditure Budgets
Fiscal Year 2016 vs. 2015

Uses of Funds

FY 2016
Adopted
($,000)

Operating Activities:
Revenue Operations
Future Project Development
Agency Operating Budget

FY 2015
Amended
($,000)

Change
($,000)

37,654
10,741
909
49,304

32,156
8,444
928
41,528

5,498
2,297
(19)
7,776

Capital Projects:
Northwest Extension
Non-Prior Rights Utilities Relocations
Other Capital Projects:
Central Mesa Extension
Gilbert Road Capital Project
South Tempe Streetcar
Phoenix West Extension
CNPAs - Mesa Extension
CNPAs - Northwest Extension
Systemwide Improvements
Subtotal Capital before Debt Service

44,272
2,830

75,493
13,755

19,373
9,306
6,631
6,000
5,720
94,132

58,448
5,388
5,257
415
2,045
4,011
6,480
171,292

(31,221)
(10,925)
(39,075)
3,918
1,374
5,585
(2,045)
(4,011)
(760)
(77,160)

Capital Project Debt Service:
Debt Service - Interest
Debt Service - Principal

7,742
11,618

8,120
11,241

(378)
377

162,796

232,181

(69,385)

Total Uses of Funds
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Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Concluded)

FINANCIAL CONTACT
The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of VMR’s finances and to
demonstrate accountability for the use of public funds. Questions about any of the information
provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
VMR’s Chief Financial Officer, Valley Metro Rail, Inc., 101 North 1st Avenue, Suite 1300, Phoenix,
Arizona 85003.
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VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
AUDIT STANDARDS DISCLOSURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

10120 N. Oracle Road
Tucson, Arizona 85704
Tel (520) 742-2611
Fax (520) 742-2718

November 30, 2015
To the Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
(VMR) for the year ended June 30, 2015. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter
provided to you during the planning phase of the audit. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following matters related to our audit.
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Valley Metro Rail, Inc. are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. As discussed in Note 10 to the financial statements the VMR and RPTA Boards
amended the interagency LRT Agreement, whereby RTPA will hold an interagency receivable from
VMR for the advance of bond proceeds. The amended agreement resulted in a change to the financial
statements of VMR and RPTA that should be noted for comparability to prior year financial
statements.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from management’s current judgments.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements are:



Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on the length
of time management estimates those assets will provide some economic benefit in the future.
Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivable balances is based on
past experience and future expectation for collection of various account balances.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that
they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the
applicable opinion units.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
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Audit Adjustments
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. During the course of the audit we did not identify any misstatements which require
communication.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the
management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of the audit.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s financial statements
or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were
no such consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.
Discussions with Management
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management throughout the course of the year. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition
to our retention as the VMR’s auditors.
Compliance with Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence
The engagement team, others in our firm, and as appropriate, our firm, have complied with all
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. continually
assesses client relationships to comply with relevant ethical requirements, including independence,
integrity, and objectivity, and policies and procedures related to the acceptance and continuance of
client relationships and specific engagements. Our firm follows the “Independence Rule” of the
AICPA Code of Professional Conduct and the rules of state boards of accountancy and applicable
regulatory agencies. It is the policy of the firm that all employees be familiar with and adhere to the
independence, integrity, and objectivity rules, regulations, interpretations, and rulings of the AICPA,
U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO), and applicable state boards of accountancy.
Responsibility for Fraud
It is important for both management and the members of the governing body to recognize their role
in preventing, deterring, and detecting fraud. One common misconception is that the auditors are
responsible for detecting fraud. Auditors are required to plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements do not include material misstatements caused by
fraud. Unfortunately most frauds which occur in an organization do not meet this threshold.
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The attached document prepared by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE) is
provided as a courtesy to test the effectiveness of the fraud prevention measures of your organization.
Some of these steps may already be in place, others may not. Not even the most well-designed
internal controls or procedures can prevent and detect all forms of fraud. However, an awareness of
fraud related factors, as well as the active involvement by management and the members of the
governing body in setting the proper “tone at the top”, increases the likelihood that fraud will be
prevented, deterred and detected.
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of the members of the Board of Directors and
management of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.
Very truly yours,

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants
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Fraud Prevention Checklist
The most cost-effective way to limit fraud losses is to prevent fraud from occurring. This checklist is
designed to help organizations test the effectiveness of their fraud prevention measures.
1. Is ongoing anti-fraud training provided to all employees of the organization?


Do employees understand what constitutes fraud?



Have the costs of fraud to the company and everyone in it — including lost profits, adverse
publicity, job loss and decreased morale and productivity — been made clear to employees?



Do employees know where to seek advice when faced with uncertain ethical decisions, and
do they believe that they can speak freely?



Has a policy of zero-tolerance for fraud been communicated to employees through words and
actions?

2. Is an effective fraud reporting mechanism in place?


Have employees been taught how to communicate concerns about known or potential
wrongdoing?



Is there an anonymous reporting channel available to employees, such as a third-party
hotline?



Do employees trust that they can report suspicious activity anonymously and/or
confidentially and without fear of reprisal?



Has it been made clear to employees that reports of suspicious activity will be promptly and
thoroughly evaluated?



Do reporting policies and mechanisms extend to vendors, customers and other outside
parties?

3. To increase employees’ perception of detection, are the following proactive measures taken
and publicized to employees?


Is possible fraudulent conduct aggressively sought out, rather than dealt with passively?



Does the organization send the message that it actively seeks out fraudulent conduct through
fraud assessment questioning by auditors?



Are surprise fraud audits performed in addition to regularly scheduled audits?



Is continuous auditing software used to detect fraud and, if so, has the use of such software
been made known throughout the organization?

4. Is the management climate/tone at the top one of honesty and integrity?


Are employees surveyed to determine the extent to which they believe management acts with
honesty and integrity?



Are performance goals realistic?



Have fraud prevention goals been incorporated into the performance measures against which
managers are evaluated and which are used to determine performance-related compensation?



Has the organization established, implemented and tested a process for oversight of fraud
risks by the board of directors or others charged with governance (e.g., the audit committee)?

5. Are fraud risk assessments performed to proactively identify and mitigate the company’s
vulnerabilities to internal and external fraud?
6. Are strong anti-fraud controls in place and operating effectively, including the following?


Proper separation of duties



Use of authorizations



Physical safeguards



Job rotations



Mandatory vacations

7. Does the internal audit department, if one exists, have adequate resources and authority to
operate effectively and without undue influence from senior management?
8. Does the hiring policy include the following (where permitted by law)?


Past employment verification



Criminal and civil background checks



Credit checks



Drug screening



Education verification



References check

9. Are employee support programs in place to assist employees struggling with addictions,
mental/ emotional health, family or financial problems?
10. Is an open-door policy in place that allows employees to speak freely about pressures,
providing management the opportunity to alleviate such pressures before they become
acute?
11. Are anonymous surveys conducted to assess employee morale?

VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Valley Metro Rail,
Inc.’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 10, 2015.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Valley Metro
Rail, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants

November 10, 2015
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Required by OMB Circular A-133
Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2015. Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Valley
Metro Rail, Inc.’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Valley Metro Rail, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133
We have audited the financial statements of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Valley Metro Rail, Inc.’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated
November 10, 2015, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements.
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The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CPAs and Business Consultants

November 10, 2015

Page 5

VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2015

CFDA
Number

Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct Grants:
Federal Transit Adminstration
Federal Transit Cluster:
Federal Transit-Capital Investment Grants
Federal Transit-Capital Investment Grants
Federal Transit- Formula Grants
Federal Transit- Formula Grants
Federal Transit- Formula Grants
Federal Transit- Formula Grants
Federal Transit- Formula Grants
State of Good Repair Grants Program
State of Good Repair Grants Program
Total Federal Transit Cluster

20.500
20.500
20.507
20.507
20.507
20.507
20.507
20.525
20.525

Pass-Through
Grantor

City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix
City of Phoenix

Pass-Through
Identifying Number

AZ-03-0066
AZ-05-0204
AZ-90-X124
AZ-90-X131
AZ-95-X009
AZ-95-X015
AZ-95-X023
AZ-54-0002
AZ-54-0004

Awards Expended

$

29,606,544 $
1,106,434
185,371
69,280
1,831,040
9,563,517
409,640
166,068
203,387
43,141,281

Alternatives Analysis

20.522

City of Phoenix

AZ-39-0005

254,895

Capital Assistance Program for Reducing Energy Consumption
and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

20.523

City of Phoenix

AZ-88-0001

2,553,136

Total Federal Transit Administration

45,949,312

Passed through City of Phoenix:
National Infrastructure Investments

20.933

City of Phoenix

AZ-79-1001

35,192

Total U.S. Department of Transportation
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Page 6

45,984,504
$

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

45,984,504

VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of Valley Metro Rail, Inc. under programs of the federal government
for the year ended June 30, 2015. The information in the Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the VMR, it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the VMR.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the
applicable OMB cost principles circular, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Any negative amounts shown on the Schedule
represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported
as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

NOTE 3 – CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS
The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the federal or pass-through
grantor or the 2015 Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance. When no CFDA number had
been assigned to a program, the two-digit federal agency identifier, a period, and the federal
contract number were used. When there was no federal contract number, the two-digit
federal agency identifier, a period, and the word “unknown” were used.
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VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
 Material weakness(es) identified?
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

yes
yes

X
X

no
none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

yes

X

no

yes
yes

X
X

no
none reported

X

no

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
 Material weakness(es) identified?
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

yes

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers
29.500, 20.507, 20.525
20.523

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Federal Transit Cluster
Capital Assistance Program for Reducing Energy Consumption and
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type
B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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$1,379,535
X

yes

no

VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
None reported.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARDS
None reported.
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VALLEY METRO RAIL, INC.
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Status of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
The VMR had no findings or questioned costs related to federal awards noted in prior audits that
require a status.
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4B

SUBJECT
Contract Change Order with DMS Facility Services, Inc. for Facility Maintenance
Services
PURPOSE
To request authorization for the Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute a
contract change order to the Valley Metro contract with DMS Facility Services, Inc. in
the amount of $242,302 to cover the costs of additional facility maintenance services for
the Central Mesa and Northwest Extensions.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
In August 2013 the Board of Directors authorized a contract award to DMS Facility
Services, Inc. to provide facility maintenance services for a 5-year term. Under the
terms of the contract which commenced on November 1, 2013, the contractor provides
all necessary vehicles, tools, supplies, materials and other related equipment required
to perform a full range of facility maintenance services related to bus and light rail, such
as:
 East Valley Bus Transit Facility;
 Light Rail Operations and Maintenance Center;
 Light rail park-and-ride lots and security offices located on the lots;
 Light rail operator facilities at end-of-line stations;
 Passenger stations, substations and signal stations;

The original scope of work in the contract was for the original 20 mile light rail
alignment. This requested change order to the contract is to include additional scope of
work for the Central Mesa Extension which opened in August 2015 and for the
Northwest Extension which is scheduled to be operational in March 2016.
COST AND BUDGET
Current value of the 5-year contract is $2,716,723. Cost of the change order for the
additional scope of work through the end of the contract of October 31, 2018 is in the
amount of $242,302 and is included in the Valley Metro Rail FY16 Adopted Operating
and Capital Budget. Contract obligations beyond FY16 are incorporated into the Valley
Metro Rail Five-Year Operating Forecast and Capital Program (FY16 – FY20).

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:


Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o Tactic A: Operate an effective, reliable, high performing transit system
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COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 20, 2016 for information
RMC: February 4, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 19, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors authorization for the
Interim CEO to execute a contract change order to the Valley Metro contract with DMS
Facility Services, Inc. in the amount of $242,302 to cover the costs of additional facility
maintenance services for the Central Mesa and Northwest Extensions.
CONTACT
Ray Abraham
Chief Operations Officer
602-652-5054
rabraham@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None

2

DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4C

SUBJECT
Increased Funding for Project Controls Aconex System Software
PURPOSE
To request authorization 1) to increase the funding for this contract by $110,000,
allowing unlimited user licenses for all corridor planning; the Gilbert Road LRT
Extension Project; the 50th Street Station Project; and the Tempe Streetcar Project and
2) to increase the total authorized amount for this contract to $460,000.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Valley Metro was in need of new project controls system software because Oracle
would no longer support our current project controls system Primavera Contract
Manager (PCM). An RFP for Project Controls System Services was issued on May 22,
2015 to procure the new project controls system software. The procurement process
resulted in Aconex being selected because the software best met the technical
requirements of the RFP and the firm offered the best value to Valley Metro.
On September 17, 2015 the METRO Board of Directors authorized the CEO to execute
a five-year contract with Aconex for the new project controls system software for an
amount not to exceed $350,000. The initial application of Aconex project controls
system software was for 50 user licenses for the Gilbert Road Extension Project.
There are now accelerated projects that are advancing through the planning phase into
the design phase, e.g. the 50th Street Station Project; the Tempe Streetcar Project; and
all future corridor planning and thus it is necessary to purchase additional licenses for
those projects.
After negotiations with Aconex for additional licenses it was determined that the most
cost effective plan was to purchase an unlimited number of licenses. This contract
modification will include unlimited licenses for a 36 month duration for each project
organization with full version control process management reporting, search capabilities
with documentation configuration and deliverables with real-time processing and ease
of real-time backup.
COST AND BUDGET
The increased funding for this contract of $110,000 will allow Valley Metro to purchase
unlimited licenses for all corridor planning and the above mentioned capital projects.
The additional funding will increase the total authorized amount for this contract to
$460,000.
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SUMMARY OF CHANGE
Authorization (for 50
User Licenses)
Aconex Contract
Contingency
Total
Previous Board Authorization
New Board Authorization

$251,000
$99,000
$350,000

Proposed Cost for
Unlimited User
Licenses
$410,000
0
$410,000

Total
$410,000
$50,000
$460,000
$(350,000)
$110,000

Funding:
Initial
Issue
Amendment
$ 350,000

Total Contract
$350,000

4022 Future Project Development

$50,000

$50,000

4028 Tempe Streetcar

$30,000

$30,000

4031 50th Street Station
Total Contract and
Amendments

$30,000

$30,000

$110,000

$460,000

Project
4036 Gilbert Road Extension

$350,000

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:


Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o
Tactic C: Deliver projects and services on-time/on-budget.
o
Tactic E: Maintain strong fiscal controls to support Valley Metro’s longterm sustainability.

COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors authorization for the
Interim CEO:
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1) to increase the funding for this contract by $110,000, allowing unlimited user
licenses for all corridor planning; the Gilbert Road LRT Extension Project; the
50th Street Station Project; and the Tempe Streetcar Project; and
2) to increase the total authorized amount for this contract to $460,000.
CONTACT
Rick Brown, P.E.
Chief Engineer
602-744-5556
rbrown@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4D

SUBJECT
2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation Agenda
PURPOSE
To request Board approval of the 2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation
Agenda.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Each year, Valley Metro works with member city intergovernmental staff to develop a
federal public transportation legislative agenda. The agenda provides information to
member cities to bring attention to the importance of federal involvement in public
transportation in the Phoenix metropolitan region.
In December 2015, Congress enacted long-term, fully funded transportation legislation
for the first time in a decade. The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act
authorizes surface transportation programs and is fully funded through September
2020. The total authorized funding for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) programs is
increased by $61.1 billion over the life of the bill – a 17.7 percent increase over current
annual funding levels.
Congress also reached an historic agreement that puts an end to the annual debate
whether to restore parity to transit commuter tax benefits at the end of 2015. There is
now permanent parity between parking and transit tax benefits. Congress also included
a two-year extension of tax credits for the use of alternative fuels for 2015 and 2016.
This is a significant benefit for Valley Metro with its large fleet of alternatively fueled
vehicles.
Staff has developed the attached federal agenda for 2016 with goals to:






Express our appreciation to Congress and the Administration for the enactment
of the FAST Act and permanent extension of the parity between parking and
transit tax benefits;
Encourage Congress to support budget and appropriations bills that fully fund
authorized amounts for public transportation in the FAST Act;
Monitor FAST Act provisions being implemented by the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA);
Pursue grant opportunities through discretionary programs authorized as part of
the FAST Act; and
Support a permanent extension of the alternative fuels tax credit.
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COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE ACTION
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors approval of the 2016
Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation Agenda.
CONTACT
John Farry
Government Relations Officer
602-744-5550
jfarry@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
2016 Valley Metro Federal Public Transportation Agenda

2

SPRING 2016

VALLEY METRO

DRAFT

Federal Public Transportation
AGENDA

The Valley Metro Boards of Directors would like to express our appreciation to Congress and the Administration for the
enactment of the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act of 2015. The federal government is a critical partner
supporting local and regional public transportation systems in metropolitan Phoenix. The FAST Act will provide this region
with a five-year commitment of authorized funding that will help maintain and expand the regional transit system that
serves nearly four million residents and over 16 million visitors annually.
AS A REGION, OUR STRATEGIES IN 2016 ARE TO:

TRANSIT-RELATED TAX LAW CHANGES:

•• Support budget and appropriations bills that fully fund
authorized amounts in the FAST Act. Investing in
transportation infrastructure results in higher
economic growth.

•• A historic agreement that puts an end to the
annual debate to restore parity to transit commuter
tax benefits.

>
		
		
		
		
>
		

Monitor FAST Act provisions being implemented 		
by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 		
especially the Capital Investment Grant Program, 		
to promote fair evaluation of our light rail and 		
streetcar projects that are eligible for federal funding.
Encourage the development of guidance by 		
the FTA for the Program of Inter-Related Projects.

•• Pursue grant opportunities
>
		
		
		
		

The region will seek opportunities related to the Bus
and Bus Facilities program, the TIGER program and
other grants as they become available. The FAST Act
provides a significant increase to the Bus and Bus
Facilities program (89 percent over the life of the bill).

>
		
>
		

At the end of 2015, Congress passed the package 		
of tax extenders.
There is now permanent parity between parking 		
and transit tax benefits.

•• Alternative fuels tax credit
> The package of tax extenders also included a
		 two-year extension of tax credits for the use of
		 alternative fuels for 2015 and 2016.
> Pursue the permanent extension of the 			
		 alternative fuels tax credit.
> More than 70% of the Valley Metro bus fleet is 		
		 powered with alternative fuel that is domestically 		
		produced.
Thank you for enacting a long-term, fully funded
transportation authorization bill. The FAST Act will allow
us to plan and program on a multi-year basis to improve
and maintain the public transportation system and
infrastructure in the Phoenix metropolitan region.

MKQ2409

•• Monitor and provide input on the implementation
of the FAST Act.

John Farry
Government Relations Officer
602.744.5550 | jfarry@valleymetro.org

DATE
January 27, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4E

SUBJECT
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Audit Services
PURPOSE
To request authorization for the Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to issue a
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Audit Services. The RFP will be conducted
as a joint procurement process with Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA).
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Valley Metro Rail, Inc. (VMR) and RPTA, collectively (the AGENCIES), are jointly
seeking permission to solicit proposals from qualified firms of certified public
accountants to audit the AGENCIES financial statements for the fiscal years ending
June 30, 2016, 2017, 2018 with the option of auditing the AGENCIES financial
statements for the two subsequent fiscal years.
These audits are to be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the General Accounting Office’s
(GAO) Government Accounting Standards, the provisions of the federal Single Audit of
1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Scope of the audits include:
 Express opinion on Financial Statements in conformance with GAAP
o Document and test account balances and internal controls to confirm
statements are free from material error.
o Review the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) required
elements including Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and
Required Supplemental Information (RSI)


Tests internal controls for federal programs (Single Audit Act)
o Internal controls related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer
of opinion) on compliance with laws, regulations, contracts which could
have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance
with the Single Act Audit Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133



NTD-review of data submitted to the National Transit Database



Supplemental internal control review procedures
o Internal control testing to include review of compliance with policy and
procedures in the following areas:
 Travel Expense
 Credit Card expenditures
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 Contracts and procurement
o Auditor will provide report of findings of conformance with best practices
The award to a certified public accounting firm will consist of one (1) joint contract with
RPTA and VMR. RPTA will fund and manage its portion of the contract of the services.
COST AND BUDGET
A three-year cost estimate for VMR’s portion of the service is $120,000. The award
estimate is based on historical level of effort with a three percent growth factor for
auditor rates. VMR’s portion is funded through the Agency Operating Budget using
member city funding.
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:
 Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o
Tactic E: Maintain strong fiscal controls to support Valley Metro’s long-term
sustainability.
COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors authorization for the
Interim CEO to issue a RFP under a joint procurement process with RPTA for
contracted Financial Audit services.
CONTACT
John McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-495-5054
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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DATE
February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 4F

SUBJECT
Contract Award for SCADA Design Services Consultant
PURPOSE
To request authorization for the Interim Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute a not
to exceed (NTE) lump sum contract with Parsons for SCADA Design Services in the
amount of $490,000 and to establish a 10% contract change contingency of $49,000
that is included in the overall budget established for the project.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Valley Metro currently uses a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)
system in its Rail Operations & Control Center (OCC). It is a central operating system
that provides control of the light rail vehicles and other equipment along the rail
alignment. With the addition of the Central Mesa Extension, it became evident to the
engineers that the present SCADA database was not designed with an expandable
platform. Therefore, the system is in need of an upgrade to a more robust system that
will allow for future expansions.
Valley Metro is in need of a consultant to assist in the production of technical
specifications to replace the existing control center software and hardware with a robust
system using proven technology. The consultant’s scope of work will include
interviewing Valley Metro personnel in operations and maintenance in an effort to
determine any current shortcomings and future desires. Consultant shall analyze and
data mine relevant current system documents such as operating manuals, maintenance
manuals, and current screen layouts and bit assignments and report layouts to identify
their potential reuse. The consultant will provide conceptual design documents, a high
level schedule covering the construction phase and an estimate for the SCADA
upgrade. The consultant will also provide procurement support by developing Request
for Proposals (RFP) technical terms and conditions, technical evaluation criteria, and
RFP bidder questionnaires.
In December 2015, Valley Metro issued a federally compliant Request for Qualifications
(RFQ) utilizing the Brooks Act qualifications based selection method. The RFQ included
the following evaluation criteria totaling 1000 points: (1) Project Manager’s
Qualifications & Experience, (2) Personnel Qualifications & Experience, (3) Firm’s
Qualifications & Experience and (4) Understanding / Approach to the Scope of Services.
On January 22, 2016, two firms submitted their “Statement of Qualifications” as
identified below.



Parsons
Ross & Baruzzini Inc.
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Parsons was deemed responsive to the RFQ with Ross & Baruzzini deemed nonresponsive due to non-compliance with the DBE outreach requirements of the RFQ.
The evaluation committee reviewed, scoring and ranked the Parson’s statement of
qualifications and found them a qualified best value firm for the project. Subsequently
Valley Metro entered into contract negotiations for a NTE lump sum contract. The
contract price is deemed fair and reasonable when compared to an independent cost
estimate prepared by staff.
COST AND BUDGET
The SCADA Design Consulting Services is a NTE lump sum contract in the amount of
$490,000. A not-to-exceed contract contingency of $49,000 is established that is
included within the overall budget established for the project for unanticipated changes.
The cost for the consulting services is included in the Central Mesa Extension (CME)
project budget and will be funded by a combination of Federal CMAQ and regional
Public Transportation Funds. The project costs are included in the Valley Metro Rail
FY16 Adopted Operating and Capital Budget and FY16 – FY20 Five-Year Capital
Program.
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:


Goal 2: Advance performance based operation
o Tactic A: Operate an effective, reliable, high performing transit system

COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 20, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the RMC forward to the Board of Directors authorization for the
Interim CEO to execute a not to exceed (NTE) lump sum contract with Parsons for
SCADA Design Services in the amount of $490,000 and to establish a 10% contract
change contingency of $49,000 that is included in the overall budget established for the
project.
CONTACT
Ray Abraham
Chief Operations Officer
602-652-5054
rabraham@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
2

DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 5

SUBJECT
Fiscal Year 2016 (FY16) Second Quarter Reports
PURPOSE
To provide an informational update of activities at Valley Metro.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION

Quarterly Reports are provided as an informational update of Valley Metro activities








Operations
Safety and Security
Capital Projects

Planning
Communication & Marketing
Finance

COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for information
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for information
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Ray Abraham
Operations and Maintenance Director
602-262-7433
rabraham@valleymetro.org

Wulf Grote, P.E.
Director of Planning & Development
602-322-4420
wgrote@valleymetro.org

Adrian Ruiz
Director Safety and Security
602-262-7433
aruiz@valleymetro.org

Hillary Foose
Director, Communication & Marketing
602-262-7433
hfoose@valleymetro.org

Rick Brown
Chief Engineer
602-744-5556
rbrown@valleymetro.org

John P. McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-262-7433
jmccormack@valleymetro.org

ATTACHMENT
None
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1/27/2016

Light Rail
Operations & Maintenance
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Regional Ridership
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
Bus
Light Rail

July
4,102,136
1,012,071

Aug
4,727,400
1,169,454

Sept
4,877,391
1,373,224

Oct
4,977,536
1,438,683

Nov
4,414,888
1,291,298

Dec
4,405,458
1,198,892

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

Bus

13,706,927

14,773,527

13,797,882

Light Rail

3,554,749

3,640,861

3,928,873

Total

17,261,676

18,414,388

17,726,755
2

1

1/27/2016

Light Rail
Performance Indicator

Target

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

≥ 95%

95%

92%

93%

Complaints Per 100,000
Boardings

≤3

0.8

0.7

0.8

Mechanical LRV Failures Per
100,000 Revenue Miles

≤ 16

7

10

6

Mechanical Systems Failures
Per 100,000 Revenue Miles

≤6

0.3

0.3

11

--

3,554,749

3,640,142

3,928,873

On-Time Performance

Ridership

3

Light Rail (cont.)
Performance Indicator

Target

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

Preventative Maintenance
Inspections - % On-Time (LRV)

≥ 80%

99%

100%

100%

Preventative Maintenance
Inspections - % On-Time
(Systems)

≥ 80%

99%

94%

91%

≤1

1

0

1

Employee Injuries

4

2
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Customer Service – Call Center
Performance Indicator

Target

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

Calls Received

--

367,338

395,371

353,352

Complaints Processed

--

8,201

7,198

7,092

NextRide Inquiries Handled by
Interactive Voice Response
(IVR)

--

351,588

368,434

356,929

NextRide Inquiries Handled by
Text Messaging

--

609,180

708,239

563,969

Average Talk Time

--

2:24

2:17

2:17

≤ 1.00

0:45

0:51

0:40

Average Speed of Answer

5
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Safety & Security
Light Rail
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Rail Accidents
14

13

13

12

10

10

*NTD

8
6
4

2

2

1

1

0
FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

*NTD: National Transit Database‐fatality/injury with transport for 1 or more persons/25K damage

2
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Fares Inspected

600,000
550,000
500,000
450,000
400,000
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
0

591,360
585,294
412,354
12%

% of total ridership

16%

FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

15%

FY16 Q2

3

Actions with Passengers Not Cited
50%
40%
30%
20%

32%

37%

41%

40%
23%

10%

27%

0%
Left Area

Warnings
FY16 Q1

Rev Recovery

FY16 Q2
4
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Citations Issued by Allied Barton
500
400
620

300
200

194

100
0

79
FY16 Q1

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

5

Fare Compliance
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

93%

FY16 Q1

95%

94%

FY15 Q2

FY16 Q2

6
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Fare Sweeps
October 22, 2015 (0800-1000)
24th & Jefferson
The teams made contact with 150
passenger/patrons:

October 28, 2015 (1600-1800)
24th & Washington
The teams made contact with 85
passenger/patrons:

• 50 Fare Recovery Actions
Conducted
• 2 Citations Issued
• 5 Written Warnings Issued
• 3 Arrests Initiated by local PD

• 3 Fare Recovery Actions
Conducted
• 1 Arrest Initiated by local PD

The purpose of a fare sweep is to ensure Fare Compliance and Revenue Recovery
Locations are selected based off daily contacts and historical activity for recognized non‐compliance
7

Fare Sweeps
November 30, 2015 (0800-1000)
19th & Camelback
The teams made contact with 45
passenger/patrons:

November 30, 2015 (1630-1830)
19th & Camelback
The teams made contact with 65
passenger/patrons:

• 9 Fare Recovery Actions
Conducted
• 2 Citations Issued
• 5 Written Warnings Issued
• 0 Arrests Initiated by local PD

• 11 Fare Recovery Actions
Conducted
• 3 Citations Issued
•
•

2 by ABSS
1 by Phoenix PD

• 2 Arrests Initiated by local PD

The purpose of a fare sweep is to ensure Fare Compliance and Revenue Recovery
Locations are selected based off daily contacts and historical activity for recognized non‐compliance

8
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Fare Sweeps
December 2, 2015 (1630-1930)
19th & Montebello
The teams made contact with 120
passenger/patrons:

December 16, 2015 (0930-1045)
19th & Montebello
The teams made contact with 32
passenger/patrons:

• 9 Fare Recovery Actions
Conducted
• 6 Citations Issued
• 3 Arrests Initiated by local PD

• 3 Fare Recovery Actions
Conducted
• 1 Citations Issued
• 0 Arrests Initiated by local PD

The purpose of a fare sweep is to ensure Fare Compliance and Revenue Recovery
Locations are selected based off daily contacts and historical activity for recognized non‐compliance
9

Drills and Exercises-2015 Recap
Heavy Lift Extraction Drills with local Fire
Technical Rescue Teams; October-December
2015

Tactical and Dynamic
Entry Drills with Mesa
Police-Low Light
November 2015

Table Top Exercise (December 2015) College
Football Championship Game (2016)
10
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Central Mesa Extension
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Project Progress
• Construction
– Morris Plaza was Completed
– Mesa Drive Park and Ride and
Operator Facility was Completed
– Site Development & Screen Wall
Installation for TPSS & Signal
Building Sites Continued
2

1
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Project Progress Cont.
– Landscaping Continued
– System Integration Testing Continued
– Punchlist (Traffic Signals, Hardscape, Bus Shelter,
etc.) Continued

3

Screen Walls at
Beverly TPSS

Site Development
at Edgemont
TPSS

4

2
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Artwork – Hibbert Signal
House

Punchlist Work – Traffic Signals

5

Project Cost and Budget
Description
Construction
Utilities
Right of Way
Public Art
Design/Mgt.
Finance
Costs
Total

PCGA
Budget

Budget
($M)

Expended
($M)

% Earned

Forecast
($M)

$112.3

$126.0

$124.5

98.8%

-

$7.0

$3.0

42.5%

$126.0
$7.0

$16.8

$18.3

$17.8

97.5%

$18.3

-

$0.7

$0.6

84.5%

$0.7

$61.7

$40.4

$28.9

71.4%

$40.4

$8.2

$6.1

$5.3

86.8%

$6.1

$ 199.0

$198.6

$180.1

90.7%

$198.6

6
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Project Contingency
Description

Dollars ($M)

Allocated Contingency

$15.2

Executed Change Orders

$17.3

Allocated Contingency Remaining

$0.0

Unallocated Contingency

$8.8

Total Project Contingency Remaining

$8.8

7

Project Schedule
Description

Baseline

Current

% Complete

Construction

08/01/15

08/06/15

100.0%

Utilities

04/08/15

07/27/15

100.0%

Right of Way

07/15/13

10/01/14

100.0%

Public Art

04/30/15

07/15/15

100.0%

Design/Mgt.

05/29/15

3/31/16

98.0%

11/15/2015

08/22/15

100.0%

Test and Startup

8
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Gilbert Road Extension

FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Project Progress
• Procurement
– CM@Risk Construction Services
• Board Approval and NTP October
22, 2015
– Public Art Services
• Board Approval and NTP October
22, 2015
10
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Project Progress Cont.
• Design
– Design Consultant submitted 30% Design on
October 30, 2015
– Preparation for 60% submittal continuing March
18, 2016
– Potholing of utilities underway
11

Project Progress Cont.
• Value Engineering

– Workshop completed November 9th/10th
– Four panelist
• Maryland Transit Administration
• Utah Transit Authority
• TriMet
• Metro Transit Authority of Harris County
– Seven potential VE elements identified
– Three VE elements still under review
12
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Potholing Progress

13

Project Cost and Budget
Description

Current
Budget

Expended ($M)

% Earned

Forecast
($M)

Construction

$ 62.6

$0.0

0.0%

$ 62.6

Utilities

$ 12.7

$0.0

0.3%

$ 12.7

Right of Way

$ 14.8

$0.0

0.3%

$ 14.8

Public Art

$

0.8

$0.0

1.4%

$

Vehicles

$ 20.1

$0.0

0.0%

$ 20.1

Design/Mgt.

$ 36.0

$3.6

9.9%

$ 36.0

Finance Costs

$

5.7

$0.0

0.0%

$

Total

$152.7

$3.7

2.4%

$152.7

0.8

5.7

14
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Project Contingency
Description

Dollars ($M)

Allocated Contingency

$6.3

Executed Change Orders

$0.0

Allocated Contingency Remaining

$6.3

Unallocated Contingency

$13.3

Total Project Contingency Remaining

$19.6

15

Project Schedule
Description
Construction
Utilities
Right of Way
Public Art
Vehicles
Design/Mgt.
Test and Startup

Baseline

Current

% Complete

09/17/18

09/17/18

0.0%

08/15/18

08/15/18

1.0%

12/25/17

12/25/17

1.0%

07/19/18

07/19/18

1.5%

09/14/18

09/14/18

0.0%

03/16/19

03/16/19

9.0%

11/19/18

11/19/18

0.0%
16
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Northwest Extension

FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

17

Project Progress
• Construction
– Roadway, curb, gutter, and sidewalk
construction continued
– Station construction continued
– Track and Special Trackwork was
completed
– Catenary pole foundation and ductbank
construction was completed
18
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Project Progress Cont.
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Catenary pole installation was completed
Catenary installation was completed
Traffic Signal installation was completed
Dunlap PNR construction was completed
Artwork installation continued
TPSS’s and Signal Building’s were installed
System Integration Testing began
19

Project Progress Cont.
• Community Relations
– Community Advisory Board (CAB) gave the
contractor a 100% rating
• Right-of-Way
– All Right-Of-Way Takes, Temporary Construction
Easements and Utility Easements have been
turned over to the contractor
20

10
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Townley TPSS

Artwork at
Townley TPSS
21

Las Palmaritas TPSS

22

11
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Catenary Adjustments on 19th
Avenue near Dunlap Station

Artwork at the Dunlap Station

23

Live Wire Test at the
Glendale Station

Live Wire Test Adjacent to
the Northern Station
24
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Glendale Station

25

Project Cost and Budget
Description

Budget ($M)

Expended
($M)

% Earned

Forecast ($M)

Construction

$ 150.7

$ 145.9

96.8%

$

150.7

Utilities

$

38.0

$

37.4

98.3%

$

38.0

Right of Way

$

76.4

$

74.9

98.1%

$

76.4

Public Art

$

1.0

$

0.8

79.5%

$

1.0

Design/Mgt.

$

60.5

$

48.8

80.6%

$

60.5

Total

$ 326.6

$ 307.9

94.3%

$

326.6

26
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Project Contingency
Description

Dollars ($M)

Total Project Contingency

$10.0

Executed Change Orders/Budget Transfers

$9.5

Total Project Contingency Remaining

$0.5

27

Project Schedule
Description

Baseline

Current

% Complete

Construction

4/26/16

2/2/16

97%

Utilities

6/30/14

7/15/15

100%

Right of Way

10/30/13

8/15/15

100%

Public Art

11/30/15

1/31/16

90%

Design/Mgt.

7/30/15

6/30/16

81%

Test and Startup

7/25/16

3/19/16

0%

28
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Planning and Accessible Transit
FY16 Q2 Report
February 2016

Future Transit Corridors

2

1

1/27/2016

Tempe Streetcar
Project
Complete
2019

Current Phase
FTA Project
Development

Phase
Complete
Spring
2016

Status






Completed the Environmental Assessment, received FONSI
Submitted LONP request for vehicle procurement
PMOC assigned to project; first field visit in December, 2015
Continuing with Preliminary Engineering activities
Awaiting FTA notification on project rating and CIG request as part of
President’s FY17 budget

3

Capitol/I-10 West LRT Extension
Project
Complete
2023

Current Phase

Phase
Complete

Environmental
Assessment (EA)

Fall
2016

Status



ADOT, County and City coordination on-going
Revising the EA based on comments received from the FTA and
construction phasing

4
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West Phoenix/Central Glendale
Project
Complete
2026

Current Phase
Alternatives
Analysis

Phase
Complete
Spring 2016

Status



Continued work on the Level 3 alternatives analysis
Held Community Working Group meetings to provide advisory
recommendation on a downtown Glendale alignment

5

Northwest LRT Extension Phase II
Project
Complete
2026

Current Phase

Phase
Complete

Environmental
Assessment

Summer
2017

Status



FTA Small Starts Evaluation initiated
Refining project design and cost estimate

6
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South Central LRT
Project Complete

Current Phase

Phase Complete

2034 (tentative)

Environmental
Assessment

Summer
2016

Status



Continued Environmental Assessment and
Preliminary Engineering
Received approval from FTA to enter Project
Development phase of the New Starts program

7

Fiesta-Downtown
Chandler Transit
Corridor Study
Project
Complete
2017

Current Phase

Phase Complete

Feasibility Study

Spring 2017

Status
• Initiated preliminary conceptual designs for potential
high-capacity transit options.
• Initiated short-, mid-, and long-term travel forecasting
scenarios.
• Held a Enhanced Land Use Scenario Workshop with
Community Development and Planning Department
staff from Chandler, Gilbert and Mesa.

8
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Finance
FY16 Q2 Report

February 2016

Valley Metro Rail
Operating Results – Q2
VMR Budget vs. Actual Report

$ Millions

For the quarter ending December 31, 2015
2nd Quarter
Operations Expenditures
Rail Operations
Future Project Development
Agency Operating
Total Operating Activities

Budget
9.7
2.7
0.2
12.6

Year to Date
Actual
7.7
2.9
0.2
10.8

Variance
(Unfav.)
2.0
(0.2)
0.0
1.8

Actual
280

Variance
(Unfav.)
32

Budget
18.2
5.4
0.5
24.1

Actual
16.2
5.4
0.4
22.0

Variance
(Unfav.)
2.0
0.0
0.1
2.1

Agency FTE's Budget vs. Actual
For the quarter ending December 31, 2015
2nd Quarter
Valley Metro Integrated
Staff (Full Time Equivalents)

Budget
312

2

1

1/27/2016

Open Positions Status
Valley Metro Integrated Agency
FY 2016 Adopted Positions ‐ Status Update
FY16 ‐ Q1 FY16 ‐ Q2
Sep Open Dec Open

Division
Operations and Maintenance

25

20

Human Resources

2

2

Planning & Accessible Transit

0

1

Safety & Security

0

0

Information Technology

4

4

Communication & Marketing

1

0

Design & Construction
Finance
Executive
Legal

1
2
0
2

0
2
1
2

Total Open Positions

37
12%

32
10%

Total Authorized Positions

312

312

3

Average Rail Fare
FY 2015 History / FY 2016 2nd Quarter

Average Fare Per Ride

Average Fare - 12 months Rolling by Quarter

$1.00
$0.95
$0.90
$0.85
$0.80
$0.75
$0.70
$0.65
$0.60
$0.55
$0.50

$0.…

$0.89

$0.89

$0.86

$0.88
Budget $0.88

FY15‐Q2

Fare Revenue Budget
Fare Revenue Collected
Variance

FY15‐Q3
Q2
$3,469,000
$3,265,000
($204,000)

FY15‐Q4

FY16‐Q1

Fare Recovery Budget
Fare Recovery Actual

FY16‐Q2
Q2
36.9%
41.2%

4

2

1/27/2016

Valley Metro Rail
Capital Results – Q2
VMR Budget vs. Actual Report

$ Millions

For the quarter ending December 31, 2015
2nd Quarter

Year to Date

Budget

Actual

Variance
(Unfav.)

Rail Extensions
Central Mesa
Northwest Extension PH1
Tempe Streetcar
Gilbert Rd
Phoenix West

5.4
11.1
1.7
2.3
1.5

0.2
12.7
0.0
1.4
1.0

5.2
(1.6)
1.7
0.9
0.5

17.4
22.1
3.3
4.7
3.0

15.2
29.7
0.0
1.9
1.0

2.2
(7.6)
3.3
2.8
2.0

Concurrent Non‐Project Activities
Central Mesa

0.0

0.1

(0.1)

0.0

0.1

(0.1)

Non‐Prior Rights Utilities Relocation
System‐wide Improvements

0.7
1.4

1.0
0.8

(0.3)
0.6

1.4
2.9

1.2
1.3

0.2
1.6

24.1

17.2

6.9

54.8

50.4

4.4

Capital Expenditures

Total Capital

Budget

Actual

Variance
(Unfav.)

5

3
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Communication & Marketing
FY16 Q2 Report

February 2016

Communications Update
• Prep for College Football
Playoffs
–
–
–
–

66 volunteer ambassadors
127,000 rail riders
6k+ visitors to /azchampgame
Coordination w/ Operations,
Safety, Phoenix & Glendale

• Social media growth
– 7,934 on FB (+8.4%)
– 8,949 on Twitter (+7%)
2

1
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Community Relations Update
• Continuation of CME activities:
– Safety outreach with winter
visitors
– ADA travel training

• NWE station & vehicle
test milestones
– Announced 3/19 opening

• Cool Transit STUFF contest
– 3rd grade artists featured in ‘16
calendar
3

Commute Solutions Update
• CAC Awards Luncheon
• Rideshare Month
– 1,600+ pledges, 24% new to
ShareTheRide.com (STR)
– 231 tons of pollution saved

• 38,800 active users of STR
– 385 custom, employer
subsites

• Alt. mode campaign
underway
4

2
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Marketing Update
• Service change notification
– Distribution of Oct. ‘15 book
& related signage
– Communication of April ‘16
proposed changes

• Discretionary Rider
campaign
– Prep for Jan. ‘16 launch
– Gas toppers, billboards,
print & online
5
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DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 6

SUBJECT
Northwest Extension Opening Celebration Update
PURPOSE
To provide an informational update to the on the Northwest Extension Opening
Celebration on March 19, 2016.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Valley Metro and City of Phoenix broke ground on the 3.2-mile Northwest Light Rail
Extension in January 2013. Construction has progressed expeditiously with the project
opening set for March 19, 2016, more than four months ahead of schedule.
The opening celebration will consist of a community celebration to thank and call
positive attention to the neighborhoods, schools, businesses and residents of 19th
Avenue. The event and related marketing and outreach will encourage exploration of
the culture, diversity and small businesses of 19th Avenue by the region at-large. Below
are greater event details.
Saturday, March 19 – Opening Celebration
 Purpose: To celebrate and thank the community who partnered on the delivery of
this project. It will also raise awareness of the rail line’s connection to strong
neighborhoods, a diverse community and locally-owned businesses along 19th
Avenue.
 Audience: 19th Avenue stakeholders, local residents, regional stakeholders,
general public
 Content: Opening ceremony; community fair featuring 19th Avenue businesses,
restaurants, students, community partners; programmed stage featuring local
talent; family activities
 Time/location: Morning; 19th Avenue/Dunlap park-and-ride (southwest corner)
Free, All-Day commemorative transit passes (with magnetic stripe) will be distributed to
attendees of the opening celebration. In cooperation with City of Phoenix, a
commemorative pass is being designed and printed. These passes will be handed out
by dedicated staff on a one-per-person basis throughout the duration of the event. Any
unused passes will be reconciled at the close of the event. The free rides program
related to new service openings will be reviewed by the Fare Policy Working Group in
January 2016.
Event planner, Entertainment Solutions, Inc., will be on board as needed by Valley
Metro and city staff to support event infrastructure needs.
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Light rail service will operate on the new line following the opening ceremony, which will
take place early in the event schedule on Saturday morning. Service may be enhanced
along the three-mile segment to support event demand.
Regular bus service on 19th Avenue (Route 19) has returned with the October 2015
service changes.
COST AND BUDGET
Valley Metro estimates the opening celebration cost to be $75,000. This amount is
programmed in the Northwest Extension project budget and included within the adopted
Valley Metro Rail FY16 Operating & Capital Budget. Funding sources are a combination
of Public Transportation Funds (PTF) and City of Phoenix T2000 funds.
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020:
 Goal 1: Increase customer focus
o Tactic A: Enhance customer service to member cities
o Tactic D: Continue to provide high-level and timely business assistance to
communities and businesses in construction areas
 Goal 3: Grow transit ridership
o Tactic A: Expand and improve transit services to reach new markets
o Tactic C: Communicate availability, attractiveness and safety of transit
service
 Goal 5: Advance the value of transit
o Tactic A: Develop and implement a communications plan to inform and
educate the public on the value of transit
COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for action
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for action
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Hillary Foose
Director, Communication & Marketing
602-322-4468
hfoose@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
2

DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 7

SUBJECT
Fiscal Year 2015 (FY15) Transit Performance Report (TPR)
PURPOSE
To provide information regarding system ridership, operating costs, fare revenue, and
performance indicators contained in the FY15 Transit Performance Report.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
The Transit Performance Report (TPR) is updated annually using data provided by our
member agencies and the Valley Metro Regional Ridership Report. The report includes
information by each mode within the region:
 Fixed Route Bus
 Light Rail
 Paratransit
 Vanpool
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
Financial Working Group: December 28, 2015 for information
RTAG: January 19, 2016 for information
RMC: February 3, 2016 for information
Board of Directors: February 18, 2016 for information
RECOMMENDATION
This item is being presented for information only.
CONTACT
John P. McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-495-8239
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
The FY15 TPR Report can be found with TMC agenda item 8.
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DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 8

SUBJECT
Valley Metro Accessibility Advisory Group
PURPOSE
To provide information regarding the establishment of a working group called the Valley
Metro Accessibility Advisory Group (VMAAG).
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
Valley Metro is committed to the planning, design, operation and management of
programs and services that are accessible to all customers, including seniors and
people with disabilities. All bus, light rail, paratransit and other transportation services
meet or exceed the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and
Valley Metro staff collaborates with members of the senior and disability communities
when contemplating new or enhanced facilities or services.
Staff has determined that an ongoing working group comprised of seniors, people with
disabilities and other stakeholders will further enhance the accessibility of our programs
and services. With this in mind, we are establishing the Valley Metro Accessibility
Advisory Group (VMAAG) as outlined below.
Purpose
The VMAAG will be responsible for advising staff on matters pertaining to the
accessibility of Valley Metro programs, services and facilities for seniors and
people with disabilities. Although not part of the formal process for implementing
or changing policies, procedures or services, staff will consult with and seek input
from VMAAG on any item of significance to the needs of seniors and people with
disabilities.
Examples of items where VMAAG will be asked to provide input:
 Quality and accessibility of service provided by rail, bus and Dial-a-Ride
contractors
 Accessibility and customer elements of specifications for new and
replacement paratransit, transit and light rail vehicles
 Development of new transit corridors and facilities and the environs around
them
 Passenger facility design standards and guidelines
 Development and modification of transit and Dial-a-Ride policies and
procedures
 Accessibility-related content and usability of Valley Metro public information,
including websites, mobile apps, social media, and printed materials
 Other input that will support the agency’s goal of increasing access and
accessibility for all customers, including seniors and people with disabilities
VALLEY METRO • 101 N 1ST AVE • STE 1300 • PHOENIX AZ • 602-262-7433

Membership
 Up to 15 individuals with disabilities, seniors, representatives of agencies
serving seniors and people with disabilities and other appropriate individuals.
 Membership will represent a broad cross-section of the senior and disability
communities served by Valley Metro, based on geography, gender, ethnicity,
age and types of disabilities.
 Initial term will be for two years and will be limited to three consecutive terms
(total of 6 years).
 Terms will be staggered to avoid having all members terminate in the same
year.
 Individuals will complete an application for membership, which will be
reviewed by staff with recommendations forwarded to the CEO for
appointment.
Meetings
 Monthly or bimonthly, as necessary.
 At a minimum, meetings will occur six times per fiscal year.
 Meetings will be treated as public meetings and appropriately announced and
documented.
COST AND BUDGET
VMAAG costs are limited to the cost of meeting materials and for transit passes and/or
paratransit tickets for VMAAG members. These expenses are projected to be
approximately $1,800 per year, and are included within the FY16 Operating Budget and
will be included within the Five-Year Operating and Capital Plan.
STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT
This item relates to the following goals and strategies in the Five-Year Strategic Plan,
FY 2016 – 2020.




Goal 1: Increase customer focus
o Tactic A: Improve customer satisfaction.
o Tactic E: Enhance services and facilities for seniors and people with
disabilities.
Goal 2: Advance performance-based operation
o Tactic A: Operate an effective, reliable, high-performing transit system.

COMMITTEE PROCESS
RTAG: December 15, 2015 for information
RMC: January 6, 2016 for information
Board: January 21, 2016 for information

2

RECOMMENDATION
This item is for information only.
CONTACT
Wulf Grote
Director, Planning and Accessible Transit Division
602-716-2107
wgrote@valleymetro.org
Ron Brooks
Manager, Accessible Transit Services
602-716-2107
rbrooks@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
None
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AGENDA ITEM 9

SUBJECT
Travel and Expenditures
PURPOSE
The monthly travel and expenditures are presented for information.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
John McCormack
Chief Financial Officer
602-262-7433
jmccormack@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
Valley Metro Travel Reimbursement Report
Valley Metro Rail Monthly Accounts Payable over $25,000
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Valley Metro
Travel Reimbursement Report
For Travel Completion Dates
December 26, 2016 through January 25, 2016

Job Title
Network
Administrator
Chief
Maintenance
Engineer

Purpose of Travel

Location

Dates Traveled

Total Travel
Cost

Airfare

Other
Lodging
Transport

Meals

Misc.*

ICS Cyber Emergency
Training

Idaho Falls, ID

1/10-1/15, 2016

$1,480.09

$635.20

$0.00

$564.39

$280.50

$0.00

Transformer Testing

Chicago, IL

1/20-1/22, 2016

$997.49

$291.96

$241.65

$286.38

$177.50

$0.00

* Parking, inflight internet/wifi fees, luggage fees

Valley Metro Rail, Inc.
Monthly AP Payments over $25,000
December 21, 2015 thru January 20, 2016
Check Number

Vendor Name

Transaction Description

20160111W002
20151231W001
20151231W003
20151221W009
20160111W001
20151231W002
20151221W004
20160114W007
20151221W012
20151221W007
025726
025724
20151231W006
025702
025737
025667
20151231W003
025655
025688

Sundt/Stacy & Witbeck Joint Venture
Alternate Concepts Inc.
City of Phoenix- Public Transit
Allied Barton Security Services
PB-Wong Joint Venture
Jacobs Engineering
AECOM Technical Services
USBC Real Estate LLC
USBC Real Estate LLC
Enterprise Technology Services
Siemens Industry Inc.
Merge Conceptual Design LLC
Knorr Brake Corporation (KBC)
DMS - Facility Services, Inc.
United Right-of-Way
Hanning & Kahl LP
City of Phoenix- Public Transit
Mersky Deborah
Suns Legacy Partners, LLC

Nov 2015 NWX Rail Construction
Transportation Services
Oct. 2015 NWE Project Funding ROW & Staff Costs
Fare Inspection and Security Svcs
PMCM, Strategic Business Plan
Nov. 2015 GRE Design Services
NWX - Engineering Svcs
Feb 2016 101 Bldg Rent
Jan 2016 101 Bldg Rent
Oct 2015 IT Services Consultant
LRV Propulsion System Parts
Paymt 6 Fabrication NWX Public Art
Brake Equipment Overhaul Project
Nov 2015 Facility Maintenance Services
Nov 2015 Facilites Landskeeping Services
HCS-R Transponders
Dec. 2015 - Fare Handling Fee
12/03/15 NWE Artwork Design - Payment 7
Phoenix Suns Sponsorship Contract 3 of 3

*A/P payments for January 21 through February 20, 2016 will be included in the next reporting period.
Cutoff is to enable prompt reporting to the RMC in the first week of each calendar month

Effective Date
1/11/2016
12/31/2015
12/31/2015
12/21/2015
1/11/2016
12/31/2015
12/21/2015
1/15/2016
12/21/2015
12/21/2015
1/14/2016
1/14/2016
12/31/2015
1/8/2016
1/14/2016
12/30/2015
12/31/2015
12/30/2015
12/30/2015

Check Amount
$2,559,730.73
$1,549,543.68
739,498.00
563,006.18
521,229.32
484,337.73
328,944.10
109,796.11
109,796.11
65,645.44
60,000.00
57,500.00
57,341.06
49,861.42
35,076.62
33,080.00
31,407.00
30,000.00
25,125.00

7,410,918.50

DATE
REVISED February 1, 2016

AGENDA ITEM 10

SUBJECT
Future Agenda Items Request and Report on Current Events
PURPOSE
Chair Zuercher will request future agenda items from members, and members may
provide a report on current events.
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION/CONSIDERATION
None
COST AND BUDGET
None
COMMITTEE PROCESS
None
RECOMMENDATION
This item is presented for information only.
CONTACT
Scott Smith
Interim Chief Executive Officer
602-262-7433
ssmith@valleymetro.org
ATTACHMENT
Pending Items Request
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Pending Items Request
Item Requested

Date Requested

Planned Follow-up Date
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